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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.  
FORM 10-K  

PART I  

This Report contains statements which constitute fo rward- looking statements within the meaning of Section 27 A of the Securities Act 
of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Th ese statements appear in a number of places in this  Report and include all 
statements regarding the intent, belief or current expectations of the Company, its directors or its o fficers with respect to, 
among other things: (i) the Company’s financing pla ns; (ii) trends affecting the Company’s financial c ondition or results of 
operations; (iii) the Company’s growth strategy and  operating strategy; and (iv) the declaration and p ayment of dividends. 
Investors are cautioned that any such forward-looki ng statements are not guarantees of future performa nce and involve risks and 
uncertainties, and that actual results may differ m aterially from those projected in the forward-looki ng statements as a result of 
various factors discussed herein and those factors discussed in detail in the Company’s filings with t he Securities and Exchange 
Commission.  

ITEM 1.      BUSINESS 

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY  



General  

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) was inco rporated on June 23, 1995 to serve as a bank holdin g company for The First, A 
National Banking Association (“The First”) located in Hattiesburg, Mississippi. The First began operat ions on August 5, 1996 from 
its main office in the Oak Grove community, which w as on the outskirts of Hattiesburg but now is inclu ded in the city of 
Hattiesburg. In addition to the main office in Hatt iesburg and the branch in Laurel, The First also op erates two other branches in 
Hattiesburg, one in Purvis, one in Picayune, one in  Pascagoula, one in Bay St. Louis, one in Wiggins,a nd one in Gulfport, 
Mississippi. The Company and its subsidiary bank en gage in a general commercial and retail banking bus iness characterized by 
personalized service and local decision-making, emp hasizing the banking needs of small to medium-sized  businesses, professional 
concerns and individuals. The First is a wholly-own ed subsidiary bank of the Company.  

Location and Service Area  

The First serves the cities of Hattiesburg, Laurel,  Purvis, Picayune, Pascagoula, Bay St. Louis, Wiggi ns, Gulfport and the 
surrounding areas of Lamar, Forrest, Jones, Pearl R iver ,Jackson, Hancock, Stone and Harrison Counties , Mississippi. The First has 
a main office located in the city of Hattiesburg, M ississippi, in Lamar County. The First has a branch  office located on Highway 
589 in the city of Purvis, Mississippi, also in Lam ar County, a third office located at the intersecti on of Lincoln Road and South 
28th Avenue in Hattiesburg, a fourth location at 11 0 S. 40th Ave. in Hattiesburg, a fifth location on Hwy 15 North in Laurel, a 
sixth location on Hwy 43 South in Picayune, a seven th location on Jackson Avenue in Pascagoula, an eig hth location on Hwy 90 in Bay 
St. Louis, a ninth location on Border Ave. in Wiggi ns and a tenth location at Hwy 49 and O’Neal Rd in Gulfport, Mississippi.  

The main office primarily serves the area in and ar ound the northern portion of Lamar County. The Purv is office primarily serves 
the area in and around Purvis, Mississippi, which i s in the east central part of Lamar County and is t he county seat. Lamar County 
is located in the southeastern section of Mississip pi. Hattiesburg, one of the largest cities in Missi ssippi, is located in Forrest 
and Lamar Counties. The Laurel office serves the ci ty of Laurel and the surrounding area of Jones Coun ty, Mississippi. The Picayune 
office primarily serves the area in and around Pica yune, Mississippi, including areas of north Hancock  County and Pearl River, LA 
and Slidell, LA. Picayune is located in the souther n part of Pearl River County. Pearl River County is  located in the southern 
section of Mississippi. The Pascagoula office prima rily serves the area in and around Pascagoula, Miss issippi, including areas of 
Jackson County. Hattiesburg can be reached via U.S.  Highways 98 and 49 and Interstate 59. Major employ ers located in the Lamar and 
Forrest County areas include Forrest General Hospit al, the University of Southern Mississippi, Wesley Medical Center, Camp Shelby, 
the Hattiesburg Public Schools, the Hattiesburg Cli nic, the City of Hattiesburg, and Marshall Durbin P oultry. The principal 
components of the economy of the Lamar and Forrest County areas include service industries, wholesale and retail trade, 
manufacturing, and transportation and public utilit ies. The Laurel branch is located at 1945 Highway 1 5 North, Laurel, MS, with the 
majority of its retail business coming from the loc al area and the remaining business coming from othe r areas of Jones County, as 
well as portions of Jasper County, Wayne County, Sm ith County, and Covington County. Major employers i n the Jones County  
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area include Howard Industries, Sanderson Farms, In c., and South Central Regional Medical Center. Majo r employers in the Pearl 
River County area include Stennis Space Center, Che vron, Texaco, Arizona Chemical, American Crescent E levator Co., City of 
Picayune, Crosby Memorial Hospital and the public s chools. The principal components of the economy of the Pearl River County area 
include timber, service industries, wholesale and r etail trade, manufacturing, and transportation and public utilities. Major 
employers in the Jackson County area include Northr op Grumman, Singing River Hospital, and Shell Oil C ompany. The Bay St. Louis 
office serves the City of Bay St. Louis and the sur rounding area of Hancock County, Mississippi. Bay S t. Louis can be reached via 
U.S. Highway 90. Major employers in the Hancock are a include the City of Bay St. Louis, Hancock County , and Stennis Space Center. 
The Wiggins office serves the City of Wiggins and t he surrounding area of Stone County, Mississippi. S tone County is south of 
Forrest County and north of Harrison County. Wiggin s can be reached via U. S. Highway 49. The Gulfport  office serves the City of 
Gulfport and the surrounding area of Harrison Count y, Mississippi. Gulfport can be reached via U.S. Hi ghway 49. Major employers in 
the Harrison County area include Keesler Air Force Base and a vast array of casinos.  

Banking Services  

The Company strives to provide its customers with t he breadth of products and services comparable to t hose offered by large 
regional banks, while maintaining the quick respons e and personal service of a locally owned and manag ed bank. In addition to 
offering a full range of deposit services and comme rcial and personal loans, The First offers products  such as mortgage loan 
originations. The following is a description of the  products and services offered or planned to be off ered by the Bank.  

•        Deposit Services .  The Bank offers a full range of deposit services  that are typically 
         available in most banks and savings and lo an associations, including checking accounts, NOW 
         accounts, savings accounts, and other time  deposits of various types, ranging from daily mone y 
         market accounts to longer-term certificate s of deposit.  The transaction accounts and time 
         certificates are tailored to the Bank's pr incipal market area at rates competitive to those 
         offered by other banks in the area.  In ad dition, the Bank offers certain retirement account 
         services, such as Individual Retirement Ac counts (IRAs).  All deposit accounts are insured by  
         the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC") up to the maximum amount allowed by 
         law.  The Bank solicits these accounts fro m individuals, businesses, associations and 
         organizations, and governmental authoritie s. 
 
•        Loan Products .  The Bank offers a full range of commercial and p ersonal loans.  Commercial 
         loans include both secured and unsecured l oans for working capital (including loans secured b y 
         inventory and accounts receivable), busine ss expansion (including acquisition of real estate 
         and improvements), and purchase of equipme nt and machinery.  Consumer loans include equity 
         lines of credit and secured and unsecured loans for financing automobiles, home improvements,  
         education, and personal investments.  The Bank also makes real estate construction and 
         acquisition loans.  The Bank's lending act ivities are subject to a variety of lending limits 
         imposed by federal law.  While differing l imits apply in certain circumstances based on the 
         type of loan or the nature of the borrower  (including the borrower's relationship to the bank ), 
         in general the Bank is subject to a loans- to-one-borrower limit of an amount equal to 15% of 
         the Bank's unimpaired capital and surplus.   The Bank may not make any loans to any director, 
         executive officer, or 10% shareholder unle ss the loan is approved by the Board of Directors o f 
         the Bank and is made on terms not more fav orable to such a person than would be available to a 
         person not affiliated with the Bank. 
 
•        Mortgage Loan Divisions .  The Bank has mortgage loan divisions which origi nate loans to 
         purchase existing or construct new homes a nd to refinance existing mortgages. 
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•        Other Services .  Other bank services include on-line internet ban king services, voice response 
         telephone inquiry service, commercial swee p accounts, cash management services, safe deposit 
         boxes, travelers checks, direct deposit of  payroll and social security checks, and automatic 
         drafts for various accounts.  The Bank is associated with the Interlink, Plus, Pulse and Star  
         networks of automated teller machines that  may be used by the Bank's customers throughout 
         Mississippi and other regions.  The Bank a lso offers VISA and MasterCard credit card services  
         through a correspondent bank. 

Competition  

The Bank generally competes with other financial in stitutions through the selection of banking product s and services offered, the 
pricing of services, the level of service provided,  the convenience and availability of services, and the degree of expertise and 
the personal manner in which services are offered. Mississippi law permits statewide branching by bank s and savings institutions, 
and many financial institutions in the state have b ranch networks. Consequently, commercial banking in  Mississippi is highly 
competitive. Many large banking organizations curre ntly operate in the Company’s market area, several of which are controlled by 
out-of-state ownership. In addition, competition be tween commercial banks and thrift institutions (sav ings institutions and credit 
unions) has been intensified significantly by the e limination of many previous distinctions between th e various types of financial 
institutions and the expanded powers and increased activity of thrift institutions in areas of banking  which previously had been 
the sole domain of commercial banks. Federal legisl ation, together with other regulatory changes by th e primary regulators of the 
various financial institutions, has resulted in the  almost total elimination of practical distinctions  between a commercial bank 
and a thrift institution. Consequently, competition  among financial institutions of all types is large ly unlimited with respect to 
legal ability and authority to provide most financi al services.  

The Company faces increased competition from both f ederally-chartered and state-chartered financial an d thrift institutions, as 
well as credit unions, consumer finance companies, insurance companies, and other institutions in the Company’s market area. Some 
of these competitors are not subject to the same de gree of regulation and restriction imposed upon the  Company. Many of these 
competitors also have broader geographic markets an d substantially greater resources and lending limit s than the Company and offer 
certain services such as trust banking that the Com pany does not currently provide. In addition, many of these competitors have 
numerous branch offices located throughout the exte nded market areas of the Company that may provide t hese competitors with an 
advantage in geographic convenience that the Compan y does not have at present.  

Currently there are numerous other commercial banks , savings institutions, and credit unions operating  in The First’s primary 
service area.  

Employees  

As of March 25, 2010, the Company had 149 full -time employees and 9 part-time employees.  

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION  

The Company and its bank are subject to state and f ederal banking laws and regulations which impose sp ecific requirements or 
restrictions on and provide for general regulatory oversight with respect to virtually all aspects of operations. These laws and 
regulations are generally intended to protect depos itors, not shareholders. To the extent that the fol lowing summary describes 
statutory or regulatory provisions, it is qualified  in its entirety by reference to the particular sta tutory and regulatory 
provisions. Any change in applicable laws or regula tions may have a material effect on the business an d prospects of the Company. 
Beginning with the enactment of the Financial Insti tutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 198 9 (“FIRREA”) and following 
with Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvem ent Act of 1991 (“FDICIA”), numerous additional reg ulatory requirements have 
been placed on the banking industry in the past sev eral years, and additional changes have been propos ed. The operations of the 
Company and the Bank may be affected by legislative  changes and the policies of various regulatory aut horities. The Company is 
unable to predict the nature or the extent of the e ffect on its business and earnings that fiscal or m onetary policies, economic 
control, or new federal or state legislation may ha ve in the future.  
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Legislative and Regulatory Initiatives to Address F inancial and Economic Crises  

The Congress, Treasury Department and the federal b anking regulators, including the FDIC, have taken b road action since early 
September, 2008 to address volatility in the U.S. b anking system.  

In October 2008, the Emergency Economic Stabilizati on Act of 2008 (“EESA”) was enacted. The EESA authorizes the Treasury Depar tment 
to purchase from financial institutions and their h olding companies up to $700 billion in mortgage loa ns, mortgage-related 
securities and certain other financial instruments,  including debt and equity securities issued by fin ancial institutions and their 
holding companies in a troubled asset relief progra m (“TARP”). The purpose of TARP is to restore confi dence and stability to the 
U.S. banking system and to encourage financial inst itutions to increase their lending to customers and  to each other. The Treasury 
Department has allocated $250 billion towards the T ARP Capital Purchase Program (“CPP”). Under the CPP, Treasury will purchase debt 
or equity securities from participating institution s. The TARP also includes direct purchases or guara ntees of troubled assets of 
financial institutions. Participants in the CPP are  subject to executive compensation limits and are e ncouraged to expand their 
lending and mortgage loan modifications.  

On February 6, 2009, as part of the TARP CPP, the C ompany entered into a Letter Agreement and Securiti es Purchase Agreement 
(collectively, the “Purchase Agreement”) with the T reasury Department, pursuant to which the Company s old (i) 5,000 shares of the 
Company’s Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred  Stock, Series UST (the “UST Preferred Stock”) and (ii) a warrant (the 
“Warrant”) to purchase 54,705 shares of the Company ’s Common Stock for an exercise price of $13.71 per  share.  

The UST Preferred Stock qualifies as Tier 1 capital  and is entitled to cumulative dividends at a rate of 5% per annum for the first 
five years, and 9% per annum thereafter. The Warran t has a 10-year term and is immediately exercisable  upon its issuance, and its 
exercise price is subject to anti-dilution adjustme nts.  

EESA also increased FDIC deposit insurance on most accounts from $100,000 to $250,000. This increase i s in place until the end of 
2013 and is not covered by deposit insurance premiu ms paid by the banking industry.  



Following a systemic risk determination, the FDIC e stablished a Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program (“TLGP”) on October 14, 2008. 
The TLGP includes the Transaction Account Guarantee  Program (“TAGP”), which provides unlimited deposit  insurance coverage through 
June 30, 2010 for noninterest-bearing transaction a ccounts (typically business checking accounts) and certain funds swept into 
noninterest-bearing savings accounts. Institutions participating in the TAGP pay a 10 basis points fee  (annualized) on the balance 
of each covered account in excess of $250,000, whil e the extra deposit insurance is in place. The Comp any is participating in the 
TAGP.  

Effects of American Reinvestment and Recovery Act o f 2009  

On February 17, 2009, President Obama signed into l aw the America Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 200 9 (“ARRA”). ARRA contains 
expansive new restrictions on executive compensatio n for financial institutions and other companies pa rticipating in the CPP. These 
restrictions apply to us and are further detailed i n implementing regulations found at 31 CFR Part 30.  (Any reference to “ARRA” 
herein includes a reference to the implementing reg ulations.)  

ARRA prohibits bonus and similar payments to the mo st highly compensated employee of the Company. The prohibition does not apply to 
bonuses payable pursuant to “employment agreements”  in effect prior to February 11, 2009. “Long-term” restricted stock is excluded 
from ARRA’s bonus prohibition, but only to the exte nt the value of the stock does not exceed one-third  of the total amount of 
annual compensation of the employee receiving the s tock, the stock does not “fully vest” until after a ll CPP-related obligations 
have been satisfied, and any other conditions which  the Treasury may specify have been met.  

ARRA prohibits any payment to the principal executi ve officer, the principal financial officer, and an y of the next eight most 
highly compensated employees upon departure from th e Company for any reason for as long as any CPP-rel ated obligations remain 
outstanding.  

Under ARRA CPP- participating companies are required to recover any  bonus or other incentive payment paid to the princ ipal executive 
officer, the principal financial officer, or any of  the next 23 most highly compensated employees on t he basis of materially 
inaccurate financial or other performance criteria.   
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ARRA prohibits CPP participants from implementing a ny compensation plan that would encourage manipulat ion of the reported earnings 
of the Company in order to enhance the compensation  of any of its employees.  

ARRA requires the Chief Executive Officer and the C hief Financial Officer of any publicly -traded CPP-participating company to 
provide a written certification of compliance with the executive compensation restrictions in ARRA in the company’s annual filings 
with the SEC beginning in 2010.  

ARRA requires each CPP -participating company to implement a company-wide policy regarding excessive or luxury expenditures, 
including excessive expenditures on entertainment o r events, office and facility renovations, aviation  or other transportation 
services.  

ARRA directs the Treasury to review bonuses, retent ion awards, and other compensation paid to the Chie f Executive Officer and the 
next four other highest paid executive officer of t he Company and the next 20 most highly compensated employees of each company 
receiving CPP assistance before ARRA was enacted, a nd to “seek to negotiate” with the CPP recipient an d affected employees for 
reimbursement if it finds any such payments were in consistent with CPP or otherwise in conflict with t he public interest.  

AARA also prohibits the payment of tax gross -ups; required disclosures related to perquisite pa yments and the engagement, if any, 
by the CPP participant of a compensation consultant ; and prohibits the deduction for tax purposes of e xecutive compensation in 
excess of $500,000 for each applicable senior execu tive.  

These standards could change based on subsequent gu idance issued by the Treasury or the Internal Reven ue Service. Both prior to its 
participation in the CPP, and for so long as the Tr easury continues to hold equity interests in the Co mpany issued under the CPP, 
the Company will monitor its compensation arrangeme nts and modify such compensation arrangements, agre e to limit and limit its 
compensation deductions, and take such other action s as may be necessary to comply with the standards discussed above, as they may 
be modified from time to time. The Company does not  anticipate that any material changes to its existi ng executive compensation 
structure will be required to comply with the execu tive compensation standards included in the CPP.  

The Company  

Because it owns the outstanding capital stock of th e Bank, the Company is a bank holding company withi n the meaning of the Federal 
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (the “BHCA”).  

The BHCA . Under the BHCA, the Company is subject to periodi c examination by the Federal Reserve and is require d to file periodic 
reports of its operations and such additional infor mation as the Federal Reserve may require. The Comp any’s and the Bank’s 
activities are limited to banking, managing or cont rolling banks, furnishing services to or performing  services for its 
subsidiaries, and engaging in other activities that  the Federal Reserve determines to be so closely re lated to banking or managing 
or controlling banks as to be a proper incident the reto.  

Investments, Control, and Activities . With certain limited exceptions, the BHCA require s every bank holding company to obtain the 
prior approval of the Federal Reserve before (i) ac quiring substantially all the assets of any bank, ( ii) acquiring direct or 
indirect ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank if after such acquisition it would own or control more than 5% of 
the voting shares of such bank (unless it already o wns or controls the majority of such shares), or (i ii) merging or consolidating 
with another bank holding company.  

In addition, and subject to certain exceptions, the  BHCA and the Change in Bank Control Act, together with regulations thereunder, 
require Federal Reserve approval (or, depending on the circumstances, no notice of disapproval) prior to any person or company 
acquiring “control” of a bank holding company, such  as the Company. Control is conclusively presumed t o exist if an individual or 
company acquires 25% or more of any class of voting  securities of the bank holding company. Control is  rebuttably presumed to exist 
if a person acquires 10% or more but less than 25% of any class of voting securities and either the Co mpany has registered 
securities under Section 12 of the Exchange Act (wh ich the Company has done) or no other person owns a  greater percentage of that 
class of voting securities immediately after the tr ansaction. The regulations provide a procedure for challenge of the rebuttable 
control presumption.  
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Under the BHCA, a bank holding company is generally  prohibited from engaging in, or acquiring direct o r indirect control of more 
than 5% of the voting shares of any company engaged  in nonbanking activities, unless the Federal Reser ve Board, by order or 
regulation, has found those activities to be so clo sely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper 
incident thereto. Some of the activities that the F ederal Reserve Board has determined by regulation t o be proper incidents to the 
business of a bank holding company include making o r servicing loans and certain types of leases, enga ging in certain insurance and 
discount brokerage activities, performing certain d ata processing services, acting in certain circumst ances as a fiduciary or 
investment or financial adviser, owning savings ass ociations, and making investments in certain corpor ations or projects designed 
primarily to promote community welfare.  

The Federal Reserve Board has imposed certain capit al requirements on the Company under the BHCA, incl uding a minimum leverage 
ratio and a minimum ratio of “qualifying” capital t o risk-weighted assets. These requirements are desc ribed below under “Capital 
Regulations.” Subject to its capital requirements a nd certain other restrictions, the Company may borr ow money to make a capital 
contribution to the Banks, and such loans may be re paid from dividends paid from the Bank to the Compa ny (although the ability of 
the Bank to pay dividends is subject to regulatory restrictions as described below in “The Bank — Divi dends”). The Company is also 
able to raise capital for contribution to the Bank by issuing securities without having to receive reg ulatory approval, subject to 
compliance with federal and state securities laws.  

Source of Strength; Cross-Guarantee . In accordance with Federal Reserve Board policy, the Company is expected to act as a source 
of financial strength to the Bank and to commit res ources to support the Bank in circumstances in whic h the Company might not 
otherwise do so. Under the BHCA, the Federal Reserv e Board may require a bank holding company to termi nate any activity or 
relinquish control of a nonbank subsidiary (other t han a nonbank subsidiary of a bank) upon the Federa l Reserve Board’s 
determination that such activity or control constit utes a serious risk to the financial soundness or s tability of any subsidiary 
depository institution of the bank holding company.  Further, federal bank regulatory authorities have additional discretion to 
require a bank holding company to divest itself of any bank or nonbank subsidiary if the agency determ ines that divestiture may aid 
the depository institution’s financial condition.  

The Bank  

The Bank operates as a national banking association  incorporated under the laws of the United States a nd subject to examination by 
the Office of Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”). Deposits in the Bank are insured by the FDIC up to a maximum amount (generally 
$250,000 per depositor, subject to aggregation rule s). The OCC and the FDIC regulate or monitor virtua lly all areas of the Bank’s 
operations, including security devices and procedur es, adequacy of capitalization and loan loss reserv es, loans, investments, 
borrowings, deposits, mergers, issuances of securit ies, payment of dividends, interest rates payable o n deposits, interest rates or 
fees chargeable on loans, establishment of branches , corporate reorganizations, maintenance of books a nd records, and adequacy of 
staff training to carry on safe lending and deposit  gathering practices. The OCC requires the Bank to maintain certain capital 
ratios and imposes limitations on the Bank’s aggreg ate investment in real estate, bank premises, and f urniture and fixtures. The 
Bank is required by the OCC to prepare quarterly re ports on their financial condition and to conduct a n annual audit of their 
financial affairs in compliance with minimum standa rds and procedures prescribed by the OCC.  

Under FDICIA, all insured institutions must undergo  regular on-site examinations by their appropriate banking agency. The cost of 
examinations of insured depository institutions and  any affiliates may be assessed by the appropriate agency against each 
institution or affiliate as it deems necessary or a ppropriate. Insured institutions are required to su bmit annual reports to the 
FDIC and the appropriate agency (and state supervis or when applicable). FDICIA also directs the FDIC t o develop with other 
appropriate agencies a method for insured depositor y institutions to provide supplemental disclosure o f the estimated fair market 
value of assets and liabilities, to the extent feas ible and practicable, in any balance sheet, financi al statement, report of 
condition, or any other report of any insured depos itory institution. FDICIA also requires the federal  banking regulatory agencies 
to prescribe, by regulation, standards for all insu red depository institutions and depository institut ion holding companies 
relating, among other things, to: (i) internal cont rols, information systems, and audit systems; (ii) loan documentation; (iii) 
credit underwriting; (iv) interest rate risk exposu re; and (v) asset quality.  
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National banks and their holding companies which ha ve been chartered or registered or undergone a chan ge in control within the past 
two years or which have been deemed by the OCC or t he Federal Reserve Board, respectively, to be troub led institutions must give 
the OCC or the Federal Reserve Board, respectively,  thirty days prior notice of the appointment of any  senior executive officer or 
director. Within the thirty day period, the OCC or the Federal Reserve Board, as the case may be, may approve or disapprove any 
such appointment.  

Deposit Insurance . The FDIC establishes rates for the payment of pre miums by federally insured banks and thrifts for de posit 
insurance. A separate Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF”) a nd Savings Association Insurance Fund (“SAIF”) are maintained for commercial 
banks and thrifts, respectively, with insurance pre miums from the industry used to offset losses from insurance payouts when banks 
and thrifts fail. Since 1993, insured depository in stitutions like the Bank have paid for deposit insu rance under a risk-based 
premium system.  

Transactions With Affiliates and Insiders . The Bank is subject to Section 23A of the Federal  Reserve Act, which places limits on 
the amount of loans to, and certain other transacti ons with, affiliates, as well as on the amount of a dvances to third parties 
collateralized by the securities or obligations of affiliates. The aggregate of all covered transactio ns is limited in amount, as 
to any one affiliate, to 10% of the Bank’s capital and surplus and, as to all affiliates combined, to 20% of the Bank’ s capital and 
surplus. Furthermore, within the foregoing limitati ons as to amount, each covered transaction must mee t specified collateral 
requirements.  

The Bank is also subject to Section 23B of the Fede ral Reserve Act, which prohibits an institution fro m engaging in certain 
transactions with affiliates unless the transaction s are on terms substantially the same, or at least as favorable to such 
institution, as those prevailing at the time for co mparable transactions with nonaffiliated companies.  The Bank is subject to 
certain restrictions on extensions of credit to exe cutive officers, directors, certain principal share holders, and their related 
interests. Such extensions of credit (i) must be ma de on substantially the same terms, including inter est rates and collateral, as 
those prevailing at the time for comparable transac tions with third parties and (ii) must not involve more than the normal risk of 
repayment or present other unfavorable features.  

Dividends . A national bank may not pay dividends from its ca pital. All dividends must be paid out of undivided profits then on 
hand, after deducting expenses, including reserves for losses and bad debts. In addition, a national b ank is prohibited from 
declaring a dividend on its shares of common stock until its surplus equals its stated capital, unless  the bank has transferred to 
surplus no less than one-tenth of its net profits o f the preceding two consecutive half-year periods ( in the case of an annual 



dividend). The approval of the OCC is required if t he total of all dividends declared by a national ba nk in any calendar year 
exceeds the total of its net profits for that year combined with its retained net profits for the prec eding two years, less any 
required transfers to surplus. In addition, under F DICIA, the banks may not pay a dividend if, after p aying the dividend, the bank 
would be undercapitalized. See “Capital Regulations ” below.  

Branching . National banks are required by the National Bank Act to adhere to branch office banking laws applica ble to state banks 
in the states in which they are located. Under curr ent Mississippi law, banks may open branches throug hout Mississippi with the 
prior approval of the OCC. In addition, with prior regulatory approval, banks are able to acquire exis ting banking operations in 
Mississippi. Furthermore, federal legislation has r ecently been passed which permits interstate branch ing. The new law permits out 
of state acquisitions by bank holding companies (su bject to veto by new state law), interstate branchi ng by banks if allowed by 
state law, interstate merging by banks, and de novo  branching by national banks if allowed by state la w. See “Recent Legislative 
Developments.”  

Community Reinvestment Act . The Community Reinvestment Act requires that, in connection with examinations of financial 
institutions within their respective jurisdictions,  the Federal Reserve, the FDIC, the OCC, or the Off ice of Thrift Supervision 
shall evaluate the record of the financial institut ions in meeting the credit needs of their local com munities, including low and 
moderate income neighborhoods, consistent with the safe and sound operation of those institutions. The se factors are also 
considered in evaluating mergers, acquisitions, and  applications to open a branch or facility.  
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Other Regulations . Interest and certain other charges collected or c ontracted for by the Banks are subject to state usu ry laws and 
certain federal laws concerning interest rates. The  Bank’ s loan operations are subject to certain federal la ws applicable to credit 
transactions, such as the federal Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disclosures of credit terms to consu mer borrowers; the Home 
Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975, requiring financia l institutions to provide information to enable the  public and public officials 
to determine whether a financial institution is ful filling its obligation to help meet the housing nee ds community it serves; the 
Equal Credit Opportunity Act, prohibiting discrimin ation on the basis of creed or other prohibited fac tors in extending credit; the 
Fair Credit Reporting Act of 1978, governing the us e and provision of information to credit reporting agencies; the Fair Debt 
Collection Act, concerning the manner in which cons umer debts may be collected by collection agencies;  and the rules and 
regulations of the various federal agencies charged  with the responsibility of implementing such feder al laws. The deposit 
operations of the Bank also are subject to the Righ t to Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to  maintain confidentiality of 
consumer financial records and prescribes procedure s for complying with administrative subpoenas of fi nancial records, and the 
Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E issu ed by the Federal Reserve Board to implement that A ct, which governs automatic 
deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts a nd customers’ rights and liabilities arising from t he use of automated teller 
machines and other electronic banking services.  

Capital Regulations . The federal bank regulatory authorities have adop ted risk- based capital guidelines for banks and bank holding  
companies that are designed to make regulatory capi tal requirements more sensitive to differences in r isk profile among banks and 
bank holding companies, account for off- balance sheet exposure, and minimize disincentives for holding liquid assets. The resulting 
capital ratios represent qualifying capital as a pe rcentage of total risk-weighted assets and off-bala nce sheet items. The 
guidelines are minimums, and the federal regulators  have noted that banks and bank holding companies c ontemplating significant 
expansion programs should not allow expansion to di minish their capital ratios and should maintain rat ios well in excess of the 
minimums. The current guidelines require all bank h olding companies and federally-regulated banks to m aintain a minimum risk-based 
total capital ratio equal to 8%, of which at least 4% must be Tier 1 capital. Tier 1 capital includes common shareholders’ equity, 
qualifying perpetual preferred stock, and minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsid iaries, but excludes goodwill 
and most other intangibles and excludes the allowan ce for loan and lease losses. Tier 2 capital includ es the excess of any 
preferred stock not included in Tier 1 capital, man datory convertible securities, hybrid capital instr uments, subordinated debt and 
intermediate term-preferred stock, and general rese rves for loan and lease losses up to 1.25% of risk- weighted assets.  

Under the guidelines, banks’ and bank holding compa nies’ assets are given risk-weights of 0%, 20%, 50%  and 100%. In addition, 
certain off-balance sheet items are given credit co nversion factors to convert them to asset equivalen t amounts to which an 
appropriate risk-weight will apply. These computati ons result in the total risk-weighted assets. Most loans are assigned to the 
100% risk category, except for first mortgage loans  fully secured by residential property and, under c ertain circumstances, 
residential construction loans, both of which carry  a 50% rating. Most investment securities are assig ned to the 20% category, 
except for municipal or state revenue bonds, which have a 50% rating, and direct obligations of or obl igations guaranteed by the 
United States Treasury or United States Government agencies, which have a 0% rating.  

The federal bank regulatory authorities have also i mplemented a leverage ratio, which is Tier 1 capita l as a percentage of average 
total assets less intangibles, to be used as a supp lement to the risk-based guidelines. The principal objective of the leverage 
ratio is to place a constraint on the maximum degre e to which a bank holding company may leverage its equity capital base. The 
minimum required leverage ratio for top-rated insti tutions is 3%, but most institutions are required t o maintain an additional 
cushion of at least 100 to 200 basis points.  

FDICIA established a capital-based regulatory schem e designed to promote early intervention for troubl ed banks and requires the 
FDIC to choose the least expensive resolution of ba nk failures. The capital-based regulatory framework  contains five categories of 
compliance with regulatory capital requirements, in cluding “well capitalized,” “adequately capitalized ,” “undercapitalized,” 
“significantly undercapitalized,” and “critically u ndercapitalized.” To qualify as a “well capitalized ” institution, a bank must 
have a leverage ratio of no less than 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based ratio of no less than 6%, and a total ri sk-based capital ratio of no 
less than 10%, and the Bank must not be under any o rder or directive from the appropriate regulatory a gency to meet and maintain a 
specific capital level. As of December 31, 2009, th e Company and The First, were qualified as “well ca pitalized.”  
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Under the FDICIA regulations, the applicable agency  can treat an institution as if it were in the next  lower category if the agency 
determines (after notice and an opportunity for hea ring) that the institution is in an unsafe or unsou nd condition or is engaging 
in an unsafe or unsound practice. The degree of reg ulatory scrutiny of a financial institution will in crease, and the permissible 
activities of the institution will decrease, as it moves downward through the capital categories. Inst itutions that fall into one 
of the three undercapitalized categories may be req uired to (i) submit a capital restoration plan; (ii ) raise additional capital; 
(iii) restrict their growth, deposit interest rates , and other activities; (iv) improve their manageme nt; (v) eliminate management 
fees; or (vi) divest themselves of all or part of t heir operations. Bank holding companies controlling  financial institutions can 
be called upon to boost the institutions’ capital a nd to partially guarantee the institutions’ perform ance under their capital 
restoration plans.  



These capital guidelines can affect the Company in several ways. If the Company continues to grow at a  rapid pace, a premature 
“squeeze” on capital could occur making a capital i nfusion necessary. The requirements could impact th e Company’s ability to pay 
dividends. The Company’s present capital levels are  more than adequate; however, rapid growth, poor lo an portfolio performance, or 
poor earnings performance could change the Company’ s capital position in a relatively short period of time.  

Failure to meet these capital requirements would me an that a bank would be required to develop and fil e a plan with its primary 
federal banking regulator describing the means and a schedule for achieving the minimum capital requir ements. In addition, such a 
bank would generally not receive regulatory approva l of any application that requires the consideratio n of capital adequacy, such 
as a branch or merger application, unless the Bank could demonstrate a reasonable plan to meet the cap ital requirement within a 
reasonable period of time.  

Enforcement Powers . FIRREA expanded and increased civil and criminal penalties available for use by the federal regulato ry 
agencies against depository institutions and certai n “institution-affiliated parties” (primarily inclu ding management, employees, 
and agents of a financial institution, independent contractors such as attorneys and accountants, and others who participate in the 
conduct of the financial institution’s affairs). Th ese practices can include the failure of an institu tion to timely file required 
reports; the filing of false or misleading informat ion; or the submission of inaccurate reports. Civil  penalties may be as high as 
$1,000,000 a day for such violations. Criminal pena lties for some financial institution crimes have be en increased to twenty years. 
In addition, regulators are provided with greater f lexibility to commence enforcement actions against institutions and institution-
affiliated parties. Possible enforcement actions in clude the termination of deposit insurance. Further more, FIRREA expanded the 
appropriate banking agencies’ power to issue cease and desist orders that may, among other things, req uire affirmative action to 
correct any harm resulting from a violation or prac tice, including restitution, reimbursement, indemni fications, or guarantees 
against loss. A financial institution may also be o rdered to restrict its growth, dispose of certain a ssets, rescind agreements or 
contracts, or take other actions as determined by t he ordering agency to be appropriate.  

Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies . The earnings of the Bank are affected by domestic  economic conditions and the monetary 
and fiscal policies of the United States government  and its agencies. The Federal Reserve Board’s mone tary policies have had, and 
are likely to continue to have, an important impact  on the operating results of commercial banks throu gh its power to implement 
national monetary policy in order, among other thin gs, to curb inflation or combat a recession. The mo netary policies of the 
Federal Reserve Board have major effects upon the l evels of bank loans, investments, and deposits thro ugh its open market 
operations in United States government securities a nd through its regulation of the discount rate on b orrowings of member banks and 
the reserve requirements against member bank deposi ts. It is not possible to predict the nature or imp act of future changes in 
monetary and fiscal policies.  

Significant Legislative Developments . On September 29, 1994, the federal government ena cted the Riegle- Neal Interstate Banking and 
Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the “Interstate B anking Act”). This Act became effective on Septembe r 29, 1995, and permits 
eligible bank holding companies in any state, with regulatory approval, to acquire banking organizatio ns in any other state. Since 
June 1, 1997, the Interstate Banking Act has allowe d banks with different home states to merge, unless  a particular state opts out 
of the statute. In addition, beginning June 1, 1997 , the Interstate Banking Act has permitted national  and state banks to establish 
de novo branches in another state if there is a law  in that state which applies equally to all banks a nd expressly permits all out-
of-state banks to establish de novo branches.  
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On November 12, 1999, the Gramm- Leach-Bliley Act o f 1999 (the “Financial Services Modernization Act”)  was signed into law. The 
Financial Services Modernization Act repeals the tw o affiliation provisions of the Glass- Steagall Act: Section 20, which restricted 
the affiliation of Federal Reserve Member Banks wit h firms “engaged principally” in specified securiti es activities; and Section 
32, which restricts officer, director, or employee interlocks between a member bank and any company or  person “primarily engaged” 
in specified securities activities. In addition, th e Financial Services Modernization Act also contain s provisions that expressly 
preempt any state law restricting the establishment  of financial affiliations, primarily related to in surance. The general effect 
of the law is to establish a comprehensive framewor k to permit affiliations among commercial banks, in surance companies, securities 
firms, and other financial service providers by rev ising and expanding the BHCA framework to permit a holding company system to 
engage in a full range of financial activities thro ugh a new entity known as a Financial Holding Compa ny. “Financial activities” is 
broadly defined to include not only banking, insura nce, and securities activities, but also merchant b anking and additional 
activities that the Federal Reserve, in consultatio n with the Secretary of the Treasury, determines to  be financial in nature, 
incidental to such financial activities, or complem entary activities that do not pose a substantial ri sk to the safety and 
soundness of depository institutions or the financi al system generally.  

         Generally, the Financial Services Moderniz ation Act: 
 
         •        Repeals historical restrictions o n, and eliminates many federal and state law barrie rs 
                  to, affiliations among banks, sec urities firms, insurance companies, and other 
                  financial service providers; 
 
         •        Provides a uniform framework for the functional regulation of the activities of bank s, 
                  savings institutions, and their h olding companies; 
 
         •        Broadens the activities that may be conducted by national banks, banking subsidiarie s 
                  of bank holding companies, and th eir financial subsidiaries; 
 
         •        Provides an enhanced framework fo r protecting the privacy of consumer information; 
 
         •        Adopts a number of provisions rel ated to the capitalization, membership, corporate 
                  governance, and other measures de signed to modernize the Federal Home Loan Bank syst em; 
 
         •        Modifies the laws governing the i mplementation of the Community Reinvestment Act 
                  ("CRA"); and 
 
         •        Addresses a variety of other lega l and regulatory issues affecting both day-to-day 
                  operations and long-term activiti es of financial institutions. 

In order for a bank holding company to take advanta ge of the ability to affiliate with other financial  services providers, that 
company must become a “Financial Holding Company” a s permitted under an amendment to the BHCA. To beco me a Financial Holding 
Company, the company would file a declaration with the Federal Reserve, electing to engage in activiti es permissible for Financial 
Holding Companies and certifying that it is eligibl e to do so because all of its insured depository in stitution subsidiaries are 
well-capitalized and well-managed. In addition, the  Federal Reserve must also determine that each insu red depository institution 
subsidiary of the Company has at least a “satisfact ory” CRA rating.  
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The Financial Services Modernization Act also permi ts national banks to engage in expanded activities through the formation of 
financial subsidiaries. A national bank may have a subsidiary engaged in any activity authorized for n ational banks directly or any 
financial activity, except for insurance underwriti ng, insurance investments, real estate investment o r development, or merchant 
banking, which may only be conducted through a subs idiary of a Financial Holding Company. Financial ac tivities include all 
activities permitted under new sections of the BHCA  or permitted by regulation.  

A national bank seeking to have a financial subsidi ary, and each of its depository institution affilia tes, must be “well-
capitalized” and “well-managed.” The total assets o f all financial subsidiaries may not exceed the les ser of 45% of a bank’s total 
assets, or $50 billion. A national bank must exclud e from its assets and equity all equity investments , including retained 
earnings, in a financial subsidiary. The assets of the subsidiary may not be consolidated with the ban k’s assets. The bank must 
also have policies and procedures to assess financi al subsidiary risk and protect the bank from such r isks and potential 
liabilities.  

The Financial Services Modernization Act also inclu des a new section of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act governing subsidiaries of 
state banks that engage in “activities as principal  that would only be permissible” for a national ban k to conduct in a financial 
subsidiary. It expressly preserves the ability of a  state bank to retain all existing subsidiaries. Be cause Mississippi permits 
commercial banks chartered by the state to engage i n any activity permissible for national banks, the state bank competitors of The 
First will be permitted to form subsidiaries to eng age in the activities authorized by the Financial S ervices Modernization Act, to 
the same extent as The First. In order to form a fi nancial subsidiary, a state bank must be well-capit alized, and the state bank 
would be subject to the same capital deduction, ris k management and affiliate transaction rules as app licable to national banks.  

The Company and the Bank do not believe that the Fi nancial Services Modernization Act will have a mate rial adverse effect on 
operations in the near-term. However, to the extent  that it permits banks, securities firms, and insur ance companies to affiliate, 
the financial services industry may experience furt her consolidation. The Financial Services Moderniza tion Act is intended to grant 
to community banks certain powers as a matter of ri ght that larger institutions have accumulated on an  ad hoc basis. Nevertheless, 
this act may have the result of increasing the amou nt of competition that the Company and the Bank fac e from larger institutions 
and other types of companies offering financial pro ducts, many of which may have substantially more fi nancial resources than the 
Company and the Bank.  

In 2001, the Uniting and Strengthening America by P roviding Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept an d Obstruct Terrorism Act of 
2001 (USA Patriot Act) was signed into law. The USA  Patriot Act broadened the application of anti-mone y laundering regulations to 
apply to additional types of financial institutions , such as broker- dealers, and strengthened the ability of the U.S. G overnment to 
detect and prosecute international money laundering  and the financing of terrorism. The principal prov isions of Title III of the 
USA Patriot Act require that regulated financial in stitutions, including state member banks: (i) estab lish an anti- money laundering 
program that includes training and audit components ; (ii) comply with regulations regarding the verifi cation of the identity of any 
person seeking to open an account; (iii) take addit ional required precautions with non-U.S. owned acco unts; and (iv) perform 
certain verification and certification of money lau ndering risk for their foreign correspondent bankin g relationships. The USA 
Patriot Act also expanded the conditions under whic h funds in a U.S. interbank account may be subject to forfeiture and increased 
the penalties for violation of anti- money laundering regulations. Failure of a financia l institution to comply with the USA Patriot 
Act ’s requirements could have serious legal and reputa tional consequences for the institution. The Bank h as adopted policies, 
procedures and controls to address compliance with the requirements of the USA Patriot Act under the e xisting regulations and will 
continue to revise and update its policies, procedu res and controls to reflect changes required by the  USA Patriot Act and 
implementing regulations.  

In July 2002, Congress enacted the Sarbanes-Oxley A ct of 2002, which addresses, among other issues, co rporate governance, auditing 
and accounting, executive compensation, and enhance d and timely disclosure of corporate information. S ection 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act, and regulations adopted by the SEC requi re the Company to include in its Annual Report, a r eport stating management’s 
responsibility to establish and maintain adequate i nternal controls over financial reporting and manag ement’s conclusion on the 
effectiveness of the internal controls at year end.  Additionally, the Company’s independent registered  public accounting firm is 
required to attest to and report on management’s ev aluation of internal control over financial reporti ng.  
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From time to time, various bills are introduced in the United States Congress with respect to the regu lation of financial 
institutions. Certain of these proposals, if adopte d, could significantly change the regulation of ban ks and the financial services 
industry. The Company cannot predict whether any of  these proposals will be adopted or, if adopted, ho w these proposals would 
affect the Company.  

Recent Legislative and Regulatory Initiatives to Ad dress Financial and Economic Crises. The Congress, Treasury Department and the 
federal banking regulators, including the FDIC, hav e taken broad action since early September, 2008 to  address volatility in the 
U.S. banking system. See “Legislative and Regulator y Initiatives to Address Financial and Economic Cri ses” above.  

ITEM 1A.      RISK FACTORS 

Making or continuing an investment in securities, i ncluding the Company’s Common Stock, involves certa in risks that you should 
carefully consider. The risks and uncertainties des cribed below are not the only risks that may have a  material adverse effect on 
the Company. Additional risks and uncertainties als o could adversely affect the Company’s business and  results of operations. If 
any of the following risks actually occur, our busi ness, financial condition or results of operations could be affected, the market 
price for your securities could decline, and you co uld lose all or a part of your investment. Further,  to the extent that any of 
the information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K constitutes forward-looking statements, t he risk factors set forth 
below also are cautionary statements identifying im portant factors that could cause the Company’s actu al results to differ 
materially from those expressed in any forward-look ing statements made by or on behalf of the Company.   

We may be vulnerable to certain sectors of the econ omy  

A portion of the loan portfolio is secured by real estate. If the economy deteriorated and depressed r eal estate values beyond a 
certain point, that collateral value of the portfol io and the revenue stream from those loans could co me under stress and possibly 
require additional loan loss accruals. Our ability to dispose of foreclosed real estate at prices abov e the respective carrying 
values could also be impinged, causing additional l osses.  



Difficult market conditions have adversely affected  the industry in which we operate  

The capital and credit markets have been experienci ng volatility and disruption for more than two year s, causing volatility and 
disruption to reach unprecedented levels. Dramatic declines in the housing market over the past year, with falling home prices and 
increasing foreclosures, unemployment and under-emp loyment, have negatively impacted the credit perfor mance of mortgage loans and 
resulted in significant write-downs of asset values  by financial institutions, including government-sp onsored entities as well as 
major commercial and investment banks. Reflecting c oncern about the stability of the financial markets  generally and the strength 
of counterparties, many lenders have reduced or cea sed providing funding to borrowers, including to ot her financial institutions. 
This market turmoil and tightening of credit have l ed to an increased level of commercial and consumer  delinquencies, lack of 
consumer confidence and widespread reduction of bus iness activity generally. A worsening of these cond itions would likely 
exacerbate the adverse effects of these difficult m arket conditions on us and others in the financial institution industry. Also, 
the economic downturn could exacerbate our exposure  to credit risk, particularly in our real estate ma rkets, as lower home prices 
and increased foreclosures may result in higher cha rge-offs and delinquencies.  

General economic conditions in the areas where our operations or loans are concentrated may adversely affect our customers’ ability 
to meet their obligations  

A sudden or severe downturn in the economy in the g eographic markets we serve in the state of Mississi ppi may affect the ability of 
our customers to meet loan payments obligations on a timely basis. The local economic conditions in th ese areas have a significant 
impact on our commercial, real estate, and construc tion loans, the ability of borrowers to repay these  loans and the value of the 
collateral securing such loans. Changes resulting i n adverse economic conditions of our market areas c ould negatively impact the 
financial results of the Company’s banking operatio ns and its profitability.  

Additionally, adverse economic changes may cause cu stomers to withdraw deposit balances, thereby causi ng a strain on our liquidity. 
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We are subject to a risk of rapid and significant c hanges in market interest rates  

Our assets and liabilities are primarily monetary i n nature, and as a result we are subject to signifi cant risks tied to changes in 
interest rates. Our ability to operate profitably i s largely dependent upon net interest income. Unexp ected movement in interest 
rates markedly changing the slope of the current yi eld curve could cause net interest margins to decre ase, subsequently decreasing 
net interest income. In addition, such changes coul d adversely affect the valuation of our assets and liabilities.  

At present the Company ’s one-year interest rate sensitivity position is s lightly asset sensitive, but a gradual increase in 
interest rates during the next twelve months should  not have a significant impact on net interest inco me during that period. 
However, as with most financial institutions, the C ompany’ s results of operations are affected by changes in interest rates and the 
Company’s ability to manage this risk. The differen ce between interest rates charged on interest-earni ng assets and interest rates 
paid on interest- bearing liabilities may be affected by changes in m arket interest rates, changes in relationships betw een interest 
rate indices, and/or changes in the relationships b etween long-term and short-term market interest rat es. A change in this 
difference might result in an increase in interest expense relative to interest income, or a decrease in the Company’s interest 
rate spread.  

Certain changes in interest rates, inflation, or th e financial markets could affect demand for our pro ducts and our ability to 
deliver products efficiently  

Loan originations, and potentially loan revenues, c ould be adversely impacted by sharply rising intere st rates. Conversely, sharply 
falling rates could increase prepayments within our  securities portfolio lowering interest earnings fr om those investments. An 
unanticipated increase in inflation could cause ope rating costs related to salaries and benefits, tech nology, and supplies to 
increase at a faster pace than revenues.  

The fair market value of the securities portfolio a nd the investment income from these securities also  fluctuate depending on 
general economic and market conditions. In addition , actual net investment income and/or cash flows fr om investments that carry 
prepayment risk, such as mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities, may differ from those anti cipated at the time of 
investment as a result of interest rate fluctuation s.  

Changes in the policies of monetary authorities and  other government action could adversely affect pro fitability  

The results of operations of the Company are affect ed by credit policies of monetary authorities, part icularly the Federal Reserve 
Board. The instruments of monetary policy employed by the Federal Reserve Board include open market op erations in U.S. government 
securities, changes in the discount rate or the fed eral funds rate on bank borrowings and changes in r eserve requirements against 
bank deposits. In view of changing conditions in th e national economy and in the money markets, partic ularly in light of the 
continuing threat of terrorist attacks and the curr ent military operations in the Middle East, we cann ot predict possible future 
changes in interest rates, deposit levels, loan dem and or the Company’s business and earnings. Further more, the actions of the 
United States government and other governments in r esponding to such terrorist attacks or the military  operations in the Middle 
East may result in currency fluctuations, exchange controls, market disruption and other adverse effec ts.  

Natural disasters could affect our ability to opera te  

Our market areas are susceptible to natural disaste rs such as hurricanes. Natural disasters can disrup t operations, result in 
damage to properties and negatively affect the loca l economies in which we operate. The Company cannot  predict whether or to what 
extent damage caused by future hurricanes will affe ct operations or the economies in our market areas,  but such weather events 
could cause a decline in loan originations, a decli ne in the value or destruction of properties securi ng the loans and an increase 
in the risk of delinquencies, foreclosures or loan losses.  
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Greater loan losses than expected may adversely aff ect our earnings  

The Company as lender is exposed to the risk that i ts customers will be unable to repay their loans in  accordance with their terms 
and that any collateral securing the payment of the ir loans may not be sufficient to assure repayment.  Credit losses are inherent 



in the business of making loans and could have a ma terial adverse effect on operating results. Credit risk with respect to its real 
estate and construction loan portfolio will relate principally to the creditworthiness of corporations  and the value of the real 
estate serving as security for the repayment of loa ns. Credit risk with respect to its commercial and consumer loan portfolio will 
relate principally to the general creditworthiness of businesses and individuals within our local mark ets.  

The Company makes various assumptions and judgments  about the collectibility of its loan portfolio and  provides an allowance for 
estimated loan losses based on a number of factors.  The Company believes that its current allowance fo r loan losses is adequate. 
However, if our assumptions or judgments prove to b e incorrect, the allowance for loan losses may not be sufficient to cover actual 
loan losses. We may have to increase the allowance in the future in response to the request of one of its primary banking 
regulators, to adjust for changing conditions and a ssumptions, or as a result of any deterioration in the quality of the loan 
portfolio. The actual amount of future provisions f or loan losses cannot be determined at this time an d may vary from the amounts 
of past provisions.  

The First Bancshares may need to rely on the financ ial markets to provide needed capital  

The First Bancshares’ Common Stock is listed and tr aded on the NASDAQ stock market. Although the Compa ny anticipates that its 
capital resources will be adequate for the foreseea ble future to meet its capital requirements, at tim es we may depend on the 
liquidity of the NASDAQ stock market to raise equit y capital. If the market should fail to operate, or  if conditions in the capital 
markets are adverse, First Bancshares may be constr ained in raising capital. Should these risks materi alize, the ability to further 
expand its operations through internal growth may b e limited.  

We are subject to regulation by various Federal and  State entities  

The Company is subject to the regulations of the Se curities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), the Federal Reserve Board, the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation, and the OCC. New reg ulations issued by these agencies may adversely aff ect First Bancshares’ ability 
to carry on its business activities. First Bancshar es is subject to various Federal and state laws and  certain changes in these 
laws and regulations may adversely affect operation s.  

The Company is also subject to the accounting rules  and regulations of the SEC and the Financial Accou nting Standards Board. 
Changes in accounting rules could adversely affect the reported financial statements or results of ope rations of First Bancshares 
and may also require extraordinary efforts or addit ional costs to implement. Any of these laws or regu lations may be modified or 
changed from time to time, and we cannot be assured  that such modifications or changes will not advers ely affect the Company.  

We engage in acquisitions of other businesses from time to time  

On occasion, the Company will engage in acquisition s of other businesses. Acquisitions may result in c ustomer and employee 
turnover, thus increasing the cost of operating the  new businesses. The acquired companies may also ha ve legal contingencies, 
beyond those that First Bancshares is aware of, tha t could result in unexpected costs.  

We are subject to industry competition which may ha ve an impact upon its success  

The profitability of the Company depends on its abi lity to compete successfully. We operate in a highl y competitive financial 
services environment. Certain competitors are large r and may have more resources than we do. We face c ompetition in our regional 
market areas from other commercial banks, savings a nd loan associations, credit unions, internet banks , finance companies, mutual 
funds, insurance companies, brokerage and investmen t banking firms, and other financial intermediaries  that offer similar services. 
Some of the nonbank competitors are not subject to the same extensive regulations that govern the Comp any or the Bank and may have 
greater flexibility in competing for business.  
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Another competitive factor is that the financial se rvices market, including banking services, is under going rapid changes with 
frequent introductions of new technology-driven pro ducts and services. Our future success may depend, in part, on our ability to 
use technology competitively to provide products an d services that provide convenience to customers an d create additional 
efficiencies in operations.  

Future issuances of additional securities could res ult in dilution of shareholders’ ownership  

The Company may determine from time to time to issu e additional securities to raise additional capital , support growth, or to make 
acquisitions. Further, the Company may issue stock options or other stock grants to retain and motivat e our employees. Such 
issuances of Company securities will dilute the own ership interests of the Company’s shareholders.  

Anti-takeover laws and certain agreements and chart er provisions may adversely affect share value  

Certain provisions of state and federal law and the  Company’s articles of incorporation may make it mo re difficult for someone to 
acquire control of the Company. Under federal law, subject to certain exemptions, a person, entity, or  group must notify the 
federal banking agencies before acquiring 10% or mo re of the outstanding voting stock of a bank holdin g company, including The 
First Bancshares’ shares. Banking agencies review t he acquisition to determine if it will result in a change of control. The 
banking agencies have 60 days to act on the notice,  and take into account several factors, including t he resources of the acquiror 
and the antitrust effects of the acquisition. There  also are Mississippi statutory provisions and prov isions in the Company’s 
articles of incorporation that may be used to delay  or block a takeover attempt. As a result, these st atutory provisions and 
provisions in the Company’s articles of incorporati on could result in the Company being less attractiv e to a potential acquiror.  

Securities issued by the Company, including First B ancshares’ Common Stock, are not FDIC insured  

Securities issued by the Company, including The Fir st Bancshares’ Common Stock, are not savings or dep osit accounts or other 
obligations of any bank and are not insured by the FDIC, the Deposit Insurance Fund, or any other gove rnmental agency or 
instrumentality, or any private insurer, and are su bject to investment risk, including the possible lo ss of principal.  

There can be no assurance that recently enacted leg islation will stabilize the U.S. financial system  

On October 3, 2008, President Bush signed into law the EESA. The legislation was the result of a propo sal by the Treasury in 
response to the financial crises affecting the bank ing system and financial markets and threats to inv estment banks and other 
financial institutions. Pursuant to the EESA, the T reasury was given the authority to, among other thi ngs, purchase up to $700 



billion of mortgages, mortgage-backed securities an d certain other financial instruments from financia l institutions for the 
purpose of stabilizing and providing liquidity to t he U.S. financial markets. On October 14, 2008, the  Treasury announced the 
Capital Purchase Program, a program under the EESA pursuant to which it would purchase senior preferre d stock and warrants to 
purchase common stock from participating financial institutions. On November 21, 2008, the FDIC adopte d a Final rule with respect 
to its Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program pursua nt to which the FDIC can guarantee certain “newly-i ssued unsecured debt” of 
banks and certain holding companies and also guaran tee, on an unlimited basis, noninterest-bearing ban k transaction accounts. On 
February 17, 2009, President Obama signed into law the ARRA. The purposes of the legislation are to pr eserve and create jobs, to 
assist those most impacted by the recession, to pro vide investments to increase economic efficiency in  health services, to invest 
in transportation, environmental protection and oth er infrastructure, and to stabilize local and state  governments.  

Each of these programs was implemented to help stab ilize our economy and financial system. There can b e no assurance, however, as 
to the actual impact that the EESA and its implemen ting regulations, the Capital Purchase Program, the  FDIC programs, or any other 
governmental program will have on the financial mar kets. The failure of the EESA, the ARRA or the U.S.  government to stabilize the 
financial markets and a continuation or worsening o f current financial market conditions could materia lly and adversely affect the 
Company’s business, financial condition, and result s of operations, access to credit or the trading pr ice of the Company’s common 
stock.  
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The failure of other financial institutions could a dversely affect the Company  

The Company’s ability to engage in routine funding transactions could be adversely affected by the act ions and potential failures 
of other financial institutions. Financial institut ions are interrelated as a result of trading, clear ing, counterparty and other 
relationships. As a result, defaults by, or even ru mors or concerns about, one or more financial insti tutions or the financial 
services industry generally have led to market-wide  liquidity problems and could lead to losses or def aults by the Company or by 
other institutions.  

Concern by customers over deposit insurance may cau se a decrease in deposits and changes in the mix of  funding sources available to 
the Company  

With recent increased concerns about bank failures,  customers increasingly are concerned about the ext ent to which their deposits 
are insured by the FDIC. Customers may withdraw dep osits in an effort to ensure that the amount they h ave on deposit with their 
bank is fully insured and some may seek deposit pro ducts or other bank savings and investment products  that are collateralized. 
Decreases in deposits and changes in the mix of fun ding sources may adversely affect the Company’s fun ding costs and net income.  

Evaluation of investment securities for other-than- temporary impairment involves subjective determinat ions and could materially 
impact the Company’s results of operations and fina ncial condition  

The evaluation of impairments is a quantitative and  qualitative process, which is subject to risks and  uncertainties, and is 
intended to determine whether declines in the fair value of investment should be recognized in current  period earnings. The risks 
and uncertainties include changes in general econom ic conditions, the issuers’ financial condition or future recovery prospects, 
the effects of changes in interest rates or credit spreads and the expected recovery period. Estimatin g future cash flows involves 
incorporating information received from third-party  sources and making internal assumptions and judgme nts regarding the future 
performance of the underlying collateral and assess ing the probability that an adverse change in futur e cash flows has occurred. 
The determination of the amount of other-than-tempo rary impairments is based upon the Company’ s quarterly evaluation and assessment 
of known and inherent risks associated with the res pective asset class. Such evaluations and assessmen ts are revised as conditions 
change and new information becomes available.  

Additionally, the Company ’ s management considers a wide range of factors abou t the security issuer and uses its reasonable judgm ent 
in evaluating the cause of the decline in the estim ated fair value of the security and in assessing th e prospects for recovery. 
Inherent in management’ s evaluation of the security are assumptions and es timates about the operations of the issuer and its future 
earnings potential. Impairments to the carrying val ue of our investment securities may need to be take n in the future, which would 
have a material adverse effect on our results of op erations and financial condition.  

The Company may be required to pay additional insur ance premiums to the FDIC, which could negatively i mpact earnings  

Recent insured institution failures, as well as det erioration in banking and economic conditions, have  significantly increased FDIC 
loss provisions, resulting in a decline in the desi gnated reserve ratio to historical lows. The FDIC e xpects a higher rate of 
insured institution failures in the next few years compared to recent years; thus, the reserve ratio m ay continue to decline. In 
addition, the limit on FDIC coverage has been incre ased to $250,000 through December 31, 2013. These d evelopments have caused the 
premiums assessed to the Company by the FDIC to inc rease.  

The Company is a participant in the FDIC Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program. Participating in this program requires the payment 
of additional insurance premiums to the FDIC.  

16  

Further, depending upon any future losses that the FDIC insurance fund may suffer, there can be no ass urance that there will not be 
additional premium increases in order to replenish the fund. The FDIC may need to set a higher base ra te schedule or impose special 
assessments due to future financial institution fai lures and updated failure and loss projections. Pot entially higher FDIC 
assessment rates than those currently projected cou ld have an adverse impact on the Company’s results of operations.  

The Company participates in the U.S. Treasury's Capital Purchase Program 

     o   The Company received $5,000,000 in funding  under the Capital Purchase Program in exchange for  
         preferred stock and preferred stock warran ts during 2009.  Participation in this program 
         constrains the Company's ability to raise dividends and repurchase equity securities and also  
         places certain constraints on executive co mpensation arrangements. The increased funding 
         provides assurance that the Company can ma intain its minimum regulatory capital ratios in the  
         face of future large real estate-related l osses.  The Company will have to repay these funds by 
         raising capital within the next four years  to keep its dividend costs from increasing to 9% p er 
         annum. 



 
     o   The rules that govern the Capital Purchase  Program include restrictions on certain compensati on 
         to executive officers and a number of othe rs in the Company. Among other things, these rules 
         include a prohibition on golden parachute payments, a prohibition on providing tax gross-ups,  a 
         bonus claw-back provision, and a prohibiti on on paying any bonus payment to the Company's mos t 
         highly compensated employees. It is possib le that compensation restrictions imposed by the 
         Capital Purchase Program and the American Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 2009 could impede 
         our ability to attract and retain qualifie d executive officers. 
 
     o   Our participation in the Capital Purchase Program limits our quarterly dividend payments to n o 
         more than $.15 per share through the first  quarter of 2012 without prior regulatory approval.  
         Our ability to repurchase our common stock  is also restricted. 
 
     o   Since the Capital Purchase Program was par t of legislation that has the reputation of being 
         passed as a bailout of the financial indus try, participation in the program could also create  
         some reputational risk. This reputation of  the program could impede the Company's ability to 
         attract business in competition with other  financial institutions that did not participate. 
         This reputational risk could also impede t he Company's ability to attract and retain qualifie d 
         executive officers. 

As a result of the Company’s participation in the C apital Purchase Program (CPP), the Company may face  additional regulation and 
cannot predict the cost or effects of compliance at  this time  

In connection with the Company’s participation in t he CPP, the Company and the Bank may face additiona l regulations and/or 
reporting requirements, including, but not limited to, the following:  

          o       Section 5.3 of the standardized S ecurities Purchase Agreement that the Company enter ed into 
                  with the Treasury provides, in pa rt, that the Treasury "may unilaterally amend any 
                  provision of this Agreement to th e extent required to comply with any changes after 
                  the Signing Date in applicable fe deral statutes."  This provision could give Congres s 
                  the ability to impose "after-the- fact" terms and conditions on participants in the 
                  CPP.  As a participant in the CPP , the Company would be subject to any such 
                  retroactive legislation.  The Com pany cannot predict whether or in what form any 
                  proposed regulation or statute wi ll be adopted or the extent to which its business m ay 
                  be affected by any new regulation  or statute. 
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ITEM 1B.      UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

None  

ITEM 2.      PROPERTIES 

The First has a main office located west of the cit y of Hattiesburg, Mississippi, in Lamar County. The  main office is located in a 
13,000 square foot facility which the Company const ructed and opened in January 1997 on a two acre plo t of land at the southwest 
corner of U.S. Highway 98 and Old Highway 11. The F irst also has a branch office located on Highway 15  North in the city of Laurel, 
Mississippi, one on Highway 589 in the city of Purv is, Mississippi, which is in Lamar County, a fourth  office in a 3,300 square 
foot facility located at the intersection of Lincol n Road and South 28th Avenue in Hattiesburg, a fift h office located in an 11,700 
square foot building located at 110 S. 40th Ave. in  Hattiesburg, a sixth office located on Hwy 43 Sout h, Picayune, MS in a 3,800 
sq. ft. facility , a seventh office located at 1126  Jackson Ave in Pascagoula, MS, an eighth office lo cated at Hwy 90 in Bay St. 
Louis, MS, a ninth location on Border Ave. in Wiggi ns, MS, as well as a tenth location located at Hwy 49 and O’Neal Rd. in 
Gulfport, MS.  

The Company believes that the Bank’s facilities wil l adequately serve its needs.  

ITEM 3.      LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

From time to time the Company and/or the Bank may b e named as defendants in various lawsuits arising o ut of the normal course of 
business. On October 8, 2007, The First Bancshares,  Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiary, The First , A National Banking 
Association (the “Bank”) were formally named as defendants and serve d with a First Amended Complaint in litigation styl ed Nick D. 
Welch v. Oak Grove Land Company, Inc., Fred McMurry , David E. Johnson, J. Douglas Seidenburg, The Firs t, a National Banking 
Association, The First Bancshares, Inc., and John D oes 1 through 10, Civil Action No. 2006 -236- CV4, pending in the Circuit Court of 
Jones County, Mississippi, Second Judicial District  (the “First Amended Complaint”).  

The allegations by Welch against the Company and th e Bank include counts of 1) Intentional Misrepresen tation and Omission; 2) 
Negligent Misrepresentation and/or Omission; 3) Bre ach of Fiduciary Duty; 4) Breach of Duty of Good Fa ith and Fair Dealing; and 5) 
Civil Conspiracy. The First Amended Complaint serve d by Welch on October 8, 2007 added the Company and  the Bank as defendants in 
this ongoing litigation. The Plaintiff seeks damage s from all the defendants, including $2,957,385, an nual dividends for the year 
2006 in the amount of $.30 per share, punitive dama ges, and attorneys’ fees and costs, and is more ful ly described in Form 8-K 
filed by the Company on October 10, 2007. The Compa ny and the Bank both deny any liability to Welch, a nd they intend to defend 
vigorously against this lawsuit.  

The Defendants removed the case to the United State s District Court for the Southern District of Missi ssippi, Hattiesburg Division, 
on March 12, 2008, based upon the Court’s federal q uestion jurisdiction. On April 11, 2008, the Plaint iff filed a Motion to Remand 
the case to the Circuit Court of Jones County, Miss issippi. The Motion to Remand was granted, and the case is currently pending in 
the Circuit Court of Jones County, Mississippi, Sec ond Judicial District. The case is currently set fo r trial on June 14, 2010, in 
the Circuit Court of the Second Judicial District o f Jones County, Mississippi.  

On January 29, 2010, the Circuit Court of the Secon d Judicial District of Jones County, Mississippi en tered an Agreed Order 
granting Plaintiff’ s motion to amend his complaint to assert a declara tory judgment action against Kansas Bankers Surety Company on 
the question of insurance coverage.  

ITEM 4.      RESERVED 
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PART II  

ITEM 5.     MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS  
                    AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 

In response to this Item, the information contained  on page 62 of the Company’s Annual Report to Share holders for the year ended 
December 31, 2009, attached hereto as Exhibit 13, i s incorporated herein by reference.  

ITEM 6.      SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

In response to this Item, the information contained  on page 7 of Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the year ended December 
31, 2009, attached hereto as Exhibit 13, is incorpo rated herein by reference.  

ITEM 7.      MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS O F FINANCIAL CONDITION AND  
                    RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  
 
In response to this Item, the information contained  on pages 6 through 27 of the Company's Annual Repo rt to Shareholders for the 
year ended December 31, 2009, attached hereto as Ex hibit 13, is incorporated herein by reference.  

ITEM 7A.      QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSU RES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

Not applicable.  

ITEM 8.      FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

In response to this Item, the information contained  on pages 29 through 61 of the Company's Annual Rep ort to Shareholders for the 
year ended December 31, 2009, attached hereto as Ex hibit 13, is incorporated herein by reference.  

ITEM 9.      CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCO UNTANTS ON  
                    ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLO SURE 

Not applicable.  

ITEM 9A(T).      CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

The Company’s principal executive officer and princ ipal financial officer have concluded, based upon t heir evaluation of the 
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2009 that the Company’s disclosure con trols and procedures were 
effective. During the quarter ended December 31, 20 09, no changes have occurred in the Company’s inter nal control over financial 
reporting that have materially affected or are reas onably likely to materially affect the Company’ s internal control over financial 
reporting.  

The First Bancshares, Inc.  
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financ ial Reporting  

Management of The First Bancshares, Inc. and subsid iary (the “Company”) is responsible for establishin g and maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting. Internal  control over financial reporting is a process desi gned to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial re porting and the preparation of financial statements  for external purposes in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  

Under the supervision and with the participation of  management, including the principal executive offi cer and principal financial 
officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the  effectiveness of internal control over financial r eporting based on the 
framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framewor k issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatio ns of the Treadway 
Commission. Based on this evaluation, management of  the Company has concluded the Company maintained e ffective internal control 
over financial reporting, as such term is defined i n Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 12a-15(f), as of December 31, 2009.  
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Internal control over financial reporting cannot pr ovide absolute assurance of achieving financial rep orting objectives because of 
its inherent limitations. Internal control over fin ancial reporting is a process that involves human d iligence and compliance and 
is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns res ulting from human failures. Internal control over f inancial reporting can also 
be circumvented by collusion or improper management  override. Because of such limitations, there is a risk that material 
misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a  timely basis by internal control over financial re porting. These inherent 
limitations, however, are known features of the fin ancial reporting process. It is possible, therefore , to design into the process 
safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this ri sk.  

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s independent registered publ ic accounting firm regarding 
internal control over financial reporting. The Comp any’ s registered public accounting firm was not require d to issue an attestation 
report on internal controls over financial reportin g pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and  Exchange Commission.  

/s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr.                                /s/  Dee Dee Lowery 
-------------------------------                             ---------------------------------------- 
CEO and President                                           Executive VP and Chief Financial Officer 
March 25, 2010                                              March 25, 2010 

ITEM 9B.      OTHER INFORMATION 

Not applicable.  

PART III  



ITEM 10.      DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF T HE REGISTRANT 

In response to this Item, the information contained  under the captions, “Election of Directors” and “A dditional Information 
Concerning Directors and Officers” of the Company’s  Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Sharehol ders to be held on May 27, 
2010, is incorporated herein by reference.  

Code of Ethics  

The Company’s Board of Directors has adopted a Code  of Ethics that applies to the Company’s principal executive officer, principal 
financial officer, principal accounting officer, or  persons performing similar functions. A copy of th is Code of Ethics can be 
found at the Company’s internet website at www.thef irstbank.com. The Company intends to disclose any a mendments to its Code of 
Ethics, and any waiver from a provision of the Code  of Ethics granted to the Company’s principal execu tive officer, principal 
financial officer, principal accounting officer, or  persons performing similar functions, on the Compa ny’s internet website within 
five business days following such amendment or waiv er. The information contained on or connected to th e Company’s internet website 
is not incorporated by reference into this Form 10- K and should not be considered part of this or any other report that we file 
with or furnish to the SEC.  

Audit Committee  

The information contained under the caption “Commit tees of the Board of Directors” of the Company’s Pr oxy Statement for the Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 27, 2010,  is incorporated herein by reference. The Board of Directors has determined that 
there is at least one independent audit committee f inancial expert, J. Douglas Seidenburg, serving on the Audit Committee, as the 
terms independent and audit committee financial exp ert are used in pertinent Securities and Exchange C ommission laws and 
regulations.  
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Corporate Governance  

The information contained under the caption “Additi onal Information Concerning Directors and Officers”  of the Company’s Proxy 
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to  be held on May 27, 2010, is incorporated herein by  reference.  

As a CPP/TARP recipient the Company is required to have an Excessive Expenditure Policy. Such a policy  was adopted by the Company ’ s 
Board of Directors on July 23, 2009, and is posted on the Bank’s website at www.thefirstbank.com.  

ITEM 11.      EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

In response to this Item, the information contained  under the caption “Compensation Discussion and Ana lysis” of the Company’ s Proxy 
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to  be held on May 27, 2010, is incorporated herein by  reference.  

ITEM 12.     SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICI AL OWNERS AND  
                     MANAGEMENTAND RELATED STOCKHOL DER MATTERS 

In response to this Item, the information contained  under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain B eneficial Owners and 
Management” of the Company’s Proxy Statement for th e Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 27, 2010, is incorporated 
herein by reference.  

ITEM 13.      CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRA NSACTIONS 

In response to this Item, the information contained  under the caption “Certain Relationships and Relat ed Transactions” of the 
Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of  Shareholders to be held on May 27, 2010, is incorp orated herein by reference.  

ITEM 14.      PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICE S 

In response to this Item, the information contained  under the caption “Principal Accountant Fees and S ervices” of the Company’s 
Proxy Statement for the Annual meeting of Sharehold ers to be held on May 27, 2010, is incorporated her ein by reference.  

PART IV  

ITEM 15.      EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHE DULES 

The following exhibits are furnished (or incorporat ed by reference):  

   Exhibit Number          Description 
   --------------          ----------- 
 
         3.1               Amended and Restated Art icles of Incorporation (incorporated by reference t o 
                           Exhibit 3.1 to the Compa ny's Registration Statement No. 33-94288 on Form S- 1). 
 
         3.2               Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's Registrat ion 
                           Statement No. 33-94288 o n Form S-1). 
 
         4.1               Provisions in the Compan y's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws defining t he 
                           rights of holders of the  Company's Common Stock (incorporated by reference to 
                           Exhibit 4.1 to the Compa ny's Registration Statement No. 33-94288 on Form S- 1). 
 
         4.2               Form of Certificate of C ommon Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 .2 
                           to the Company's Registr ation Statement No. 33-94288 on Form S-1). 
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         10.5              Amended and restated emp loyment agreement dated November 20, 1995, by and 
                           between David E. Johnson  and the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhi bit 
                           10.7 of the Company's Fo rm 10-KSB for the fiscal  year ended December 31, 
                           1995, File No. 33-94288) . 
 
         10.6              First Bancshares, Inc. 1 997 Stock Option Plan as of March 18, 1997 
                           (incorporated by referen ce to Exhibit 10.7 of the Company's Form 10-KSB for  
                           the fiscal year ended De cember 31, 1996, File No. 33-94288). 
 
         10.7              Agreement to Repurchase Stock by and among The First Bancshares, Inc., Nick  
                           Welch and David Johnson  (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the 
                           Company's Registration S tatement No. 333-102908 on Form S-2). 
 
         13                The Company's 2009 Annua l Report 
 
         21                Subsidiaries of the Comp any 
 
         31                Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)  Certifications 
 
         32                Section 1350 Certificati ons 
 
         99.1              EESA Certification of CE O 
 
         99.2              EESA Certification of CF O 
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                                                SIGNATURES 
 
 
         In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report  
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, ther eunto duly authorized. 
 
                                                              THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
 
 
Date: March 25, 2010                                          By: /s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. 
                                                                 ----------------------------------- 
                                                                   M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. 
                                                                   Chief Executive Officer and 
                                                                   President (Principal Executive 
                                                                   Officer) 
 
Date: March 25, 2010                                          By: /s/ Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                                 ----------------------------------- 
                                                                   Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                                   Executive VP and Chief 
                                                                   Financial Officer 
                                                                   (Principal Financial and Principal 
                                                                   Accounting Officer) 
 
         In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following perso ns 
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities a nd on the dates indicated. 
 
SIGNATURES                                         CAPACITIES                        DATE 
----------                                         ----------                        ----  
 
/s/ E. Ricky Gibson                                Director                       March 25, 2010 
---------------------------- 
/s/ Charles R. Lightsey                            Director                       March 25, 2010 
---------------------------- 
/s/ J. Douglas Seidenburg                          Director                       March 25, 2010 
---------------------------- 
/s/ Andy Stetelman                                 Director                       March 25, 2010 
---------------------------- 
David W. Bomboy                                    Director 
----------------------------                                                      ----------------- 
/s/ Ted E. Parker                                  Director                       March 25, 2010 
---------------------------- 
/s/ Michael W. Chancellor                          Director                       March 25, 2010 
---------------------------- 
/s/ Fred McMurry                                   Director                       March 25, 2010 
---------------------------- 
/s/ Dennis L. Pierce                               Director                       March 25, 2010 
---------------------------- 
/s/ Gregory Mitchell                               Director                       March 25, 2010 
---------------------------- 
/s/ David E. Johnson                               Chairman of the Board          March 25, 2010 
----------------------------                       and Director 
/s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr.                       CEO, President and Director    March 25, 2010 
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                                      EXHIBIT 13  
 
                              THE FIRST BANCSHARES,  INC. 
                                  2009 ANNUAL REPOR T 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

 
Purpose  

The purpose of management’s discussion and analysis  is to make the reader aware of the significant com ponents, events, and changes 
in the consolidated financial condition and results  of operations of the Company and its subsidiary du ring the year ended December 
31, 2009 when compared to the years 2008 and 2007. The Company’ s consolidated financial statements and related not es should also be 
considered.  

Critical Accounting Policies  

In the preparation of the Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements, certain significant amounts are  based upon judgment and 
estimates. The most critical of these is the accoun ting policy related to the allowance for loan losse s. The allowance is based in 
large measure upon management’s evaluation of borro wers’ abilities to make loan payments, local and na tional economic conditions, 
and other subjective factors. If any of these facto rs were to deteriorate, management would update its  estimates and judgments 
which may require additional loss provisions.  

Companies are required to perform periodic reviews of individual securities in their investment portfo lios to determine whether 
decline in the value of a security is other than te mporary. A review of other-than-temporary impairmen t requires companies to make 
certain judgments regarding the materiality of the decline, its effect on the financial statements and  the probability, extent and 
timing of a valuation recovery and the company’s in tent and ability to hold the security. Pursuant to these requirements, 
Management assesses valuation declines to determine  the extent to which such changes are attributable to fundamental factors 
specific to the issuer, such as financial condition , business prospects or other factors or market-rel ated factors, such as 
interest rates. Declines in the fair value of secur ities below their cost that are deemed to be other- than-temporary are recorded 
in earnings as realized losses.  

Goodwill is assessed for impairment both annually a nd when events or circumstances occur that make it more likely than not that 
impairment has occurred. The impairment test compar es the estimated fair value of a reporting unit wit h its net book value. The 
Company has assigned all goodwill to one reporting unit that represents the overall banking operations . The analysis of goodwill 
for impairment requires significant assumptions abo ut the economic environment, expected net interest margins, growth rates and the 
rate at which cash flows are discounted. No impairm ent was indicated when the annual test was performe d in 2009.  
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Overview  

The Company was incorporated on June 23, 1995, and serves as a bank holding company for The First, A N ational Banking Association 
(“The First”), located in Hattiesburg, Mississippi.  The First began operations on August 5, 1996, from  its main office in the Oak 
Grove community, which is on the western side of Ha ttiesburg. The First currently operates its main of fice and two branches in 
Hattiesburg, one in Laurel, one in Purvis, one in P icayune, one in Pascagoula, one in Bay St. Louis, o ne in Wiggins and one in 
Gulfport, Mississippi. The Company and its subsidia ry bank engage in a general commercial and retail b anking business characterized 
by personalized service and local decision-making, emphasizing the banking needs of small to medium-si zed businesses, professional 
concerns, and individuals. The First is a wholly-ow ned subsidiary of the Company.  

The Company’s primary source of revenue is interest  income and fees, which it earns by lending and inv esting the funds which are 
held on deposit. Because loans generally earn highe r rates of interest than investments, the Company s eeks to employ as much of its 
deposit funds as possible in the form of loans to i ndividuals, businesses, and other organizations. To  ensure sufficient liquidity, 
the Company also maintains a portion of its deposit s in cash, government securities, deposits with oth er financial institutions, 
and overnight loans of excess reserves (known as “F ederal Funds Sold”) to correspondent banks. The rev enue which the Company earns 
(prior to deducting its overhead expenses) is essen tially a function of the amount of the Company’s lo ans and deposits, as well as 
the profit margin (“interest spread”) and fee incom e which can be generated on these amounts.  

The Company increased from approximately $474.8 mil lion in total assets, and $378.1 million in deposit s at December 31, 2008 to 
approximately $477.6 million in total assets, and $ 383.8 million in deposits at December 31, 2009. Loa ns decreased from $318.3 
million at December 31, 2008 to approximately $314. 0 at December 31, 2009. The Company increased from $36.6 million in 
shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2008 to approx imately $43.6 million at December 31, 2009. The Fir st reported net income of 
$2,210,000 and $2,528,000 for the years ended Decem ber 31, 2009, and 2008, respectively. For the years  ended December 31, 2009 and 
2008, the Company reported consolidated net income applicable to common stockholders of $1,461,000 and  $1,849,000, respectively. 
The following discussion should be read in conjunct ion with the “Selected Consolidated Financial Data”  and the Company’s 
Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes the reto and the other financial data included elsewher e.  
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                                    SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
                                   (Dollars In Thou sands, Except Per Share Data)  
 
                                                                       December 31, 
                                   ---------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------- 
                                        2009             2008              2007              2006             2005 
                                   ----------------  ---------------- ----------------- --------------- -- ---------------- 
Earnings: 
   Net interest income               $  16,039        $  17,577         $  18,256         $  14,383        $  10,150 
   Provision for loan 



     Losses                              1,206            2,205             1,321               800              921 
 
   Noninterest income                    2,749            3,162             3,189             2,239            1,682 
   Noninterest expense                  15,324           15,998            14,823            11,138            8,138 
   Net income                            1,743            1,849             3,823             3,315            1,909 
   Net income applicable 
     to common 
     Stockholders                        1,461            1,849             3,823             3,315            1,909 
 
Per  common share data: 
   Basic net income per 
     Share                            $    .49         $    .62          $   1.28          $   1.35         $    .81 
 
  Diluted net income per 
     Share                                 .49              .61              1.25              1.27              .77 
  Per share data: 
     Basic net income 
        per share                     $    .58         $    .62          $   1.28          $   1.35         $    .81 
     Diluted net income 
        per share                          .58              .61              1.25              1.27              .77 
 
Selected Year End 
  Balances: 
 
     Total assets                    $ 477,552        $ 474,824         $ 496,056         $ 417,769        $ 294,390 
     Securities                        114,618          102,303            87,052            91,810           50,660 
     Loans, net of 
       Allowance                       314,033          318,300           367,002           284,082          197,943 
     Deposits                          383,754          378,079           386,168           351,722          241,949 
     Stockholders' equity               43,617           36,568            36,281            32,365           18,478 
 
 
 
 
                                    Results of Operations  
 
The  following  is a summary of the results of  ope rations  by The First for the years ended  December  31, 
2009 and 2008. 
 
                                                               2009                2008 
                                                          --------------------------------------- 
                                                                      (In thousands) 
 
Interest income                                           $   26,270          $   31,708 
Interest expense                                                                  13,645 
                                                               9,966 
                                                          ----------          ---------- 
    Net interest income                                       16,304              18,063 
 
Provision for loan losses                                      1,206               2,205 
                                                          ----------          ---------- 
Net interest income after 
  provision for loan losses                                   15,098              15,858 
                                                          ----------          ---------- 
 
Other income                                                   2,747               3,160 
 
Other expense                                                 14,963              15,560 
 
Income tax expense                                               672                 930 
                                                          ----------          ---------- 
 
    Net income                                            $    2,210          $    2,528 
                                                          ==========          ========== 
 
 
 
The following reconciles the above table to the amo unts reflected in the consolidated financial 
statements of the Company at December 31, 2009 and 2008: 
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                                                                 2009                2008 
                                                          --------------------------------------- 
                                                                      (In thousands) 
 
Net interest income: 
    Net interest income of subsidiary bank                 $   16,304          $   18,063 
    Intercompany eliminations                                   (265)               (486) 
                                                           ----------          ---------- 
                                                           $   16,039          $   17,577 
                                                           ==========          ========== 
 
Net income: 
    Net income of subsidiary bank                          $    2,210          $    2,528 
    Net loss of the Company, excluding 
       intercompany accounts                                    (749)               (679) 



                                                           ----------          ---------- 
                                                           $    1,461          $    1,849 
                                                           ==========          ========== 

Consolidated Net Income  

The Company reported consolidated net income applic able to common stockholders of $1,461,000 for the y ear ended December 31, 2009, 
compared to a consolidated net income of $1,849,000  for the year ended December 31, 2008. The decrease  in income was attributable 
to a decrease in net interest income of $1,539,000 or 8.8%, and a decrease of $413,000 or 13.1% in oth er income and an increase in 
preferred stock dividends and accretion of $282,000  relating to the participation in the Capital Purch ase Program (CPP).  

Consolidated Net Interest Income  

The largest component of net income for the Company  is net interest income, which is the difference be tween the income earned on 
assets and interest paid on deposits and borrowings  used to support such assets. Net interest income i s determined by the rates 
earned on the Company’s interest-earning assets and  the rates paid on its interest-bearing liabilities , the relative amounts of 
interest-earning assets and interest- bearing liabilities, and the degree of mismatch and  the maturity and repricing characteristics 
of its interest-earning assets and interest-bearing  liabilities.  

Consolidated net interest income was $16,039,000 fo r the year ended December 31, 2009, as compared to $17,577,000 for the year 
ended December 31, 2008. This decrease was the dire ct result of declining interest rates during 2009 a s compared to 2008. Average 
interest-bearing liabilities for the year 2009 were  $384,744,000 compared to $403,017,000 for the year  2008. At December 31, 2009, 
the net interest spread, the difference between the  yield on earning assets and the rates paid on inte rest- bearing liabilities, was 
3.19% compared to 3.30% at December 31, 2008. The n et interest margin (which is net interest income di vided by average earning 
assets) was 3.57% for the year 2009 compared to 3.7 8% for the year 2008. Rates paid on average interes t-bearing liabilities 
decreased from 3.51% for the year 2008 to 2.66% for  the year 2009. Interest earned on assets and inter est accrued on liabilities is 
significantly influenced by market factors, specifi cally interest rates as set by Federal agencies. Av erage loans comprised 71.3% 
of average earning assets for the year 2009 compare d to 75.1% for the year 2008.  
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Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates . The following tables depict, for the periods indi cated, certain information 
related to the average balance sheet and average yi elds on assets and average costs of liabilities. Su ch yields are derived by 
dividing income or expense by the average balance o f the corresponding assets or liabilities. Average balances have been derived 
from daily averages.  

 
 
                                 Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates  
 
                                                                           Years Ended December 31, 
                                ------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------- 
                                              2009                              2008                              2007 
                                ------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------- 
                                Average     Income/      Yield/     Average    Income/     Yield/     A verage    Income/     Yield/ 
                                 Balance    Expense s     Rate      Balance    Expenses     Rate      B alance    Expenses     Rate 
                                ------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------------------------- 
Assets                                                                 (Dollars in thousands)  
Earning Assets.............. 
      Loans (1)(2)..........   $320,495     $22,323       6.97%    $349,572     $26,879     7.69%    $3 38,368     $28,732     8.49% 
      Securities............    109,422       3,861       3.53%      96,357       4,416     4.58%      90,638       4,403     4.86% 
      Federal funds.sold....     17,331          28        .16%      16,885         331     1.96%       4,478         232     5.18% 
      Other.................      1,991          66       3.31%       2,783          98     3.52%         612          32     5.23% 
                               --------     -------      ------    --------     -------    ------   --- ------     -------    ------ 
      Total earning assets..    449,239      26,278       5.85%     465,597      31,724     6.81%     4 34,096      33,399     7.69% 
                               --------     -------      ------    --------     -------    ------   --- ------     -------    ------ 
 
    Cash and due from banks.      9,172                              9,940                            9,570 
    Premises and equipment..     14,675                             15,538                           1 1,300 
    Other assets............     13,620                             13,256                           1 3,411 
    Allowance for loan losses   (5,064)                            (4,566)                          (4 ,160) 
                               --------                           --------                         --- ----- 
    Total assets............   $481,642                           $499,765                         $46 4,217 
                               ========                           ========                         === ===== 
 
Liabilities 
    Interest-bearing 
      liabilities...........   $384,744     $10,239       2.66%    $403,017     $14,146     3.51%   $36 6,567      $15,143     4.13% 
                                            -------                             -------                           ------- 
    Demand deposits (1).....     48,855                             56,236                           6 1,565 
    Other liabilities.......      6,366                              3,964                            2,691 
    Shareholders' equity....     41,677                             36,548                           3 3,394 
                               --------                           --------                         --- ----- 
   Total liabilities 
     and shareholders' equity  $481,642                           $499,765                         $46 4,217 
                               ========                           ========                         === ===== 
 
   Net interest spread......                             3.19%                             3.30%                             3.56% 
   Net yield on interest-earning 
     assets.................                $16,039       3.57%                 $17,578     3.78%                 $18,256     4.21% 
                                            =======                             =======                           ======= 
 
 
____________________ 
 
(1)  All loans and deposits were made to borrowers in the United States.  Includes nonaccrual loans of  



     $4,367, $3,340, and $2,429, respectively, duri ng the periods presented.  Loans include held for s ale loans. 
(2)  Includes loan fees of $1,161, $1,176, and $1,1 36, respectively. 
 
Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income .  The following table presents the  consolidated  dollar amount 
of changes in interest  income and interest  expens e  attributable to changes in volume and to changes  in rate. The 
combined  effect in both volume and rate which cann ot be separately  identified has been allocated  pr oportionately 
to the change due to volume and due to rate. 
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                              Analysis of Changes in Consolidated Net Interest In come 
 
 
                                            Year En ded December 31,         Year Ended December 31, 
                                          --------- --------------------   ----------------------------  
                                                200 9 versus 2008               2008 versus 2007 
                                           Increase  (decrease) due to     Increase (decrease) due to 
                                          --------- --------------------   ----------------------------  
                                           Volume    Rate       Net       Volume     Rate      Net 
                                          ---------  -------- ----------   -------- --------- ---------  
                                                            (Dollars in thousands) 
Earning Assets 
   Loans............................      $(2,236)  $(2,320)  $(4,556)     $  950  $ (2,803) $(1,853) 
   Securities.......................           598  (1,153)      (555)        278     (265)        13 
   Federal funds sold ..............             9    (312)      (303)        643     (544)        99 
   Other short-term investments ....          (28)      (4)       (32)        114      (48)        66 
                                          ---------  -------- ----------   -------- --------- ---------  
   Total interest income ...........       (1,657)  (3,789)    (5,446)      1,985   (3,660)   (1,675) 
                                          ---------  -------- ----------   -------- --------- ---------  
Interest-Bearing Liabilities 
   Interest-bearing transaction 
     accounts.......................           618    (792)      (174)        535     (129)       406 
   Money market accounts............         (242)    (108)      (350)       (29)     (467)     (496) 
   Savings deposits.................          (18)     (58)       (76)       (31)     (284)     (315) 
   Time deposits....................         (566)  (2,058)    (2,624)        467   (1,373)     (906) 
   Borrowed funds...................         (471)    (212)      (683)        570     (256)       314 
                                          ---------  -------- ----------   -------- --------- ---------  
   Total interest expense...........         (679)  (3,228)    (3,907)      1,512   (2,509)     (997) 
                                          ---------  -------- ----------   -------- --------- ---------  
   Net interest income..............       $ (978)  $ (561)  $ (1,539)     $  473  $(1,151)  $  (678) 
                                          =========  ======== ==========   ======== ========= =========  

Interest Sensitivity . The Company monitors and manages the pricing and maturity of its assets and liabilities in order to diminish 
the potential adverse impact that changes in intere st rates could have on its net interest income. A m onitoring technique employed 
by the Company is the measurement of the Company’s interest sensitivity “gap,” which is the positive o r negative dollar difference 
between assets and liabilities that are subject to interest rate repricing within a given period of ti me. The Company also performs 
asset/liability modeling to assess the impact varyi ng interest rates and balance sheet mix assumptions  will have on net interest 
income. Interest rate sensitivity can be managed by  repricing assets or liabilities, selling securitie s available-for-sale, 
replacing an asset or liability at maturity, or adj usting the interest rate during the life of an asse t or liability. Managing the 
amount of assets and liabilities repricing in the s ame time interval helps to hedge the risk and minim ize the impact on net 
interest income of rising or falling interest rates . The Company evaluates interest sensitivity risk a nd then formulates guidelines 
regarding asset generation and repricing, funding s ources and pricing, and off-balance sheet commitmen ts in order to decrease 
interest rate sensitivity risk.  

The following tables illustrate the Company’s conso lidated interest rate sensitivity and consolidated cumulative gap position at 
December 31, 2007, 2008, and 2009.  
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                                                                   December 31, 2007 
                                          --------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
                                                           After Three 
                                                Wit hin       Through      Within    Greater Than 
                                                Thr ee        Twelve         One      One Year or 
                                                Mon ths       Months        Year     Nonsensitive     T otal 
                                          --------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
                                                                  (Dollars in thousands)  
Assets  
   Earning Assets: 
      Loans..............................       $  140,579   $   59,868   $  200,447   $  170,776   $  371,223 
      Securities (2).....................            8,011        6,721       14,732       72,320       87,052 
      Funds sold and other...............              223          228          451            -          451 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------   -- -------- 
        Total earning assets.............          148,813       66,817      215,630      243,096      458,726 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------   -- -------- 
Liabilities  
   Interest-bearing liabilities: 
   Interest-bearing deposits: 
      NOW accounts (1)...................       $        -   $   73,398   $   73,398   $        -   $   73,398 
      Money market accounts..............           38,820            -       38,820            -       38,820 
      Savings deposits (1) ..............                -       20,934       20,934            -       20,934 
      Time deposits......................           58,049      123,616      181,665       16,002      197,667 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------   -- -------- 
         Total interest-bearing deposits.           96,869      217,948      314,817       16,002      330,819 



   Borrowed funds (3)....................           17,052       12,693       29,745       31,027       60,772 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------   -- -------- 
   Total interest-bearing liabilities              113,921      230,641      344,562       47,029      391,591 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------   -- -------- 
   Interest-sensitivity gap per period...       $   34,892   $(163,824)   $(128,932)   $  196,067   $   67,135 
                                                === =======   ==========   ==========   ==========   == ======== 
   Cumulative gap at December 31, 2007...       $   34,892   $(128,932)   $(128,932)   $   67,135   $   67,135 
                                                === =======   ==========   ==========   ==========   == ======== 
   Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning 
      assets at December 31, 2007 .......             7.6%      (28.1%)      (28.1%)        14.6% 
 
 
                                                                   December 31, 2008 
                                          --------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
                                                           After Three 
                                                Wit hin       Through      Within    Greater Than 
                                                Thr ee        Twelve         One      One Year of 
                                                Mon ths       Months        Year     Nonsensitive     T otal 
                                          --------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------  
                                                                  (Dollars in thousands) 
Assets  
   Earning Assets: 
      Loans..............................        $  81,230   $   57,092   $  138,322    $ 184,762    $  323,084 
      Securities (2).....................           14,487       14,112       28,599       73,704      102,303 
      Funds sold and other...............           13,359        2,762       16,121            -       16,121 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------   -- -------- 
        Total earning assets.............          109,076       73,966      183,042      258,466      441,508 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------   -- -------- 
Liabilities  
   Interest-bearing liabilities: 
   Interest-bearing deposits: 
      NOW accounts (1)...................        $       -   $   86,795   $   86,795    $       -     $ 86,795 
      Money market accounts..............           27,836            -       27,836            -       27,836 
      Savings deposits (1) ..............                -       18,419       18,419            -       18,419 
      Time deposits......................           15,361      114,555      129,916       57,518      187,434 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------   -- -------- 
         Total interest-bearing deposits.           43,197      219,769      262,966       57,518      320,484 
   Borrowed funds (3)....................           10,519        6,471       16,990       29,037       46,027 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------   -- -------- 
   Total interest-bearing liabilities               53,716      226,240      279,956       86,555      366,511 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------   -- -------- 
   Interest-sensitivity gap per period...        $  55,360   $(152,274)   $ (96,914)    $ 171,911     $ 74,997 
                                                === =======   ==========   ==========   ==========   == ======== 
   Cumulative gap at December 31, 2008...        $  55,360   $ (96,914)   $ (96,914)    $  74,997     $ 74,997 
                                                === =======   ==========   ==========   ==========   == ======== 
   Ratio of cumulative gap to total earnings 
      assets at December 31, 2008 .......            12.5%      (21.9%)      (21.9%)        16.9% 
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                                                                   December 31, 2009 
                                          --------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
                                                           After Three 
                                                Wit hin       Through      Within    Greater Than 
                                                Thr ee        Twelve         One      One Year of 
                                                Mon ths       Months        Year     Nonsensitive     T otal 
                                          --------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------  
                                                                  (Dollars in thousands) 
Assets  
   Earning Assets: 
      Loans..............................        $  63,217    $  55,419   $  118,636    $ 200,159     $ 318,795 
      Securities (2).....................           12,099       15,059       27,158       87,460       114,618 
      Funds sold and other...............            7,575          296        7,871            -         7,871 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------    - --------- 
        Total earning assets.............           82,891       70,774      153,665      287,619       441,284 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------    - --------- 
Liabilities  
   Interest-bearing liabilities: 
   Interest-bearing deposits: 
      NOW accounts (1)...................        $       -    $ 122,363   $  122,363    $       -     $ 122,363 
      Money market accounts..............           25,110            -       25,110            -        25,110 
      Savings deposits (1) ..............                -       15,712       15,712            -        15,712 
      Time deposits......................           59,192       95,291      154,483     17,559         172,042 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------    - --------- 
         Total interest-bearing deposits.           84,302      233,366      317,668       17,559       335,227 
   Borrowed funds (3) ...................               26       10,404       10,430       21,607        32,037 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------    - --------- 
   Total interest-bearing liabilities               84,328      243,770      328,098       39,166       367,264 
                                                --- -------   ----------   ----------   ----------    - --------- 
   Interest-sensitivity gap per period...       $  (1,437)  $ (172,996)   $(174,433)    $ 248,453     $  74,020 
                                                === =======   ==========   ==========   ==========    = ========= 
   Cumulative gap at December 31, 2009...       $  (1,437)  $ (174,433)   $(174,433)    $  74,020     $  74,020 
                                                === =======   ==========   ==========   ==========    = ========= 
   Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning 
      assets at  December 31, 2009.......            (.3%)      (39.5%)      (39.5%)        16.8% 



 
______________ 
 
 
(1)  NOW and savings  accounts are subject to immed iate  withdrawal and  repricing.  These deposits do  not tend 
     to  immediately  react to changes in interest  rates and the Company  believes these deposits are  a stable and 
     predictable  funding source.  Therefore,  thes e deposits are included in the repricing  period th at management 
     believes  most  closely  matches  the  periods  in which they are likely to reprice  rather  than the period in 
     which the funds can be withdrawn contractually . 
(2)  Securities  include mortgage backed and other  installment  paying  obligations based upon stated  maturity 
     dates. 
(3)  Does not include subordinated debentures of  $ 10,310,000. 
 

The Company generally would benefit from increasing  market rates of interest when it has an asset-sens itive gap and generally from 
decreasing market rates of interest when it is liab ility sensitive. The Company currently is liability  sensitive within the one-
year time frame. However, the Company’s gap analysi s is not a precise indicator of its interest sensit ivity position. The analysis 
presents only a static view of the timing of maturi ties and repricing opportunities, without taking in to consideration that changes 
in interest rates do not affect all assets and liab ilities equally. For example, rates paid on a subst antial portion of core 
deposits may change contractually within a relative ly short time frame, but those rates are viewed by management as significantly 
less interest-sensitive than market-based rates suc h as those paid on non-core deposits. Accordingly, management believes a 
liability sensitive-position within one year would not be as indicative of the Company’s true interest  sensitivity as it would be 
for an organization which depends to a greater exte nt on purchased funds to support earning assets. Ne t interest income is also 
affected by other significant factors, including ch anges in the volume and mix of earning assets and i nterest-bearing liabilities.  

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses  

The Company has developed policies and procedures f or evaluating the overall quality of its credit por tfolio and the timely 
identification of potential problem loans. Manageme nt’s judgment as to the adequacy of the allowance i s based upon a number of 
assumptions about future events which it believes t o be reasonable, but which may not prove to be accu rate. Thus, there can be no 
assurance that charge- offs in future periods will not exceed the allowanc e for loan losses or that additional increases in t he loan 
loss allowance will not be required.  
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The Company’ s allowance consists of two parts. The first part i s determined in accordance with authoritative guida nce issued by the 
FASB regarding the allowance. The Company’s determi nation of this part of the allowance is based upon quantitative and qualitative 
factors. A loan loss history based upon the prior f our years is utilized in determining the appropriat e allowance. Historical loss 
factors are determined by graded and ungraded loans  by loan type. These historical loss factors are ap plied to the loans by loan 
type to determine an indicated allowance. The loss factors of peer groups are considered in the determ ination of the allowance and 
are used to assist in the establishment of a long-t erm loss history for areas in which this data is un available and incorporated 
into the qualitative factors to be considered. The historical loss factors may also be modified based upon other qualitative 
factors including but not limited to local and nati onal economic conditions, trends of delinquent loan s, changes in lending 
policies and underwriting standards, concentrations , and management’s knowledge of the loan portfolio.  These factors require 
judgment upon the part of management and are based upon state and national economic reports received f rom various institutions and 
agencies including the Federal Reserve Bank, United  States Bureau of Economic Analysis, Bureau of Labo r Statistics, meetings with 
the Company’s loan officers and loan committees, an d data and guidance received or obtained from the C ompany’s regulatory 
authorities.  

The second part of the allowance is determined in a ccordance with guidance issued by the FASB regardin g impaired loans. Impaired 
loans are determined based upon a review by interna l loan review and senior loan officers. Impaired lo ans are loans for which the 
bank does not expect to receive contractual interes t and/or principal by the due date. A specific allo wance is assigned to each 
loan determined to be impaired based upon the value  of the loan’s underlying collateral. Appraisals ar e used by management to 
determine the value of the collateral.  

The sum of the two parts constitutes management’s b est estimate of an appropriate allowance for loan l osses. When the estimated 
allowance is determined, it is presented to the Com pany’s audit committee for review and approval on a  quarterly basis.  

Our allowance for loan losses model is focused on e stablishing a loss history within the bank and rely ing on specific impairment to 
determine credits that the bank feels the ultimate repayment source will be liquidation of the subject  collateral. Our model takes 
into account many other factors as well such as loc al and national economic factors, portfolio trends,  non performing asset, charge 
off, and delinquency trends as well as underwriting  standards and the experience of branch management and lending staff. These 
trends are measured in the following ways:  

Local Trends: (Updated quarterly usually the month following quarter end) 
     Local Unemployment Rate 
     Insurance issues (Windpool areas) 
     Bankruptcy Rates (increasing/declining) 
     Local Commercial R/E Vacancy rates 
     Established market/new market 
     Hurricane threat 
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National Trends: (Updated quarterly usually the mon th following quarter end) 
     Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 
     Home Sales 
     Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
     Interest Rate Environment (increasing/steady/d eclining) 
     Single Family construction starts 
     Inflation Rate 
     Retail Sales 
 



Portfolio Trends: (Updated monthly as the ALLL is c alculated) 
     Second Mortgages 
     Single Pay Loans 
     Non-Recourse Loans 
     Limited Guaranty Loans 
     Loan to Value Exceptions 
     Secured by Non-Owner Occupied property 
     Raw Land Loans 
     Unsecured Loans 
 
Measurable Bank Trends: (Updated quarterly) 
     Delinquency Trends 
     Non-Accrual Trends 
     Net Charge Offs 
     Loan Volume Trends 
     Non-Performing Assets 
     Underwriting Standards/Lending Policies 
     Experience/Depth of Bank Lending 
     Management 

Our model takes into account many local and nationa l economic factors as well as portfolio trends. Loc al and national economic 
trends are measured quarterly, typically in the mon th following quarter end to facilitate the release of economic data from the 
reporting agencies. These factors are allocated a b asis point value ranging from -25 to +25 basis poin ts and directly affect the 
amount reserved for each branch. As of December 31,  2009, most economic indicators both local and nati onal pointed to a weak 
economy thus most factors were assigned a positive basis point value. This increased the amount of the  allowance that was indicated 
by historical loss factors. Portfolio trends are me asured monthly on a per branch basis to determine t he percentage of loans in 
each branch that the bank has determined as having more risk. Portfolio risk is defined as areas in th e bank’s loan portfolio in 
which there is additional risk involved in the loan  type or some other area in which the bank has iden tified as having more risk. 
Each area is tracked on bank-wide as well as on a b ranch-wide basis. Branches are analyzed based on th e gross percentage of 
concentrations of the bank as a whole. Portfolio ri sk is determined by analyzing concentrations in the  areas outlined by 
determining the percentage of each branch’s total p ortfolio that is made up of the particular loan typ e and then comparing that 
concentration to the bank as a whole. Branches with  concentrations in these areas are graded on a scal e from — 25 basis points to + 
25 basis points. Second mortgages, single pay loans , loans secured by raw land, unsecured loans and lo ans secured by non owner 
occupied property are considered to be of higher ri sk than those of a secured and amortizing basis. LT V exceptions place the bank 
at risk in the event of repossession or foreclosure .  
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Measurable Bank Wide Trends are measured on a quart erly basis as well. This consists of data tracked o n a bank wide basis in which 
we have identified areas of additional risk or the need for additional allocation to the allowance for  loan loss. Data is updated 
quarterly, each area is assigned a basis point valu e from -25 basis points to + 25 basis points based on how each area measures to 
the previous time period. Net charge offs, loan vol ume trends and non performing assets have all trend ed upwards therefore 
increasing the need for increased funds reserved fo r loan losses. Underwriting standards/ lending stan dards as well as experience/ 
depth of bank lending management is evaluated on a per branch level.  

Loans are deemed to be impaired when, in the bank’ s opinion, the ultimate source of repayment will be  the liquidation of collateral 
through foreclosure or repossession. Once identifie d updated collateral values are attained on these l oans and impairment 
worksheets are prepared to determine if impairment exists. This method takes into account any expected  expenses related to the 
disposal of the subject collateral. Specific allowa nces for these loans are done on a per loan basis a s each loan is reviewed for 
impairment. Updated appraisals are ordered on real estate loans and updated valuations are ordered on non real estate loans to 
determine actual market value.  

At December 31, 2009, the consolidated allowance fo r loan losses amounted to $4,762,000, or 1.49% of o utstanding loans. At December 
31, 2008, the allowance for loan losses amounted to  $4,785,000, which was 1.48% of outstanding loans. The Company’s provision for 
loan losses was $1,206,000 for the year ended Decem ber 31, 2009, compared to $2,205,000 for the year e nded December 31, 2008.  

A loan is considered impaired when, based on curren t information and events, it is probable that the C ompany will be unable to 
collect the scheduled payments of principal or inte rest when due according to the contractual terms of  the loan agreement. Factors 
considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the p robability of collecting 
scheduled principal and interest payments when due.  Loans that experience insignificant payment delays  and payment shortfalls 
generally are not classified as impaired. Managemen t determines the significance of payment delays and  payment shortfalls on a 
case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all o f the circumstances surrounding the loan and the bo rrower, including the length 
of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrow er’s prior payment record, and the amount of the sh ortfall in relation to the 
principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured  on a loan by loan basis. Impaired loans not deemed  collateral dependent are 
analyzed according to the ultimate repayment source , whether that is cash flow from the borrower, guar antor or some other source of 
repayment. Impaired loans are deemed collateral dep endent if in the bank’s opinion the ultimate source  of repayment will be 
generated from the liquidation of collateral.  

The Company discontinues accrual of interest on loa ns when management believes, after considering econ omic and business conditions 
and collection efforts, that a borrower’s financial  condition is such that the collection of interest is doubtful. Generally, the 
Company will place a delinquent loan in nonaccrual status when the loan becomes 90 days or more past d ue. At the time a loan is 
placed in nonaccrual status, all interest which has  been accrued on the loan but remains unpaid is rev ersed and deducted from 
earnings as a reduction of reported interest income . No additional interest is accrued on the loan bal ance until the collection of 
both principal and interest becomes reasonably cert ain.  
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The following  tables  illustrate  the Company's  p ast due and  nonaccrual  loans at December 31, 2009  and 
2008. 
 
 
 
                                                                   December 31, 2009 
                                         ---------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 



                                                                    (In thousands) 
                                         ---------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
                                          Past Due 30 to      Past Due 90 days or 
                                              89 Da ys       more and still accruing          Non-Accru al 
                                          --------- -----    -----------------------          --------- --  
 
Real Estate-construction                   $  3,737                    $   205                   $ 1,89 0 
Real Estate-mortgage                          2,104                         74                     1,41 6 
Real Estate-non farm nonresidential           3,004                        735                       58 9 
Commercial                                      897                        419                       45 2 
Consumer                                        619                         14                        2 0 
                                           --------                    -------                   ------ - 
          Total                            $ 10,361                    $ 1,447                   $ 4,36 7 
                                           ========                    =======                   ====== = 
 
 
                                                                   December 31, 2008 
                                         ---------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
                                                                    (In thousands) 
                                         ---------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
                                          Past Due 30 to      Past Due 90 days or 
                                              89 Da ys       more and still accruing          Non-Accru al 
                                          --------- -----    -----------------------          --------- --  
 
Real Estate-construction                    $ 1,845                   $    884                   $ 1,48 0 
Real Estate-mortgage                          1,794                        632                       64 6 
Real Estate-nonfarm residential                 994                          -                     1,14 0 
Commercial                                      907                         83                        5 0 
Consumer                                        496                        133                        2 4 
                                           --------                   --------                   ------ - 
          Total                             $ 6,036                   $  1,732                   $ 3,34 0 
                                           ========                   ========                   ====== = 
 

Total nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2009 amounte d to $4.4 million which was an increase of $1.1 mil lion over the December 31, 
2008 amount of $3.3 million. This increase was due to the continued weakening of the real estate marke t. Management believes these 
relationships were adequately reserved at December 31, 2009. Restructured loans not reported as past d ue or nonaccrual at December 
31, 2009 amounted to $.5 million.  

A potential problem loan is one in which management  has serious doubts about the borrower ’s future performance under the terms of 
the loan contract. These loans are current as to pr incipal and interest and, accordingly, they are not  included in nonperforming 
asset categories. The level of potential problem lo ans is one factor used in the determination of the adequacy of the allowance for 
loan losses. At December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the subsidiary bank had potential problem loa ns of $27,700,000 and 
$17,703,000, respectively. This represents an incre ase of $9,997,000.  
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                                      Consolidated Allowance For Loan Losses  
 
                                                                                Years Ended December 3 1, 
                                                                -------------------------------------- ----------------------- 
                                                                  2009         2008         2007         2006         2005 
                                                                ---------   ----------   ----------   ----------   ---------- 
 
Average loans outstanding........................               $ 320,495   $  349,572   $  338,368   $  237,578   $  189,187  
                                                                =========   ==========   ==========   ==========   ========== 
Loans outstanding at year end....................               $ 318,795   $  323,084   $  371,223   $  287,875   $  200,310 
                                                                =========   ==========   ==========   ==========   ========== 
 
Total nonaccrual loans...........................               $   4,367   $    3,340   $    2,429   $    1,789   $      283 
                                                                =========   ==========   ==========   ==========   ========== 
 
Beginning balance of allowance...................               $   4,785   $    4,221   $    3,793   $    2,367        1,659 
Loans charged-off................................                 (1,396)      (1,784)        (950)        (186)        (303) 
                                                                ---------   ----------   ----------   ----------   ---------- 
 
Total loans charged-off..........................                 (1,396)      (1,784)        (950)        (186)        (303) 
                                                                ---------   ----------   ----------   ----------   ---------- 
Total recoveries.................................                     167          143           57          107           90 
                                                                ---------   ----------   ----------   ----------   ---------- 
Net loans charged-off............................                 (1,229)      (1,641)        (893)         (79)        (213) 
Acquisition......................................                       -            -            -          705            - 
Provision for loan losses........................                   1,206        2,205        1,321          800          921 
                                                                ---------   ----------   ----------   ----------   ---------- 
Balance at year end..............................               $   4,762   $    4,785   $    4,221   $    3,793   $    2,367 
                                                                =========   ==========   ==========   ==========   ========== 
 
Net charge-offs to average loans.................                    .38%         .47%         .26%         .03%         .11% 
Allowance as percent of total loans..............                   1.49%        1.48%        1.14%        1.32%        1.18%  
Nonperforming loans as a percentage of total loans                  1.37%        1.03%         .65%         .62%         .14% 
Allowance as a multiple of nonaccrual loans......                    1.1X         1.4X         1.7X         2.1X         8.4X  
 
 
     At December 31, 2009, the components of the al lowance for loan losses consisted of the following:  
 



 
 
                                                                  Allowance 
                                                               --------------- 
                                                                (In thousands) 
               Allocated: 
                  Impaired loans                                   $ 2,004 
                  Graded loans                                       2,758 
                                                                   ------- 
                                                                   $ 4,762 
                                                                   ======= 
 
 
     Graded loans are those loans or pools of loans  assigned a grade by internal loan review. 
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      The following table represents the activity o f the allowance for loan losses for the years 2008 and 2009. 
 
 
 
                               Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losses  
 
                                                                Years Ended December 31, 
                                                                   2009          2008 
                                                            ----------------------------- 
                                                                 (Dollars in thousands)  
 
              Balance at beginning of  year                   $   4,785      $  4,221 
              Charge-offs: 
                 Real Estate-construction                           296           974 
                 Real Estate-farmland                                 2             - 
                 Real Estate-mortgage                               443           179 
                 Real Estate-nonfarm residential                      -            11 
                 Commercial                                         389           290 
                 Consumer                                           266           330 
                                                              ---------      -------- 
                        Total                                     1,396         1,784 
              Recoveries: 
                 Real Estate-construction                            45             - 
                 Real Estate-mortgage                                 4             1 
                 Commercial                                           3            19 
                 Consumer                                           115           123 
                                                              ---------      -------- 
                        Total                                       167           143 
                                                              ---------      -------- 
              Net charge-off                                      1,229         1,641 
                                                              ---------      -------- 
              Provision for loan losses                           1,206         2,205 
                                                              ---------      -------- 
              Balance at end of year                          $   4,762      $  4,785 
                                                              =========      ======== 
 
 
        The following tables represent how the allo wance for loan losses is allocated to a particular loan type as 
 well as the percentage of the category to total lo ans at December 31, 2009 and 2008. 
 
 
 
                                 Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses  
 
                                                                       December 31, 2009 
                                                                --------------------------------- 
                                                                     (Dollars in thousands)  
                                                                                  % of loans 
                                                                               in each category 
                                                                       Amount   to total loans 
                                                                     --------- ------------------ 
              Commercial Non Real Estate                              $ 1,015           13.9% 
              Commercial Real Estate                                    2,564           62.2% 
              Consumer Real Estate                                        687           17.8% 
              Consumer                                                    317            3.9% 
              Unallocated                                                 179            2.2% 
                                                                      -------          ------ 
                      Total                                           $ 4,762            100% 
                                                                      =======          ====== 
 
                                                                       December 31, 2008 
                                                                --------------------------------- 
                                                                     (Dollars in thousands)  
                                                                                  % of loans 
                                                                               in each category 
                                                                       Amount   to total loans 
                                                                     --------- ------------------ 
              Commercial Non Real Estate                              $   746        11.8% 
              Commercial Real Estate                                    2,603        60.4% 
              Consumer Real Estate                                        965        20.8% 
              Consumer                                                    452         7.0% 



              Unallocated                                                  19            - 
                                                                      -------       ------ 
                      Total                                           $ 4,785         100% 
                                                                      =======       ====== 
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Noninterest Income and Expense  

Noninterest Income. The Company’s primary source of  noninterest income is service charges on deposit a ccounts. Other sources of 
noninterest income include bankcard fees, commissio ns on check sales, safe deposit box rent, wire tran sfer fees, official check 
fees and bank owned life insurance income.  

Noninterest income experienced a decrease of $413,0 00 or 13.1% as compared to $3,161,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008, to 
$2,748,000 for the year ended December 31, 2009. Th e deposit activity fees were $1,897,000 for 2009 co mpared to $2,113,000 for 
2008. Other service charges decreased by $17,000 or  2.1% from $779,000 for the year ended December 31,  2008, to $762,000 for the 
year ended December 31, 2009. Impairment losses on investment securities were $111,000 for 2009 as com pared to none for 2008.  

Noninterest expense decreased from $16.0 million fo r the year ended December 31, 2008 to $15.3 million  for the year ended December 
31, 2009. The Company experienced decreases in most  expense categories. The largest increase was in de posit and other insurance, 
which increased by $545,000 in 2009 as compared to 2008. During the 4th quarter of 2008 the Company ma de efforts to cut non-
interest expenses by reducing its workforce by thir teen positions, or 7.8%.  

The following table sets forth the primary componen ts of noninterest expense for the periods indicated :  

Noninterest Expense  
 
                                                                         -------------------------------- 
                                                                              Years ended December 31,  
                                                                         ----------------------------- --- 
                                                                             2009       2008       200 7 
                                                                             ----       ----       --- - 
                                                                                   (In thousands)  
 
 
Salaries and employee benefits..................... ...............        $  8,401   $  9,455    $ 8,9 62 
Occupancy.......................................... ...............           1,071      1,146        9 83 
Equipment.......................................... ...............             900      1,055      1,0 08 
Marketing and public relations..................... ...............             329        250        3 23 
Data processing.................................... ...............              30         20         89 
Supplies and printing.............................. ...............             278        352        4 02 
Telephone.......................................... ...............             249        260        1 62 
Correspondent services............................. ...............             110        110        1 06 
Deposit and other insurance........................ ...............           1,019        474        2 83 
Professional and consulting fees................... ...............             830        845        5 06 
Postage............................................ ...............             173        196        1 81 
ATM fees........................................... ...............             217        206        2 04 
Other.............................................. ...............           1,716      1,629      1,6 14 
                                                                          --------   --------    ----- --- 
 
     Total......................................... ...............        $ 15,323   $ 15,998    $14,8 23 
                                                                          ========   ========    ===== === 

Income Tax Expense  

Income tax expense consists of two components. The first is the current tax expense which represents t he expected income tax to be 
paid to taxing authorities. The Company also recogn izes deferred tax for future deductible amounts res ulting from differences in 
the financial statement and tax bases of assets and  liabilities.  
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Analysis of Financial Condition  

Earning Assets  

Loan s.     Loans typically provide higher yields than t he other types of earning assets, and thus one of t he Company’s goals is 
for loans to be the largest category of the Company ’s earning assets. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, r espectively, loans accounted 
for 71% and 75% of earning assets. Management attem pts to control and counterbalance the inherent cred it and liquidity risks 
associated with the higher loan yields without sacr ificing asset quality to achieve its asset mix goal s. Loans averaged $320.5 
million during 2009, as compared to $349.6 million during 2008, and $338.4 million during 2007.  

The following table shows the composition of the lo an portfolio by category:  

                                              Composition of Loan Portfolio  
 
                                                                              December 31, 
                                                  - --------------------------------------------------- ------------------ 
                                                           2009                    2008                   2007 
                                                  - ----------------------  ---------------------  ---- ------------------ 
                                                     Amount    Percent     Amount     Percent     Amou nt    Percent 
                                                              Of Total               of Total               of Total 
                                                  - ---------  -----------  --------  -----------  ---- ----  ------------ 



                                                                         (Dollars in thousands)  
 
   Mortgage loans held for sale...................    $ 3,692       1.2%      $  3,113       1.0%   $  5,664       1.5% 
   Commercial, financial and agricultural ........     43,229      13.6%        37,861      11.7%     46,633      12.6% 
   Real Estate: 
      Mortgage-commercial.........................     87,492      27.4%        84,181      26.1%     84,854      22.9% 
      Mortgage-residential........................    102,738      32.2%       100,603      31.1%    1 12,676      30.3% 
      Construction................................     68,695      21.5%        81,178      25.1%    1 00,634      27.1% 
   Consumer and other.............................     12,949       4.1%        16,149       5.0%     20,762       5.6% 
                                                     --------     ------     ---------     ------  --- ------     ------ 
   Total loans....................................    318,795       100%       323,085       100%    3 71,223       100% 
                                                                  ======                   ======                ====== 
   Allowance for loan losses......................    (4,762)                  (4,785)               ( 4,221) 
                                                     --------                ---------             --- ------ 
   Net loans......................................   $314,033                $ 318,300             $ 3 67,002 
                                                     ========                =========             === ====== 
 

In the context of this discussion, a “real estate m ortgage loan” is defined as any loan, other than lo ans for construction 
purposes, secured by real estate, regardless of the  purpose of the loan. The Company follows the commo n practice of financial 
institutions in the Company’s market area of obtain ing a security interest in real estate whenever pos sible, in addition to any 
other available collateral. This collateral is take n to reinforce the likelihood of the ultimate repay ment of the loan and tends to 
increase the magnitude of the real estate loan port folio component. Generally, the Company limits its loan-to-value ratio to 80%. 
Management attempts to maintain a conservative phil osophy regarding its underwriting guidelines and be lieves it will reduce the 
risk elements of its loan portfolio through strateg ies that diversify the lending mix.  

Loans held for sale consist of mortgage loans origi nated by the bank and sold into the secondary marke t. Commitments from investors 
to purchase the loans are obtained upon origination .  

The following table sets forth the Company’s commer cial and construction real estate loans maturing wi thin specified intervals at 
December 31, 2009.  
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                Loan Maturity Schedule and Sensitivity to Changes i n Interest Rates  
 
                                                                December 31, 2009 
                                              ----- -------------------------------------------------- 
                                                 On e Year       Through       Over Five 
                     Type                        or  Less       Five Years       Years       Total 
-----------------------------------------     ----- -------   -------------   ------------  ---------- 
                                                              (Dollars in thousands)  
 
Commercial, financial and agricultural.....     $  23,032       $  19,821       $  376      $ 43,229 
Real estate - construction.................        68,695               -            -        68,695 
                                                --- ------       ---------       ------      -------- 
                                                $  91,727       $  19,821       $  376      $111,924 
 
Loans maturing after one year with: 
Fixed interest rates............................... ..................................       $ 19,167 
Floating interest rates............................ ..................................          1,030 
                                                                                            -------- 
                                                                                            $ 20,197 

The information presented in the above table is bas ed on the contractual maturities of the individual loans, including loans which 
may be subject to renewal at their contractual matu rity. Renewal of such loans is subject to review an d credit approval, as well as 
modification of terms upon their maturity.  

Investment Securities . The investment securities portfolio is a signific ant component of the Company’ s total earning assets. Total 
securities averaged $109.4 million in 2009, as comp ared to $96.4 million in 2008 and $90.6 million in 2007. This represents 24.4%, 
20.7%, and 20.9% of the average earning assets for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. At December 31, 
2009, investment securities were $114.6 million and  represented 26% of earning assets. The Company att empts to maintain a portfolio 
of high quality, highly liquid investments with ret urns competitive with short-term U.S. Treasury or a gency obligations. This 
objective is particularly important as the Company focuses on growing its loan portfolio. The Company primarily invests in 
securities of U.S. Government agencies, municipals,  and corporate obligations with maturities up to fi ve years.  

The following table summarizes the book value of se curities for the dates indicated. 
 
 
 
                                               Securities Portfolio  
 
                                                                  December 31, 
                                                   --------------------------------------- 
                                                        2009           2008        2007 
                                                        ----           ----        ---- 
                                                                 (In thousands)  
Available -for-sale 
    U. S. Government agencies.................        $ 59,519       $ 64,814    $ 58,080 
    States and municipal subdivisions.........          41,982         23,093      21,224 
    Corporate obligations.....................           9,772         10,813       3,859 
      Mutual finds ...........................             958            959       1,156 
                                                      --------       --------    -------- 
      Total available-for-sale................         112,231         99,679      84,319 
                                                      --------       --------    -------- 
Held-to-maturity 



    U.S. Government agencies..................               3             12          13 
                                                      --------       --------    -------- 
Total.........................................        $112,234       $ 99,691    $ 84,332 
                                                      ========       ========    ======== 
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The following table shows, at carrying value, the s cheduled maturities and average yields of securitie s 
held at December 31, 2009. 
 
 
 
 
                            Investment Securities Maturity Distribution and Yie lds (1)  
 
                                                                        December 31, 2009 
                                      ------------- --------------------------------------------------- ----------------------- 
                                                               After One But         After Five But 
($ in thousands)                          Within On e Year      Within Five Years      Within Ten Years       After Ten Years 
                                      ------------- --------   ------------------    ------------------ -   ------------------- 
                                         Amount      Yield     Amount      Yield     Amount      Yield      Amount      Yield 
                                      ----------   --------   ---------   ------    --------   ------- -   --------   --------  
Held-to-maturity: 
   U.S. Government agencies (2)....     $     -          -    $     -          -    $     -          -     $     -          - 
                                      ==========              =========             ========              ======== 
 
Available -for-sale: 
 
   U.S. Government agencies (3)....       9,676      3.81%     19,576      4.09%      2,140      1.37%           -          - 
   States and municipal subdivisions      5,267      1.84%     21,380      2.81%     12,680      3.83%       2,655      4.56% 
   Corporate obligations and other        1,001      5.07%      3,977       .80%      1,043      2.71%       3,751      2.30% 
                                      ----------              ---------             --------              -------- 
Total investment securities 
   available-for-sale..............     $15,944               $44,933               $15,863               $ 6,406 
                                      ==========              =========             ========              ======== 
_________________ 
 
(1)  Investments with a call feature are shown as o f the contractual maturity date. 
(2)  Excludes mortgage-backed securities totaling $ 3 thousand with a yield of 3.22%. 
(3)  Excludes mortgage-backed securities totaling $ 28.1 million with a yield of 4.71% and 
       mutual funds of $1.0 million. 

Short-Term Investments . Short- term investments, consisting of Federal Funds Sold,  averaged $17.3 million in 2009, $16.9 million in 
2008, and $4.5 million in 2007. At December 31, 200 9, and December 31, 2008, short-term investments to taled $7,575,000 and 
$13,359,000, respectively. These funds are a primar y source of the Company’s liquidity and are general ly invested in an earning 
capacity on an overnight basis.  

Deposits  

Deposits . Average total deposits increased $19.1 million, o r 5.0% in 2008. Average total deposits decreased $1 4.7 million, or 3.6% 
in 2009. At December 31, 2009, total deposits were $383.8 million, compared to $378.1 million a year e arlier, an increase of 1.5%.  

The following table sets forth the deposits of the Company by category for the period indicated.  

                                                               Deposits  
 
                                                               December 31, 
                                     -------------- -------------------------------------------------- 
($ in thousands)                             2009                  2008                   2007 
                                     -------------- -------------------------------------------------- 
                                                Per cent                Percent               Percent 
                                                   of                     of                    of 
                                      Amount    Dep osits     Amount    Deposits    Amount    Deposits 
                                     ---------  --- ------   --------- -----------  --------  --------  
 
Noninterest-bearing accounts......    $ 48,527      12.6%   $ 57,594       15.2%   $ 55,349      14.3%  
NOW accounts......................     122,363      31.9%     86,795       22.9%     73,398      19.0%  
Money market accounts.............      25,110       6.5%     27,836        7.4%     38,820      10.2%  
Savings accounts..................      15,712       4.1%     18,419        4.9%     20,934       5.4%  
Time deposits less than $100,000..      82,116      21.4%     99,491       26.3%     93,213      24.1%  
Time deposits of $100,000 or over.      89,926      23.5%     87,944       23.3%    104,454      27.0%  
                                     ---------    - ------   --------     -------   --------     ------  
    Total deposits................    $383,754       100%   $378,079        100%   $386,168       100%  
                                     =========    = ======   ========     =======   ========     ======  
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The Company’s loan-to-deposit ratio was 82% at Dece mber 31, 2009 and 84% at December 31, 2008. The loa n-to-deposit ratio averaged 
83% during 2009. Core deposits, which exclude time deposits of $100,000 or more, provide a relatively stable funding source for the 
Company’s loan portfolio and other earning assets. The Company’s core deposits were $293.8 million at December 31, 2009 and $290.1 
million at December 31, 2008. Management anticipate s that a stable base of deposits will be the Compan y’ s primary source of funding 
to meet both its short-term and long-term liquidity  needs in the future. The Company has purchased bro kered deposits from time to 
time to help fund loan growth. Brokered deposits an d jumbo certificates of deposit generally carry a h igher interest rate than 



traditional core deposits. Further, brokered deposi t customers typically do not have loan or other rel ationships with the Company. 
The Company has adopted a policy not to permit brok ered deposits to represent more than 10% of all of the Company’s deposits.  

The maturity distribution of the Company’s certific ates of deposit of $100,000 or more at December 31,  2009, is shown in the 
following table. The Company did not have any other  time deposits of $100,000 or more.  

                                  Maturities of Certificates of Deposit 
                                           of $100, 000 or More  
 
                                                           After Three 
                                          Within Th ree       Through       After Twelve 
(In thousands)                               Months        Twelve Months       Months            Total 
                                         ---------- ------ --------------- ---------------- ----------- ----- 
 
December 31, 2009....................        $ 32,3 65        $ 50,558          $ 7,003         $ 89,92 6 

Borrowed Funds  

Borrowed funds consists of advances from the Federa l Home Loan Bank of Dallas, federal funds purchased  and reverse repurchase 
agreements. At December 31, 2009, advances from the  FHLB totaled $17.0 million compared to $31.0 milli on at December 31, 2008. The 
advances are collateralized by a blanket lien on th e first mortgage loans in the amount of the outstan ding borrowings, FHLB capital 
stock, and amounts on deposit with the FHLB. There were no federal funds purchased at December 31, 200 9 and December 31, 2008.  

Reverse Repurchase Agreements consist of three $5,0 00,000 agreements. These agreements are secured by securities with a fair value 
of $17,444,000 at December 31, 2009 and $17,805,000  at December 31, 2008. The maturity dates are from August 22, 2012 through 
September 26, 2017, with rates between 3.81% and 4. 51%.  

Subordinated Debentures  

In 2006, the Company issued subordinated debentures  of $4,124,000 to The First Bancshares, Inc. Statut ory Trust 2 (Trust 2). The 
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the Trus t 2. The Trust 2 issued $4,000,000 of preferred sec urities to investors. The 
Company makes interest payments and will make princ ipal payments on the debentures to the Trust 2. The se payments will be the 
source of funds used to retire the preferred securi ties, which are redeemable at any time beginning in  2011 and mature in 2036. The 
Company entered into this arrangement to provide fu nding for expected growth.  
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In 2007, the Company issued subordinated debentures  of $6,186,000 to The First Bancshares, Inc. Statut ory Trust 3 (Trust 3). The 
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the Trus t 3. The Trust 3 issued $6,000,000 of preferred sec urities to investors. The 
Company makes interest payments and will make princ ipal payments on the debentures to the Trust 3. The se payments will be the 
source of funds used to retire the preferred securi ties, which are redeemable at any time beginning in  2012 and mature in 2037. The 
Company entered into this arrangement to provide fu nding for expected growth.  

Capital  

Total shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2009, was $43.6 million, an increase of $7.0 million or approximately 19.3%,  compared 
with shareholders’ equity of $36.6 million as of De cember 31, 2008.  

The Federal Reserve Board and bank regulatory agenc ies require bank holding companies and financial in stitutions to maintain 
capital at adequate levels based on a percentage of  assets and off-balance sheet exposures, adjusted f or risk weights ranging from 
0% to 100%. Under the risk-based standard, capital is classified into two tiers. Tier 1 capital consis ts of common shareholders’ 
equity, excluding the unrealized gain (loss) on ava ilable-for-sale securities, minus certain intangibl e assets. Tier 2 capital 
consists of the general reserve for loan losses, su bject to certain limitations. An institution’s tota l risk-based capital for 
purposes of its risk-based capital ratio consists o f the sum of its Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital. The ris k-based regulatory minimum 
requirements are 4% for Tier 1 and 8% for total ris k-based capital.  

Bank holding companies and banks are also required to maintain capital at a minimum level based on tot al assets, which is known as 
the leverage ratio. The minimum requirement for the  leverage ratio is 4%. All but the highest rated in stitutions are required to 
maintain ratios 100 to 200 basis points above the m inimum. The Company and the subsidiary bank exceede d their minimum regulatory 
capital ratios as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.  

                                                    Analysis of Capital  
 
 
                                  Adequately      W ell              The Company                Subsidi ary Bank 
Capital Ratios                    Capitalized  Capi talized          December 31,                 Decem ber 31, 
--------------                    -----------  ---- -------    -----------------------      ----------- ------------ 
                                                                 2009        2008             2009        2008 
                                                                 ----        ----             ----        ---- 
 
Leverage.......................       4.0%         5.0%          10.8%       9.4%             10.7%        9.3% 
Risk-based capital: 
   Tier 1......................       4.0%         6.0%          15.3%      12.8%             15.1%       12.5% 
   Total.......................       8.0%        1 0.0%          16.5%      14.0%             16.3%       13.8% 
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                                           Ratios  
 
                                                            2009         2008          2007 



                                                            ----         ----          ---- 
Return on assets (net income applicable 
     to common stockholders divided by 
     average total assets)                                   .30%         .37%          .82% 
 
Return on equity (net income applicable 
     to common stockholders divided by 
     average equity)                                         3.5%         5.1%         11.4% 
 
Dividend payout ratio (dividends per 
    share divided by net income per 
    common share)                                               -        36.3%         41.0% 
 
Equity to asset ratio (average equity 
         divided  by average total assets)                   8.7%         7.3%          7.2% 

Liquidity Management  

Liquidity management involves monitoring the Compan y’s sources and uses of funds in order to meet its day-to-day cash flow 
requirements while maximizing profits. Liquidity re presents the ability of a company to convert assets  into cash or cash 
equivalents without significant loss and to raise a dditional funds by increasing liabilities. Liquidit y management is made more 
complicated because different balance sheet compone nts are subject to varying degrees of management co ntrol. For example, the 
timing of maturities of the investment portfolio is  very predictable and subject to a high degree of c ontrol at the time investment 
decisions are made; however, net deposit inflows an d outflows are far less predictable and are not sub ject to the same degree of 
control. Asset liquidity is provided by cash and as sets which are readily marketable, which can be ple dged, or which will mature in 
the near future. Liability liquidity is provided by  access to core funding sources, principally the ab ility to generate customer 
deposits in the Company’s market area.  

The Company’s Federal Funds Sold position, which is  typically its primary source of liquidity, average d $17.3 million during the 
year ended December 31, 2009 and totaled $7.6 milli on at December 31, 2009. Also, the Company has avai lable advances from the 
Federal Home Loan Bank. Advances available are gene rally based upon the amount of qualified first mort gage loans which can be used 
for collateral. At December 31, 2009, advances avai lable totaled approximately $113.2 million of which  $27.0 million had been 
drawn, or used for letters of credit.  

Management regularly reviews the liquidity position  of the Company and has implemented internal polici es which establish guidelines 
for sources of asset-based liquidity and limit the total amount of purchased funds used to support the  balance sheet and funding 
from non-core sources.  

EESA also increased FDIC deposit insurance on most accounts from $100,000 to $250,000. This increase i s in place until the end of 
2013 and is not covered by deposit insurance premiu ms paid by the banking industry.  
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Following a systemic risk determination, the FDIC e stablished a Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program (“TLGP”) on October 14, 2008. 
The TLGP includes the Transaction Account Guarantee  Program (“TAGP”), which provides unlimited deposit  insurance coverage through 
June 30, 2010 for noninterest-bearing transaction a ccounts (typically business checking accounts) and certain funds swept into 
noninterest-bearing savings accounts. Institutions participating in the TAGP pay a 10 basis points fee  (annualized) on the balance 
of each covered account in excess of $250,000, whil e the extra deposit insurance is in place. The Comp any is participating in the 
TAGP.  

The Company elected to participate in the Treasury TLG Program that provides an FDIC guarantee for all  senior unsecured debt, with 
stated maturities in excess of 30 days, issued betw een October 14, 2008 and June 30, 2009. The guarant ees will expire no later than 
June 30, 2012. The Company did not issue any debt u nder this program.  

Subprime Assets  

The Bank does not engage in subprime lending activi ties targeted towards borrowers in high risk catego ries.  

Accounting Matters  

Information on new accounting matters is set forth in Footnote B to the Consolidated Financial Stateme nts included at Item 8 in 
this report. This information is incorporated herei n by reference.  

Impact of Inflation  

Unlike most industrial companies, the assets and li abilities of financial institutions such as the Com pany are primarily monetary 
in nature. Therefore, interest rates have a more si gnificant effect on the Company’s performance than do the effects of changes in 
the general rate of inflation and change in prices.  In addition, interest rates do not necessarily mov e in the same direction or in 
the same magnitude as the prices of goods and servi ces. As discussed previously, management seeks to m anage the relationships 
between interest sensitive assets and liabilities i n order to protect against wide interest rate fluct uations, including those 
resulting from inflation.  
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                                                     REPORT OF 
                                   INDEPENDENT REGI STERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
 
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
The First Bancshares, Inc. 
Hattiesburg, Mississippi 
 



 
We have audited the accompanying  consolidated  bal ance sheets of The First Bancshares,  Inc., and sub sidiary as of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related  consol idated  statements of income,  changes in stockhold ers'  equity, 
and cash flows for the years then  ended.  These  f inancial  statements  are the  responsibility  of t he  Company's 
management.  Our responsibility is to express an op inion on these financial statements based on our au dits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the stan dards of the Public Company  Accounting  Oversight Board (United 
States).  Those  standards  require  that we plan a nd  perform  the  audits to obtain  reasonable  ass urance  about 
whether the  financial  statements  are free of mat erial  misstatement.  The Company is not  required to have,  nor 
were we engaged to  perform,  an audit of its  inte rnal  control  over  financial  reporting.  Our aud its  included 
consideration  of internal  control over financial  reporting as a basis for designing  audit  procedu res  that are 
appropriate  in the  circumstances,  but not for th e purpose of expressing an opinion on the  effectiv eness  of the 
Company's internal control over financial  reportin g.  Accordingly,  we express no such opinion.  An a udit includes 
examining,  on a test basis, evidence supporting th e amounts and disclosures in the financial statemen ts.  An audit 
also includes  assessing the accounting  principles  used and significant  estimates made by management ,  as well as 
evaluating the overall  financial  statement  prese ntation.  We believe that our audits provide a reas onable  basis 
for our opinion. 
 
In our  opinion,  the  financial  statements  refer red to above  present  fairly,  in all  material  r espects,  the 
consolidated  financial  position of The First Banc shares,  Inc., and subsidiary as of December 31,  2 009 and 2008, 
and the  consolidated  results of their  operations   and their cash flows for the years then ended,  i n  conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in th e United States of America. 
 
 
/s/ T. E. LOTT & COMPANY 
 
 
Columbus, Mississippi 
March 29, 2010 
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                                                  THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
                                                  C ONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
                                                  D ECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008  
 
     ASSETS                                                                      2009                 2008 
                                                                         --------------------   ------ -------------- 
 
Cash and due from banks                                                     $   8,119,637        $   8 ,887,322 
Interest-bearing deposits with banks                                              296,236            2 ,762,203 
Federal funds sold                                                              7,575,000           13 ,359,000 
                                                                            -------------        ----- -------- 
    Total cash and cash equivalents                                            15,990,873           25 ,008,525 
Held-to-maturity securities (fair value of  $3,047 in 
    2009 and $12,302 in 2008)                                                       2,983               12,440 
Available -for-sale securities                                                 112,231,024           99,678,613 
Other securities                                                                2,383,650            2 ,611,900 
                                                                            -------------        ----- -------- 
    Total securities                                                          114,617,657          102 ,302,953 
Loans held for sale                                                             3,692,316            3 ,112,572 
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,762,0 69 
    in 2009 and $4,784,919 in 2008                                            310,340,494          315 ,186,957 
Interest receivable                                                             2,318,207            2 ,604,585 
Premises and equipment                                                         14,279,291           15 ,279,185 
Cash surrender value of life insurance                                          5,857,074            5 ,659,897 
Goodwill                                                                          702,213              702,213 
Other assets                                                                    9,754,144            4 ,967,341 
                                                                            -------------        ----- -------- 
Total assets                                                                $ 477,552,269        $ 474 ,824,228 
                                                                            =============        ===== ======== 
 
     LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  
 
Deposits: 
    Noninterest-bearing                                                     $  48,527,218        $  57 ,594,234 
    Interest-bearing                                                          335,226,686          320 ,484,383 
                                                                            -------------        ----- -------- 
       Total deposits                                                         383,753,904          378 ,078,617 
Interest payable                                                                  672,355              849,873 
Borrowed funds                                                                 32,037,082           46 ,027,274 
Subordinated debentures                                                        10,310,000           10 ,310,000 
Other liabilities                                                               7,162,262            2 ,990,378 
                                                                            -------------        ----- -------- 
     Total liabilities                                                        433,935,603          438 ,256,142 
                                                                            -------------        ----- -------- 
Stockholders' Equity: 
    Preferred stock, no par value, $1,000 per share  liquidation, 
       10,000,000 shares authorized; 5,000 shares i ssued and out- 
         standing in 2009 and no shares issued and outstanding in 2008          4,773,010                    - 
    Common stock, par value $1 per share: 10,000,00 0 shares 
       authorized; 3,046,363 and 3,016,695 shares i ssued 
       in 2009 and 2008, respectively                                           3,046,363            3 ,016,695 
    Additional paid-in capital                                                 23,418,504           22 ,941,924 
    Retained earnings                                                          12,943,540           11 ,482,585 



    Accumulated other comprehensive loss                                        (101,106)            ( 409,473) 
    Treasury stock, at cost                                                     (463,645)            ( 463,645) 
                                                                            -------------        ----- -------- 
       Total stockholders' equity                                              43,616,666           36 ,568,086 
 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity                                  $ 477,552,269        $ 474 ,824,228 
                                                                            =============        ===== ======== 
 
 
 
                             The accompanying notes  are an integral part of these statements. 
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                                                THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
                                               CONS OLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
                                            YEARS E NDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008  
 
INTEREST INCOME                                                                     2009                 2008 
                                                                           --------------------------- ------------- 
    Interest and fees on loans                                                $  22,322,737        $  26,878,927 
    Interest and dividends on securities: 
       Taxable interest and dividends                                             2,878,125            3,575,212 
       Tax-exempt interest                                                          983,326              840,450 
    Interest on federal funds sold                                                   28,143              331,376 
    Interest on deposits in banks 
                                                                                     65,993               97,719 
                                                                              -------------        --- ---------- 
        Total interest income                                                    26,278,324           31,723,684 
                                                                              -------------        --- ---------- 
 
INTEREST EXPENSE 
    Interest on time deposits of $100,000 or more                                 2,246,314            2,821,373 
    Interest on other deposits                                                    6,230,761            8,877,148 
    Interest on borrowed funds                                                    1,762,639            2,447,674 
                                                                              -------------        --- ---------- 
       Total interest expense                                                    10,239,714           14,146,195 
                                                                              -------------        --- ---------- 
    Net interest income                                                          16,038,610           17,577,489 
    Provision for loan losses                                                     1,206,343            2,204,672 
                                                                              -------------        --- ---------- 
       Net interest income after provision for loan  losses                       14,832,267           15,372,817 
                                                                              -------------        --- ---------- 
 
OTHER INCOME 
    Service charges on deposit accounts                                           1,897,174            2,112,822 
    Other service charges and fees                                                  762,783              779,428 
    Bank owned life insurance income                                                197,177              197,959 
    Loss on other real estate                                                      (20,831)             (82,127) 
    Other                                                                            23,557              153,635 
     Impairment loss on securities: 
         Total other-than-temporary impairment loss                                (689,579)                    - 
         Less:  Portion of loss recognized in other  comprehensive income            578,151                    - 
                                                                              -------------        --- ---------- 
         Net impairment loss recognized in earnings                                (111,428)                    - 
                                                                              -------------        --- ---------- 
         Total other income                                                       2,748,432            3,161,717 
                                                                              -------------        --- ---------- 
OTHER EXPENSE 
    Salaries                                                                      7,098,129            8,156,502 
    Employee benefits                                                             1,302,807            1,298,422 
    Occupancy                                                                     1,082,818            1,158,206 
    Furniture and equipment                                                       1,104,138            1,172,961 
    Supplies and printing                                                           278,376              352,050 
    Professional and consulting fees                                                830,387              845,457 
    Marketing and public relations                                                  328,690              250,140 
    FDIC and OCC assessments                                                        968,524              421,724 
    Other                                                                         2,329,322            2,342,049 
                                                                              -------------        --- ---------- 
       Total other expense                                                       15,323,191           15,997,511 
                                                                              -------------        --- ---------- 
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                                                  THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
 
 
 
                                               CONS OLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
                                            YEARS E NDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008  
 
Continued:                                                                 2009                 2008 
                                                                 ------------------------------------- --- 
 



Income before income taxes                                               2,257,508            2,537,02 3 
Income taxes                                                               514,111              688,15 8 
                                                                   ---------------         ----------- - 
Net income                                                               1,743,397            1,848,86 5 
Preferred dividends                                                        225,694                    - 
Preferred stock accretion                                                   56,748                    - 
                                                                   ---------------         ----------- - 
     Net income applicable to common stockholders                  $     1,460,955         $  1,848,86 5 
                                                                   ===============         =========== = 
 
Net income per share: 
     Basic                                                         $           .58         $        .6 2 
     Diluted                                                                   .58                  .6 1 
Net income applicable to common stockholders: 
    Basic                                                          $           .49         $        .6 2 
    Diluted                                                                    .49                  .6 1 
 
 
                             The accompanying notes  are an integral part of these statements. 
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                                                THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
                                CONSOLIDATED STATEM ENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
                                          YEARS END ED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008  
 
                                                                                                      Accum- 
                       Compre-                                Additional                   Other      ulated 
                       hensive      Common      Pre ferred     Paid-in        Retained      Compre-    Treasury 
                       Income       Stock        St ock        Capital        Earnings      hensive    Stock           Total 
                                                                                                      Income 
                                                                                                      (Loss) 
                     ---------- ------------- ----- ------- -------------- -------------- ----------- - ------------ ------------ 
Balance, 
  January 1, 2008                $ 3,015,045  $        -    $22,929,333    $10,306,336    $493,590   $  (463,645)   $ 36,280,659 
Comprehensive 
  Income: 
    Net income 2008  $1,848,865            -           -              -      1,848,865           -             -      1,848,865 
    Net change in 
      unrealized 
      gain (loss) 
      on available- 
      for-sale 
      securities, 
      net of tax      (903,063)            -           -              -              -   (903,063)             -      (903,063) 
                    ----------- 
Comprehensive 
  Income             $  945,802 
                    =========== 
Exercise of stock 
  options                              1,650           -         10,725              -           -             -         12,375 
Stock option expense                       -                      1,866              -           -             -          1,866 
Cash dividend 
  declared, $.225 
  per share                                -           -              -      (672,616)           -             -      (672,616) 
                                  ----------   ---- ------    ----------     ----------     -------    ----------    ----------- 
 
Balance, 
  December 31, 2008                 3,016,695          -     22,941,924     11,482,585   (409,473)     (463,645)     36,568,086 
                                  ----------   ---- ------    ----------     ----------     -------    ----------    ----------- 
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                                                       THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
                                       CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
                                                 YE ARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008  
 
Continued: 
 
                                                                                                    Ac cum- 
                                                                                                    ul ated 
                             Compre-                                  Additional                     O ther 
                             hensive        Common      Preferred      Paid-in        Retained      Co mpre-   Treasury 
                              Income         Stock        Stock        Capital        Earnings      he nsive     Stock      Total 



                                                                                                    In come 
                                                                                                    (L oss) 
                          -------------- ---------- --- ------------ -------------- -------------- ---- ------- ---------- ----------  
Comprehensive 
  Income: 
    Net income 2009        $ 1,743,397             -            -              -      1,743,397           -          -   1,743,397 
     Non-credit related 
       impairment 
       loss on 
       investment 
       securities, 
       net of tax            (381,580)             -            -              -              -   (381 ,580)          -   (381,580) 
    Net change in 
       unrealized 
       gain 
       on available- 
       for-sale 
       securities, 
       net of tax              702,010             -            -              -              -     70 2,010          -     702,010 
     Net change in 
       unrealized 
       loss on 
       loans held for 
       sale, net of tax       (12,063)             -            -              -              -    (12 ,063)          -    (12,063) 
                          ------------ 
Comprehensive 
  Income                   $ 2,051,764 
                          ============ 
Issuance of 
  preferred 
  stock and warrant                                -    4,716,262        283,738              -          -           -   5,000,000 
Accretion of  
   preferred 
   stock discount                                  -       56,748              -       (56,748)          -           -           - 
Dividends on 
   preferred stock                                 -            -              -      (225,694)          -           -   (225,694) 
Exercise of stock 
  options                                     29,66 8            -        192,842             -           -           -     222,510 
                                        ----------- -   -----------  -------------  ------------ ------ ----  ---------- ------------  
Balance, 
  December 31, 2009                      $ 3,046,36 3   $4,773,010   $ 23,418,504   $12,943,540  $(101, 106)  $(463,645) $43,616,666 
                                        =========== =   ===========  =============  ============ ====== ====  ========== ============  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                             The accompanying notes  are an integral part of these statements. 
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                                                 THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
                                           CONSOLID ATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
                                          YEARS END ED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008  
 
                                                                                    2009                 2008 
                                                                            -------------------------- ----------- 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
    Net income                                                                  $  1,743,397         $   1,848,865 
    Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash  provided by 
    operating activities: 
       Depreciation and amortization                                                 970,262            1,056,786 
       Stock option expense                                                                -                1,866 
       FHLB Stock dividends                                                         (11,300)             (70,400) 
       Provision for loan losses                                                   1,206,343            2,204,672 
       Impairment loss on investment securities                                      111,428                    - 
       Deferred income taxes                                                       (265,607)            (206,303) 
       Increase in cash value of life insurance                                    (197,177)            (197,959) 
       Securities, amortization and accretion, net                                   336,253               32,249 
       Loss on sale/writedown of other real estate                                   268,062               82,127 
       Changes in: 
          Loans held for sale                                                      (598,021)            2,551,241 
          Interest receivable                                                        286,378              933,975 
          Other assets                                                           (2,342,018)            1,978,689 
          Interest payable                                                         (177,518)               72,144 
          Other liabilities                                                        4,139,940            1,242,852 
                                                                                ------------         - ----------- 
    Net cash provided by operating activities                                      5,470,422           11,530,804 
                                                                                ------------         - ----------- 



 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  
    Purchases of available-for-sale securities                                  (64,793,467)         ( 49,708,592) 
    Purchases of other securities                                                  (110,600)            (374,350) 
    Proceeds from maturities and calls of available -for-sale securities           52,288,321           30,654,367 
    Proceeds from sales of securities available-for -sale                                   -            2,760,000 
    Proceeds from redemption of other securities                                     350,150              552,800 
    Decrease in loans                                                                818,581           42,244,369 
    Net (additions) disposals to premises and equip ment                              245,086            (497,260) 
                                                                                ------------         - ----------- 
    Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi ties                         (11,201,929)           25,631,334 
                                                                                ------------         - ----------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  
    Increase (decrease) in deposits                                                5,675,287          (8,089,227) 
    Proceeds from borrowed funds                                                   3,000,000           15,000,000 
    Repayment of borrowed funds                                                 (16,990,192)         ( 29,745,246) 
    Exercise of stock options                                                        222,510               12,375 
    Dividends paid on common stock                                                         -            (672,616) 
    Dividends paid on preferred stock                                              (193,750)                    - 
    Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock and w arrant                          5,000,000                    - 
                                                                                ------------         - ----------- 
    Net cash used in financing activities                                        (3,286,145)         ( 23,494,714) 
                                                                                ------------         - ----------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                             The accompanying notes  are an integral part of these statements. 
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                                               THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
                                           CONSOLID ATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
                                          YEARS END ED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008  
 
Continued:                                                              2009                 2008 
                                                                  ------------------------------------ - 
 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent s                   (9,017,652)           13,667,42 4 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                          25,008,525           11,341,10 1 
                                                                      ------------         ----------- - 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year                              $ 15,990,873         $ 25,008,52 5 
                                                                      ============         =========== = 
 
Supplemental disclosures: 
 
Cash paid during the year for:  
    Interest                                                          $ 10,417,232         $ 14,580,87 2 
    Income taxes                                                           876,436              934,20 0 
 
Non-cash activities:  
    Transfers of loans to other real estate                              2,821,539            1,701,97 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                               The accompanying not es are an integral part of these statements. 
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                                                THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
 
 
                                          NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
NOTE A - NATURE OF BUSINESS  
 
    The First  Bancshares,  Inc.  (the  Company) is  a bank holding  company  whose  business is primar ily  conducted by its 



    wholly-owned  subsidiary,  The First,  A Nation al  Banking  Association  (the Bank).  The Bank pro vides a full range of 
    banking  services in its primary  market area o f South  Mississippi.  The Company is regulated  by  the Federal  Reserve 
    Bank. Its subsidiary bank is subject to the reg ulation of the Office of the Comptroller of the Cur rency (OCC). 
 
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
    The Company  and its  subsidiary  follow  accou nting  principles  generally  accepted  in the Unit ed  States of America 
    including, where applicable, general practices within the banking industry. 
 
     1.       Principles of Consolidation  
 
    The  consolidated  financial  statements  inclu de the  accounts of the Company  and its  wholly-ow ned  subsidiary.  All 
    significant intercompany accounts and transacti ons have been eliminated. 
 
     2.       Estimates  
 
    The  preparation of financial  statements in co nformity  with accounting  principles  generally  a ccepted in the United 
    States of America requires  management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
    liabilities  and  disclosure of contingent  ass ets and  liabilities  at the date of the  financial   statements  and the 
    reported  amounts of revenues  and  expenses  d uring the  reporting  period.  Actual  results  cou ld  differ from those 
    estimates.  Material  estimates that are partic ularly  susceptible to significant change in the ne ar term relate to the 
    determination of the allowance for loan losses and the valuation of deferred tax assets. 
 
     3.       Cash and Due From Banks  
 
    Included in cash and due from banks are legal r eserve  requirements which must be maintained on an  average basis in the 
    form of cash and  balances  due from the Federa l  Reserve.  The reserve  balance  varies  dependin g  upon the types and 
    amounts of deposits.  At December 31, 2009, the  required  reserve  balance on deposit with the Fed eral Reserve Bank was 
    approximately $25,000. 
 
     4.       Securities  
 
    Investments in securities are accounted for as follows: 
 
    Available-for-Sale Securities  
 
    Securities classified as available-for-sale  ar e those securities that are intended to be held for  an indefinite period 
    of time, but not necessarily to maturity.  Any decision to sell a security  classified as  availab le-for-sale  would be 
    based on various factors,  including movements in interest rates,  liquidity needs, security risk assessments,  changes 
    in the mix of assets and liabilities and other similar  factors.  These  securities are carried at  their estimated fair 
    value, and the net unrealized gain or loss is r eported in stockholders'  equity,  net of tax, unti l realized.  Premiums 
    and  discounts  are  recognized  in  interest  income  using  the  interest  method.  Gains  and  losses on the sale of 
    available-for-sale securities are determined us ing the adjusted cost of the specific security sold . 
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    Securities to be Held-to-Maturity  
 
    Securities  classified as  held-to-maturity  ar e those  securities for which there is a positive  intent and ability to 
    hold to  maturity.  These  securities  are carr ied at cost  adjusted  for  amortization  of premiu ms  and  accretion of 
    discounts, computed by the interest method. 
 
    Trading Account Securities  
 
    Trading account securities are those securities  which are held for the purpose of selling them at a profit.  There were 
    no trading account securities on hand at Decemb er 31, 2009 and 2008. 
 
    Other Securities  
 
    Other  securities  are  carried  at  cost  and  are  restricted  in   marketability.   Other   sec urities   consist  of 
    investments in the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB ),  Federal Reserve Bank and First National  Banker s'  Bankshares,  Inc. 
    Management reviews for impairment based on the ultimate recoverability of the cost basis. 
 
    Other-than-Temporary Impairment  
 
    Management evaluates investment securities for  other-than-temporary  impairment on a quarterly ba sis. A decline in the 
    fair value of  available-for-sale  and held-to- maturity  securities below cost that is deemed  oth er-than-temporary  is 
    charged to  earnings  for a decline in value  d eemed to be credit  related  and a new cost  basis for the  security  is 
    established.  The decline in value  attributed to  non-credit  related  factors is  recognized  in  other  comprehensive 
    income. 
 
    5.       Loans held for sale  
 
       The Company  originates fixed rate single fa mily,  residential  first mortgage loans on a preso ld basis. The Company 
    issues a rate lock commitment to a customer and   concurrently  "locks in" with a secondary market investor under a best 
    efforts delivery  mechanism.  Such loans are so ld without the servicing retained by the Company.  The terms of the loan 
    are dictated by the secondary  investors and ar e transferred  within several weeks of the Company initially funding the 
    loan. The Company  recognizes  certain  origina tion  fees and service release fees upon the sale, which are included in 
    interest and fees on loans in the  consolidated   statements of income.  Between the initial fundin g of the loans by the 
    Company and the subsequent  purchase by the inv estor,  the Company carries the loans held for sale  at the lower of cost 
    or fair value in the aggregate as determined by  the outstanding commitments from investors. 
 
     6.       Loans  
 
    Loans are carried at the principal amount outst anding,  net of the allowance for loan losses.  Int erest income on loans 
    is recognized  based on the principal  balance  outstanding and the stated rate of the loan. Loan  origination fees and 
    certain  direct  origination  costs are deferre d and  recognized  as an  adjustment of the related  loan yield using the 
    interest method. 



 
    A loan is considered impaired, in accordance wi th the impairment accounting guidance Accounting St andards  Codification 
    (ASC) Section 310-10-35,  Receivables,  Subsequent Measurement ,  when--based upon current events and information- -it is 
    probable that the scheduled  payments of princi pal or interest will not be collected in accordance  with the contractual 
    terms of the loan  agreement.  Factors  conside red by management in  determining  impairment  incl ude  payment  status, 
    collateral  values,  and the  probability  of  collecting  scheduled  payments  of  principal  and   interest  when due. 
    Generally, impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis using the fair value of the supporting c ollateral. 
 
                                                       37 

    Loans are  generally  placed on a  nonaccrual  status  when  principal  or  interest  is past due  ninety  days or when 
    specifically  determined to be impaired.  When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, interest acc rued but not received 
    is generally  reversed against interest income.   If  collectibility  is in doubt, cash receipts on  nonaccrual loans are 
    used to reduce principal rather than recorded i n interest income.  Past due status is determined b ased upon contractual 
    terms. 
 
    7.       Allowance for Loan Losses  
 
    For  financial  reporting  purposes,  the provi sion  for loan losses  charged to operations is bas ed upon  management's 
    estimations of the amount  necessary to maintai n the allowance at an adequate level.  Allowances f or any impaired loans 
    are generally  determined  based on  collateral   values.  Loans are charged  against the allowance  for loan losses when 
    management believes the collectibility of the p rincipal is unlikely. 
 
    Management  evaluates the adequacy of the allow ance for loan losses on a regular  basis.  These  e valuations  are based 
    upon a  periodic  review of the  collectibility   considering  historical  experience,  the nature and value of the loan 
    portfolio,  underlying  collateral values,  int ernal and independent loan reviews,  and prevailing  economic conditions. 
    In addition,  the OCC, as a part of the regulat ory  examination  process,  reviews the loan portfo lio and the allowance 
    for loan  losses  and may  require  changes  in  the  allowance  based  upon  information  availabl e  at the time of the 
    examination.  The  allowance  consists of two  components:  allocated  and  unallocated.  The  com ponents  represent an 
    estimation done pursuant to either ASC Topic 45 0,  Contingencies ,  or ASC Subtopic 310-10.  The allocated  componen t of 
    the allowance  reflects expected losses resulti ng from an analysis  developed  through specific cr edit  allocations for 
    individual loans,  including any impaired loans , and historical loan loss history.  The analysis i s performed quarterly 
    and loss factors are updated regularly. 
 
    The unallocated  portion of the allowance  refl ects  management's  estimate of probable  inherent but undetected losses 
    within  the  portfolio  due to  uncertainties  in  economic  conditions,  changes  in  collateral  values,  unfavorable 
    information about a borrower's  financial  cond ition,  and other risk factors that have not yet ma nifested  themselves. 
    In addition,  the unallocated  allowance includ es a component that explicitly accounts for the inh erent  imprecision in 
    the loan loss analysis. 
 
    8.       Premises and Equipment  
 
    Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less  accumulated  depreciation.  The  depreciation  pol icy is to provide for 
    depreciation  over the estimated  useful lives of the assets using the  straight-line  method.  Re pairs and maintenance 
    expenditures  are charged to operating  expense s;  major  expenditures for renewals and betterment s are capitalized and 
    depreciated over their estimated useful lives.  Upon retirement,  sale, or other disposition of pr operty and equipment, 
    the cost and  accumulated  depreciation  are  e liminated  from the  accounts,  and any gains or lo sses are  included in 
    operations. 
 
     9.       Other Real Estate  
 
    Other real estate consists of properties  acqui red through  foreclosure and, as held for sale prop erty,  is recorded at 
    the lower of the  outstanding  loan balance or current  appraisal less estimated  costs to sell. A ny write-down to fair 
    value required at the time of foreclosure  is c harged to the allowance for loan losses.  Subsequen t  gains or losses on 
    other real estate are  reported in other  opera ting  income or  expenses.  At  December  31, 2009 and 2008,  other real 
    estate totaled $2,902,997 and $1,629,409, respe ctively. 
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    10.      Goodwill and Intangible Assets  
 
    The following table summarizes the changes in g oodwill and core deposit intangible asset for the y ear 
    ended December 31, 2009. 
 
 
 
                                                                                Core deposit 
          (Dollars in thousands)                            Goodwill              intangible 
                                                  - ----------------------------------------- 
 
          Balance, January 1, 2009                            $  702                $    537 
          Amortization                                             -                      69 
                                                            --------            ------------ 
          Balance, December 31, 2009                          $  702                $    468 
                                                            ========            ============ 
 
 
    Acquired  goodwill and core deposit  intangible   are related to the  acquisition  of First  Nation al Bank of Wiggins on 
    October 1, 2006. 
 
 
    The following table presents the forecasted cor e deposit intangible asset amortization expense for  2010 through 2014. 
 
 



 
 
                    (Dollars in thousands)             Full year 
                                                        expected 
                    Year                              amortization 
                    ----                              ------------ 
                    2010                                  $69 
                    2011                                   69 
                    2012                                   69 
                    2013                                   69 
                    2014                                   69 
 
    11.      Other Assets and Cash Surrender Value  
 
    Financing  costs related to the issuance of jun ior  subordinated  debentures  are being  amortized  over the life of the 
 
    instruments and are included in other assets.  The Company invests in bank owned life insurance  ( BOLI).  BOLI involves 
    the  purchasing  of life  insurance  by the  Co mpany on a chosen  group of  employees.  The Compan y is the owner of the 
    policies and,  accordingly,  the cash  surrende r  value of the policies is reported as an asset,  and increases in cash 
    surrender values are reported as income. 
 
    12.      Stock Options  
 
    The  Company  accounted  for  stock  based  com pensation  in  accordance  with  ASC  Topic  718,  Compensation  - Stock 
    Compensation .  No stock options were granted during the twelve months ended December 31, 2009. 
 
    13.      Income Taxes  
 
    Income taxes are provided for the tax effects o f the transactions  reported in the financial  stat ements and consist of 
    taxes  currently  payable  plus  deferred  taxe s  related  primarily  to  differences  between  th e bases of assets and 
    liabilities  as measured by income tax laws and  their bases as reported in the financial  statemen ts.  The deferred tax 
    assets and  liabilities  represent the future t ax  consequences of those  differences,  which will  either be taxable or 
    deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. 
 
    The Company and its subsidiary  file  consolida ted  income tax returns.  The subsidiary  provides for income taxes on a 
    separate return basis and remits to the Company  amounts determined to be payable. 
    ASC Topic 740,  Income Taxes ,  provides  guidance on financial  statement  reco gnition and measurement of tax positions 
    taken, or expected to be taken,  in tax returns .  ASC Topic 740 requires an evaluation of tax posi tions to determine if 
    the tax positions will more likely than not be sustainable upon examination by the appropriate  ta xing  authority.  The 
    Company at  December  31, 2009 and 2008,  had n o  uncertain  tax  positions  that  qualify  for ei ther  recognition  or 
    disclosure in the financial statements. 
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    14.      Advertising Costs  
 
    Advertising  costs are  expensed  in the period  in which they are  incurred.  Advertising  expense   for the years ended 
    December 31, 2009 and 2008, was approximately $ 246,306 and $186,073, respectively. 
 
    15.      Statements of Cash Flows  
 
    For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash, amounts due from ban ks,  interest-bearing 
    deposits with banks and federal funds sold.  Ge nerally, federal funds are sold for a one to seven day period. 
 
    16.      Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments  
 
    In the ordinary course of business,  the subsid iary bank enters into off-balance sheet financial i nstruments consisting 
    of commitments to extend  credit,  credit card lines and standby  letters of credit.  Such  financ ial  instruments  are 
    recorded in the financial statements when they are exercised. 
 
    17.      Earnings Applicable to Common Stockholders  
 
    Per share  amounts are  presented in accordance   with ASC Topic 260,  Earnings Per Share .  Under ASC Topic 260, two per 
    share  amounts  are  considered  and  presented ,  if  applicable.  Basic  per  share  data is  cal culated  based on the 
    weighted-average  number of common shares outst anding during the reporting period.  Diluted per sh are data includes any 
    dilution from potential common stock, such as o utstanding stock options. 
 
    The  following  table  discloses  the  reconcil iation  of the  numerators  and  denominators  of t he basic and  diluted 
    computations applicable to common stockholders:  
 
 
 
                                         For the Ye ar Ended                                    For the  Year Ended 
                                          December 31, 2009                                     Decemb er 31, 2008 
                            ----------------------- --------------------------    --------------------- --------------------------- 
                                Net                                                  Net 
                               Income            Sh ares          Per Share         Income              Shares         Per Share 
                            (Numerator)       (Deno minator)        Amount        (Numerator)       (De nominator)        Amount 
                            -----------       ----- --------      ----------      -----------       --- ----------      --------- 
 
Basic per common share      $1,460,955          3,0 11,430         $   .49         $1,848,865         2 ,989,666          $   .62 
                                                                 =========                                            ========= 
 
Effect of dilutive shares: 
  Stock options                                         -                                               46,393 
                                              ----- ------                                           -- -------- 
                            $1,460,955          3,0 11,430         $   .49         $1,848,865         3 ,036,059          $   .61 
                            ==========        ===== ======        =========        ==========        == ========        ========= 



 
 
    The diluted per share amounts were computed by applying the treasury stock method. 
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    18.      Reclassifications  
 
    Certain reclassifications have been made to the  2008 financial statements to conform with the 
    classifications used in 2009. These  reclassifi cations  did not impact the Company's  consolidated   financial condition 
    or results of operations. 
 
    19.      Accounting Pronouncements  
 
    In June, 2009, FASB issued the Accounting Stand ards Codification (ASC) Topic 105, Generally Accepted Accounting 
    Principles , which became effective on July 1, 2009.  At that date, the ASC became FASB's officially recognized s ource 
    of authoritative U.S. generally accepted accoun ting principles (GAAP) applicable to all public and  non-public 
    non-governmental entities, superseding existing  FASB, American Institute of Certified Public Accou ntants (AICPA), 
    Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) and related l iterature.  Rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under the 
    authority of federal securities laws are also s ources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants.  All other accounting 
    literature is considered nonauthoritative.  The  switch to the ASC affects the way companies refer to U.S. GAAP in 
    financial statements and accounting policies.  Citing particular content in the ASC involves speci fying the unique 
    numeric path to the content through the Topic, Subtopic, Section and Paragraph structure. 
 
    In April, 2009, the FASB issued ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures . This guidance affirms that the 
    objective of fair value when the market for an asset is not active is the price that would be rece ived to sell the 
    asset in an orderly transaction; includes addit ional factors for determining whether there has bee n a significant 
    decrease in market activity for an asset when t he market is inactive; eliminates the presumption t hat all transactions 
    are distressed unless proven otherwise requirin g an entity to base its conclusion on the weight of  evidence; and 
    requires an entity to disclose a change in valu ation technique resulting from application of the g uidance and to 
    quantify its effects, if practicable.  The guid ance is effective for interim and annual periods en ding after June 15, 
    2009 with early adoption permitted for periods ending after March 15, 2009.  The adoption of the g uidance did not have 
    a material impact on the Company's financial co ndition or results of operation. 
 
    In April 2009, the FASB issued ASC Topic 320, Investments-Debt and Equity Securities ,(specifically ASC Section 
    320-10-35) regarding recognition and presentati on of other-than-temporary impairments that changes  existing guidance 
    for determining whether an impairment is other- than-temporary to debt securities; replaces the exi sting requirement 
    that the entity's management assert it has both  the intent and ability to hold an impaired securit y until recovery 
    with a requirement that management assert: (a) it does not have the intent to sell the security an d (b) it is more 
    likely than not it will not have to sell the se curity before recovery of its cost basis; requires that an entity 
    recognize noncredit losses on held-to-maturity debt securities in other comprehensive income and a mortize the amount 
    over the remaining life of the security in a pr ospective manner by offsetting the recorded value o f the asset unless 
    the security is subsequently sold or there are credit losses; requires an entity to present the to tal 
    other-than-temporary impairment in the statemen t of earnings with an offset for the amount recogni zed in other 
    comprehensive income; and at adoption, requires  an entity to record a cumulative-effect adjustment  as of the beginning 
    of the period of adoption to reclassify the non credit component of a previously recognized other-t han-temporary 
    impairment from retained earnings to accumulate d other comprehensive income if the entity does not  intend to sell the 
    security and it is more likely than not that th e entity will not be required to sell the security before 
    recovery.  The authoritative guidance is effect ive for interim and annual periods ending after Jun e 15, 2009 with 
    early adoption permitted for periods ending aft er March 15, 2009.  The adoption of the guidance di d not have a 
    material impact on the Company's financial cond ition or results of operations. 
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    In April 2009, the FASB issued ASC  Topic 825, Financial Instruments .  Under this guidance, a publicly traded company 
    is required to include disclosures about the fa ir value of its financial instruments whenever it i ssues summarized 
    financial information for interim reporting per iods.  In addition, an entity is required to disclo se in the body or in 
    the accompanying notes of its summarized financ ial information for interim reporting periods and i n its financial 
    statements for annual reporting periods the fai r value of all financial instruments for which it i s practicable to 
    estimate that value, whether recognized or not recognized in the balance sheet.  The guidance was effective for 
    interim periods ending after June 15, 2009.  Th e adoption of the guidance did not have a material impact on the 
    Company's financial condition or results of ope rations. 
 
    In February 2009, the FASB issued ASC Topic 805 , Business Combinations , regarding accounting for assets acquired and 
    liability assumed in a business combination tha t arise from contingencies, that amends provisions related to the 
    initial recognition and measurement, subsequent  measurement and disclosure of assets and liabiliti es arising from 
    contingencies in a business combination. The gu idance is effective for all business combinations f or which the 
    acquisition date is on or after the beginning o f the first annual reporting period beginning on or  after December 15, 
    2008. The impact on the Company's financial con dition or results of operations is dependent on the  extent of future 
    business combinations. 
 
    In April 2008, the FASB issued ASC Subtopic 350 -20, Goodwill  and ASC Subtopic 350-30, Intangible Other than Goodwill  
    for the determination of the useful life of int angible assets which amends the factors that should  be considered in 
    developing renewal or extension assumptions use d to determine the useful life of a recognized inta ngible asset under 
    previous guidance for determining goodwill and other intangible assets.  The intent of the guidanc e is to improve the 
    consistency between the useful life of a recogn ized intangible asset and the period of expected ca sh flows used to 
    measure the fair value of the asset.  This guid ance was effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years 
    beginning after December 15, 2008. The adoption  of the guidance did not have a material impact on the Company's 
    financial condition or results of operations. 
 
    ASC Topic 860,  Transfers  and  Servicing ,  amends prior  guidance to enhance  reporting  ab out  transfers of financial 
    assets,  including  securitizations,  and where  companies have continuing  exposure to the risks r elated to transferred 
    financial assets. The new authoritative  accoun ting  guidance  eliminates the concept of a "qualif ying  special-purpose 
    entity" and changes the requirements for dereco gnizing  financial assets.  The new  authoritative  accounting  guidance 
    also requires  additional  disclosures about al l continuing  involvements  with transferred  finan cial assets including 



    information  about gains and losses  resulting  from  transfers  during the period.  The new  auth oritative  accounting 
    guidance  under ASC Topic 860 will be effective   January 1, 2010,  and is not expected to have a s ignificant  impact on 
    the Company's consolidated financial statements . 
 
 
 
NOTE C - SECURITIES  
 
    A summary  of the  amortized  cost and  estimat ed  fair value of  available-for-sale  securities  and  held-to-maturity 
    securities at December 31, 2009 and 2008, follo ws: 
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                                                                          December 31, 2009 
                                              ----- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------ 
 
                                                                          Gross             Gross            Estimated 
                                                     Amortized          Unrealized        Unrealized           Fair 
                                                        Cost              Gains             Losses             Value 
                                                     ----------         ----------        ----------         --------- 
   Available-for-sale securities: 
      Obligations of U.S. Government 
         Agencies                                   $ 31,061,333       $   387,491        $   56,602       $ 31,392,222 
      Tax-exempt and taxable 
         obligations of states and 
         municipal subdivisions                       41,088,714           965,403            72,217         41,981,900 
       Mortgage-backed securities                     27,226,696           985,163            84,851         28,127,008 
       Corporate obligations                          11,742,149            51,683         2,021,721          9,772,111 
       Other                                           1,247,049                 -           289,266            957,783 
                                                    ------------       -----------        ----------       ------------ 
                                                    $112,365,941       $ 2,389,740        $2,524,657       $112,231,024 
                                                    ============       ===========        ==========       ============ 
   Held-to-maturity securities: 
       Mortgage-backed securities                   $      2,983       $        64        $        -       $      3,047 
                                                    ============       ===========        ==========       ============ 
 
 
                                                                          December 31, 2008 
                                              ----- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------ 
 
                                                                            Gross            Gross            Estimated 
                                                      Amortized          Unrealized        Unrealized           Fair 
                                                         Cost               Gains            Losses             Value 
                                                      ----------         ----------        ----------         --------- 
   Available-for-sale securities: 
      Obligations of U.S. Government 
         agencies                                   $ 28,010,915         $  703,354          $     -        $28,714,269 
      Tax-exempt and taxable 
         obligations of states and 
         municipal subdivisions                       23,305,755            243,123          455,620         23,093,258 
       Mortgage-backed securities                     35,869,951            524,946          295,877         36,099,020 
       Corporate obligations                          11,903,923             59,839        1,150,369         10,813,393 
       Other                                           1,208,474                  -          249,801            958,673 
                                                    ------------        -----------       ----------        ----------- 
                                                    $100,299,018        $ 1,531,262       $2,151,667        $99,678,613 
                                                    ============        ===========       ==========        =========== 
   Held-to-maturity securities: 
       Mortgage-backed securities                   $     12,440        $         -       $      138        $    12,302 
                                                    ============        ===========       ==========        =========== 
 
 
 
The scheduled maturities of securities at December 31, 2009, were as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                                Available-for-Sale                    Held-to-Maturity 
                                                       ----------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                               Estimated                           Estimated 
                                                           Amortized             Fair            Amort ized           Fair 
                                                              Cost               Value              Co st             Value 
                                                       ----------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
 
      Due less than one year                             $ 15,731,960        $15,943,868         $       -         $      - 
      Due after one year through five years                44,261,937         44,932,952                 -                - 
      Due after five years through ten years               15,504,492         15,863,078                 -                - 
      Due after ten years                                   9,640,856          7,364,118                 -                - 
      Mortgage-backed securities                           27,226,696         28,127,008             2 ,983            3,047 
                                                         ------------       ------------         ----- ----         -------- 
                                                         $112,365,941       $112,231,024         $   2 ,983         $  3,047 
                                                         ============       ============         ===== ====         ======== 
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    Actual maturities can differ from contractual  maturities  because the obligations may be called o r prepaid with or without 
    penalties. 
 
    No  gains  or  losses  resulting  from  the  sa le of  available-for-sale  securities  were  realiz ed  in 2009 or  2008.  An 
    other-than-temporary  impairment loss of $111,4 28 was recognized for the year ended 2009. 
 
    Securities with a carrying value of $84,231,952  and $53,743,733 at December 31, 2009 and 2008,  re spectively,  were pledged 
    to secure public deposits, repurchase agreement s, and for other purposes as required or permitted by law. 
 
    The   details    concerning    securities    cl assified   as    available-for-sale    with   unrea lized    losses   as   of 
    December 31, 2009 and 2008, were as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                                          2009 
                                 ------------------ --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
                                       Losses  <12 Months             Losses 12 Months or                   Total 
                                 ------------------ --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
                                                     Gross                            Gross                           Gross 
                                      Fair         Unrealized         Fair         Unrealized          Fair         Unrealized 
                                     Value           Losses          Value           Losses           Value           Losses 
                                 ------------------ --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
    Obligations of U.S. 
     government agencies         $ 7,113,888       $  56,602     $         -      $         -     $ 7, 113,888      $   56,602 
    Tax-exempt and tax- 
     able obligations of 
     states and municipal 
     subdivisions                  5,055,888          71,665          90,567              552       5, 146,455          72,217 
    Mortgage-backed 
     securities                      776,355           3,091         321,532           81,760       1, 097,887          84,851 
    Corporate obligations            487,730         398,736       3,811,605        1,622,985       4, 299,335       2,021,721 
    Other                                  -               -         957,783          289,266         957,783         289,266 
                                 -----------       ---------     -----------      -----------     ---- -------      ---------- 
                                 $13,433,861       $ 530,094     $ 5,181,487      $ 1,994,563     $18, 615,348      $2,524,657 
                                 ===========       =========     ===========      ===========     ==== =======      ========== 
 
 
                                                                       2008 
                                 ------------------ ------------- -------------------------------- ---- --------------------------- 
                                       Losses  <12 Months             Losses 12 Months or                   Total 
                                 ------------------ --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
                                                     Gross                            Gross                           Gross 
                                      Fair         Unrealized         Fair         Unrealized          Fair         Unrealized 
                                     Value           Losses          Value           Losses           Value           Losses 
                                 ------------------ --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
    Obligations of U.S. 
     government agencies          $         -      $        -      $        -        $       -     $         -      $        - 
    Tax-exempt and tax- 
     able obligations of 
     states and municipal 
     subdivisions                   8,517,167         354,987         684,367          100,633       9 ,201,534         455,620 
    Mortgage-backed 
     securities                     8,327,567         292,600          14,702            3,277       8 ,342,269         295,877 
    Corporate obligations           7,946,273       1,058,465         280,090           91,904       8 ,226,363       1,150,369 
    Other                                   -               -         958,673          249,801         958,673         249,801 
                                  -----------      ----------      ----------        ---------     --- --------      ---------- 
                                  $24,791,007      $1,706,052      $1,937,832        $ 445,615     $26 ,728,839      $2,151,667 
                                  ===========      ==========      ==========        =========     === ========      ========== 
 
 
    Approximately  23.5% of the number of  securiti es  in the  investment  portfolio  at December  31,   2009,  reflected  an 
    unrealized  loss.  Management is of the opinion  the Company has the ability to hold these  securit ies until such time as 
    the value recovers or the securities  mature.  Management  also believes the  deterioration  in va lue is attributable to 
    changes in market interest rates and lack of li quidity in the credit markets.  We have determined that these  securities 
    are not other-than-temporarily impaired based u pon anticipated cash flows. 
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NOTE D - LOANS  
 
    Loans outstanding included the following types at December 31, 2009 and 2008: 
 
                                                                             2009               2008 
                                                                     --------------------------------- - 
                                                                                 (In thousands) 
 
      Commercial, financial and agricultural                               $  43,229          $  37,86 1 
      Real estate - construction                                              68,695             81,17 8 
      Real estate - mortgage                                                 190,229            184,78 4 
      Installment loans to individuals                                        12,812             15,94 2 
      Overdrafts                                                                 137                20 7 
                                                                           ---------         --------- - 
                                                                             315,102            319,97 2 
      Allowance for loan losses                                              (4,762)            (4,785 ) 
                                                                           ---------         --------- - 
 



                                                                           $ 310,340         $  315,18 7 
                                                                           =========         ========= = 
 
 
    Transactions in the allowance for loan losses f or the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, were  as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                                            2009                2008 
                                                                    ---------------------------------- - 
 
      Balance at beginning of year                                       $ 4,784,919        $ 4,221,24 0 
 
      Additions: 
          Provision for loan losses charged to oper ations                  1,206,343          2,204,67 2 
          Recoveries                                                         166,904            142,86 1 
                                                                         -----------        ---------- - 
                                                                           6,158,166          6,568,77 3 
      Deductions: 
          Loans charged off                                                1,396,097          1,783,85 4 
                                                                         -----------        ---------- - 
      Balance at end of year                                              $4,762,069        $ 4,784,91 9 
                                                                         ===========        ========== = 
 
 
    Included in certain loan  categories in the imp aired  loans are troubled debt  restructurings  tha t were  classified as 
    impaired.  At December 31, 2009,  the Company h ad $0.8  million of  commercial  loans and $1.5 mil lion of real estate - 
    mortgage  loans that were modified in troubled debt  restructurings  and impaired.  In addition to  these  amounts,  the 
    Company had troubled debt  restructurings  that  were  performing in accordance with their modified  terms of $.5 million 
    of real estate - mortgage loans at December 31,  2009. 
 
    The  following  table  represents  the  Company 's  impaired  loans at December 31, 2009 and 2008.  This table  excludes 
    performing troubled debt restructurings. 
 
 
 
                                                                            2009               2008 
                                                                        ------------------------------ -- 
                                                                                 (In thousands) 
      Impaired Loans: 
          Impaired loans without a valuation allowa nce                   $    12,295        $    9,322  
          Impaired loans with a valuation allowance                             8,314             7,470  
                                                                         -----------        ---------- - 
      Total impaired loans                                               $    20,609        $   16,792  
                                                                         ===========        ========== = 
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     Continued: 
                                                                                2009               200 8 
                                                                          ---------------------------- ---- 
                                                                                    (In thousands) 
 
      Allowance for loan losses on impaired loans a t year end               $  2,004           $  1,36 9 
 
      Total nonaccrual loans                                                   4,367              3,34 0 
 
      Past due 90 days or more and still accruing                              1,447              1,73 2 
 
      Average investment in impaired loans                                    19,114             13,78 4 
 
      Interest paid on impaired loans                                          1,297                86 1 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE E - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT  
 
    Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less  accumulated depreciation and amortization as follo ws: 
 
                                                                                 2009                 2008 
                                                                           --------------------------- --------- 
 
      Premises: 
          Land                                                               $ 4,970,959        $ 4,96 3,029 
          Buildings and improvements                                           9,848,581         10,31 6,062 
      Equipment                                                                4,418,294          5,34 1,598 
      Construction in progress                                                   141,923             1 0,947 
                                                                            ------------        ------ ----- 
                                                                              19,379,757         20,63 1,636 
      Less accumulated depreciation and amortizatio n                           5,100,466          5,35 2,451 
                                                                            ------------        ------ ----- 
                                                                             $14,279,291        $15,27 9,185 
                                                                            ============        ====== ===== 
 
 
    The amounts charged to operating expense for de preciation were $754,808 and $840,501 in 2009 and 2 008, respectively. 



 
 
 
NOTE F - DEPOSITS  
 
    The  aggregate  amount of time  deposits in  de nominations  of $100,000 or more as of December 31,   2009,  and 2008 was 
    $89,926,071 and $87,943,691, respectively. 
 
    At December 31, 2009, the scheduled  maturities  of time deposits included in interest-bearing  dep osits were as follows 
    (in thousands): 
                                                        Year               Amount 
                                                        ----               ------ 
 
                                                        2010              $154,483 
                                                        2011                10,030 
                                                        2012                 2,819 
                                                        2013                 1,286 
                                                        2014                 3,424 
                                                                          -------- 
                                                                          $172,042 
                                                                          ======== 
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NOTE G - BORROWED FUNDS 
 
    Borrowed funds consisted of the following: 
 
                                                                          December 31, 
                                                             ------------------------------------ 
                                                                     2009               2008 
                                                             ----------------------------------- 
 
      Reverse Repurchase Agreement                                $15,000,000        $15,000,000 
      FHLB advances                                                17,037,082         31,027,274 
                                                                  -----------        ----------- 
                                                                  $32,037,082        $46,027,274 
                                                                  ===========        =========== 
 
    Advances from the FHLB have maturity dates rang ing from June, 2010 through July,  2013.  Interest is payable monthly at 
    rates ranging from 2.959% to 5.920%.  Advances due to the FHLB are  collateralized  by a blanket l ien on first mortgage 
 
    loans in the amount of the  outstanding  borrow ings,  FHLB  capital  stock,  and amounts on deposi t  with the FHLB.  At 
    December 31, 2009, FHLB advances available and unused totaled $86,214,775. 
 
    Future annual principal repayment requirements on the borrowings from the FHLB at December 31, 200 9, were as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                 Ye ar                            Amount 
                                                 -- --                            ------ 
 
                                                 20 10                          $10,430,185 
                                                 20 11                            3,075,064 
                                                 20 12                            1,761,059 
                                                 20 13                            1,770,774 
                                                                               ----------- 
                                                                               $17,037,082 
                                                                               =========== 
 
    Reverse Repurchase Agreements consisted of thre e $5,000,000  agreements.  The agreements are secur ed by securities with 
 
    a fair value of  $17,444,000  at December 31, 2 009 and  $17,805,000  at December 31, 2008.  The ma turity dates are from 
    August 22, 2012 through September 26, 2017, wit h rates between 3.81% and 4.51%. 
 
NOTE H - REGULATORY MATTERS 
 
    The Company and its subsidiary  bank are subjec t to regulatory  capital  requirements  administere d  by federal banking 
    agencies.  Failure to meet  minimum  capital  r equirements  can initiate  certain  mandatory  and  possibly  additional 
    discretionary  actions by  regulators  that,  i f  undertaken,  could  have a direct  material  eff ect on the  Company's 
    financial  statements.  Under capital adequacy  guidelines and the regulatory  framework for promp t corrective  action, 
    the Company and its  subsidiary  bank must meet   specific  capital  guidelines  that involve  quan titative  measures of 
    assets, liabilities,  and certain off-balance s heet items as calculated under regulatory accountin g practices.  Capital 
    amounts and classifications are also subject to  qualitative  judgment by regulators about componen ts,  risk weightings, 
    and other related factors. 
 
    To ensure capital adequacy,  quantitative  meas ures have been established by regulators,  and thes e require the Company 
    and its  subsidiary  bank to maintain  minimum  amounts  and ratios (set forth in the table  below ) of total and Tier I 
    capital (as defined) to risk-weighted  assets ( as defined),  and of Tier I capital to adjusted tot al assets (leverage). 
    Management  believes,  as of December 31, 2009,  that the Company and its subsidiary bank exceeded all capital  adequacy 
    requirements. 
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    At December 31, 2009 and 2008,  the  subsidiary   bank was  categorized  by  regulators  as  well-c apitalized  under the 
    regulatory  framework for prompt corrective act ion. A financial  institution is considered to be w ell-capitalized if it 
    has a total  risk-based  capital ratio of 10% o r more,  has a Tier I risk-based  capital ratio of 6% or more, and has a 
    Tier I leverage  capital ratio of 5% or more.  There are no conditions  or  anticipated  events th at, in the opinion of 
    management,  would change the categorization.  The actual capital amounts and ratios at December 3 1, 2009 and 2008, are 
    presented in the following table.  No amount wa s deducted from capital for interest-rate risk expo sure. 
 
 
 
 
                                                               Company                          Subsid iary 
                                                           (Consolidated)                        The F irst 
                                            ------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------ 
                                                      Amount              Ratio           Amount           Ratio 
                                                      ------              -----           ------           ----- 
 
      December 31, 2009  
          Total risk-based                           $56,545              16.5%          $55,686           16.3% 
          Tier I risk-based                           52,259              15.3%           51,410           15.1% 
          Tier I leverage                             52,259              10.8%           51,410           10.7% 
 
      December 31, 2008  
          Total risk-based                           $49,637              14.0%          $48,580           13.8% 
          Tier I risk-based                           45,214              12.8%           44,171           12.5% 
          Tier I leverage                             45,214               9.4%           44,171            9.3% 
 
    The minimum  amounts of capital and ratios as e stablished by banking  regulators at December 31, 2 009 and 2008, were as 
    follows: 
 
                                                              Company                            Subsi diary 
                                                           (Consolidated)                         The First 
                                            ------- ----------------------------- --------------------- ------------- 
                                                    Amount              Ratio          Amount              Ratio 
                                                    ------              -----          ------              ----- 
      December 31, 2009  
          Total risk-based                         $27,397               8.0%          $27,326              8.0% 
          Tier I risk-based                         13,698               4.0%           13,663              4.0% 
          Tier I leverage                           19,307               4.0%           19,252              4.0% 
 
      December 31, 2008  
          Total risk-based                         $28,278               8.0%          $28,189              8.0% 
          Tier I risk-based                         14,139               4.0%           14,095              4.0% 
          Tier I leverage                           19,106               4.0%           19,052              4.0% 
 
 
    The Company's  dividends,  if any, are expected  to be made from dividends  received from its  subs idiary  bank. The OCC 
    limits  dividends of a national  bank in any ca lendar  year to the net profits of that year  combi ned with the retained 
    net profits for the two preceding years. 
 
NOTE I - COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
 
    The Company and its subsidiary bank report  com prehensive  income as required by ASC Topic 220,  C omprehensive  Income. 
    In  accordance  with this  statement,  unrealiz ed  gains and losses on  securities  available-for- sale  are included in 
    accumulated other comprehensive income. 
 
    In the calculation of  comprehensive  income,  certain  reclassification  adjustments are made to avoid double counting 
    amounts  that  are  displayed  as part of net  income  for a period  that  also  had  been  displa yed  as part of other 
    comprehensive income.  The disclosure of the re classification amounts is as follows: 
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                                                                                             Years End ed December 31, 
                                                                                    ------------------ ------------------------- 
                                                                                             2009                 2008 
                                                                                    ------------------ --- --------------------- 
      Unrealized holdings gains (losses) on availab le-for- 
          sale securities and loans held for sale                                          $ 355,795          $(1,368,275) 
      Reclassification adjustment for losses 
          realized in income                                                                 111,428                     - 
                                                                                           ---------          ------------ 
      Net unrealized gains (losses)                                                          467,223           (1,368,275) 
      Tax effect                                                                             158,856               465,212 
                                                                                           ---------          ------------ 
      Net unrealized gains (losses), net of tax                                            $ 308,367          $  (903,063) 
                                                                                           =========          ============ 
 
 
 
 
NOTE J - INCOME TAXES  
 
    The components of income tax expense are as fol lows: 
                                                                                               Years E nded December 31, 
                                                                                         ------------- ------------------------- 



                                                                                              2009               2008 
                                                                                         ------------- ------ ------------------ 
      Current: 
          Federal                                                                          $  731,452         $  820,839 
          State                                                                                48,266             73,622 
      Deferred (benefit)                                                                    (265,607)          (206,303) 
                                                                                           ----------         ---------- 
                                                                                           $  514,111         $  688,158 
 
 
    The Company's  income tax expense differs from the amounts  computed by applying the federal incom e tax statutory rates 
    to income before income taxes.  A reconciliatio n of the differences is as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                                         Years Ended December 31, 
                                                        ---------------------------------------------- --------------- 
                                                                    2009                           200 8 
                                                        ---------------------------------------------- --------------- 
                                                          Amount             %            Amount             % 
                                                          ------            ---           ------            --- 
 
              Income taxes at statutory rate            $  767,553           34%       $  862,588            34% 
              Tax-exempt income                          (399,973)         (18)%        (352,397)          (14)% 
              Nondeductible expenses                       140,342            6%          186,832             8% 
              State income tax, net of federal 
                    tax effect                              31,856            2%           48,591             2% 
              Tax credits                                 (25,887)          (1)%         (63,797)           (3)% 
              Other, net                                       220            -             6,341              - 
                                                        ----------        ------       ----------          ----- 
                                                        $  514,111           23%       $  688,158            27% 
                                                        ==========        ======       ==========          ===== 
 
 
    The components of deferred income taxes include d in the consolidated financial statements were as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                                                 December 31, 
                                                                     --------------------------------- ----- 
                                                                              2009               2008 
                                                                     --------------------------------- ---- 
      Deferred tax assets: 
          Allowance for loan losses                                     $ 1,384,855        $ 1,354,720  
          Unrealized loss on available-for-sale sec urities                   45,870            210,938  
          Net operating loss carryover                                      885,272            963,009  
          Other                                                             360,925            154,736  
                                                                        -----------        -----------  
                                                                          2,676,922          2,683,403  
                                                                        -----------        -----------  
      Deferred tax liabilities: 
          Securities                                                      (155,772)          (158,298)  
          Premises and equipment                                          (761,078)          (839,723)  
          Core deposit intangible                                         (174,480)          (200,329)  
                                                                        -----------        -----------  
                                                                        (1,091,330)        (1,198,350)  
                                                                        -----------        -----------  
      Net deferred tax asset, included in other ass ets                  $ 1,585,592        $ 1,485,053  
                                                                        ===========        ===========  
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     With the acquisition of Wiggins, the Company a ssumed a federal tax net operating loss carryover.  This net operating 
     loss is available to the Company through the y ear 2026. 
 
     The Company adopted the provisions of the ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, which prescribes a  recogn ition threshold and 
     measurement attribute for the financial statem ent recognition and measurement of a tax position t aken or expected to 
     be  taken in  a  tax return.  ASC  Topic 740 a lso provides guidance on  derecognition, classifica tion,  interest and 
     penalties, accounting in interim periods, disc losure and transition.  As a result of the implemen tation of ASC Topic 
     740, the Company did not identify any uncertai n tax positions that it believes should be recogniz ed in the financial 
     statements.  The tax years still subject to ex amination by taxing authorities are years subsequen t to 2006. 
 
NOTE K - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
 
    The Company and its  subsidiary  bank provide a  deferred  compensation  arrangement  (401(k)  plan )  whereby  employees 
    contribute a percentage of their  compensation.   For employee  contributions  of three percent or less, the Company and 
    its subsidiary bank provide a matching contribu tion.  Contributions totaled $131,660 in 2009 and $ 138,841 in 2008. 
 
    The Company  sponsors an Employee Stock  Owners hip Plan (ESOP) for employees who have completed on e year of service for 
    the Company and attained age 21.  Employees  be come  fully  vested  after five years of service.  Contributions  to the 
    plan are at the  discretion  of the Board of  D irectors.  At December 31,  2009,  the ESOP held 6, 620 shares of Company 
    common stock and had no debt  obligation.  All shares held by the plan were  considered  outstandi ng for net income per 
    share purposes.  Total ESOP expense was $2,500 for 2009 and $10,500 for 2008. 
 
NOTE L - STOCK PLANS  
 
    On May 27, 1999, the Company's  stockholders ap proved the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (1999 Plan). T he 1999 Plan provides 



    for the granting of options to purchase up to 2 13,376  shares of the  Company's  common stock by t he  Company's and its 
    subsidiary's  directors,  key employees,  and m anagement.  Under the 1999 Plan, the Company may gr ant either  incentive 
    stock options or  nonqualified  stock  options.   Options  granted to directors and employees vest in equal amounts over 
    three  years.  Stock  options  granted to  mana gement  vest based on annual  performance  goals or  after nine years and 
    eleven  months,  if still  employed.  At Decemb er  31,  2008,  213,356  options had been  granted,   and 95,530 had been 
    exercised or  forfeited.  All options  expired and were void unless  exercised  on or before  Apri l 15, 2009.  In 2009, 
    29,668  options were exercised and the remainin g  options  expired.  The options were  exercisable  at not less than the 
    market value of the Company's stock at the gran t date. 
 
    In 2007, the Company adopted the 2007 Stock  In centive  Plan.  The 2007 Plan provides for the issu ance of up to 315,000 
    shares of Company  Common Stock,  $1.00 par val ue per share.  Shares issued under the 2007 Plan ma y consist in whole or 
    in part of authorized but unissued shares or tr easury shares.  As of December 31, 2009, no awards had been granted. 
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    A summary of the status of the stock  option  p lans as of  December  31, 2009 and 2008,  and  chan ges  during the years 
    ending on those dates is presented below: 
 
 
                                                                              December 31, 
                                                   --------------------------------------------------- ------------------- 
                                                               2009                              2008 
                                                   --------------------------------------------------- ------------------- 
                                                                      Weighted                            Weighted 
                                                                       Average                            Average 
                                                                      Exercise                            Exercise 
                                                     Shares             Price            Shares            Price 
                                                     ------           --------           ------           -------- 
 
   Options outstanding at beginning of year         117,826                 $8          120,776                $8 
   Options exercised                               (29,668)                  8          (1,650)                 8 
   Options forfeited                               (88,158)                 12          (1,300)                12 
                                                  - --------                           --------- 
   Options outstanding at end of year                     -                  0          117,826                 8 
                                                  = ========                           ========= 
   Options exercisable at end of year                     -                  0          117,826                 8 
                                                  = ========                           ========= 
 
 
NOTE M - SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES 
 
   On June 30, 2006, The Company issued $4,124,000 of floating rate junior  subordinated  deferrable i nterest debentures to 
   The First Bancshares  Statutory Trust 2 in which  the Company owns all of the common equity.  The de bentures are the sole 
   asset of the Trust.  The Trust issued  $4,000,00 0  of Trust  Preferred  Securities  (TPSs) to  inve stors.  The Company's 
   obligations under the debentures and related doc uments,  taken together,  constitute a full and unc onditional  guarantee 
   by the Company of the Trust's  obligations under  the preferred  securities.  The preferred  securit ies are redeemable by 
   the Company in 2011, or earlier in the event the  deduction of related  interest for federal  income  taxes is prohibited, 
   treatment as Tier I capital is no longer  permit ted,  or certain other  contingencies  arise.  The preferred  securities 
   must be redeemed  upon  maturity of the  debentu res  in 2036.  Interest on the  preferred  securiti es is the three month 
   London Interbank Offer Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.65% a nd is payable  quarterly.  The terms of the subordi nated  debentures are 
   identical to those of the  preferred  securities .  On July 27, 2007,  The Company  issued  $6,186,0 00  of floating  rate 
   junior subordinated  deferrable interest debentu res to The First Bancshares  Statutory Trust 3 in w hich the Company owns 
   all of the  common  equity.  The  debentures  ar e the  sole  asset of Trust 3.  The  Trust  issued  $6,000,000  of Trust 
   Preferred Securities (TPSs) to investors.  The C ompany's  obligations under the debentures and rela ted documents,  taken 
   together,  constitute a full and unconditional  guarantee by the Company of the Trust's  obligation s under the preferred 
   securities.  The preferred  securities  are  red eemable by the Company in 2012, or earlier in the e vent the deduction of 
   related interest for federal income taxes is pro hibited,  treatment as Tier 1 capital is no longer permitted, or certain 
   other  contingencies  arise.  The  preferred  se curities  must be  redeemed  upon  maturity of the  debentures  in 2037. 
   Interest on the  preferred  securities  is the t hree month LIBOR plus 1.40% and is payable  quarter ly.  The terms of the 
   subordinated  debentures are identical to those of the preferred  securities.  In accordance  with the provisions of ASC 
   Topic 810, Consolidation, the trusts are not inc luded in the consolidated financial statements. 
 
NOTE N - TREASURY STOCK 
 
    Shares held in treasury totaled 26,494 at Decem ber 31, 2009, and 2008. 
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NOTE O - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
    In the normal course of business,  the Bank mak es loans to its  directors  and  executive  officer s and to companies in 
    which they have a significant ownership interes t.  In the opinion of management,  these loans are made on substantially 
    the same terms,  including interest rates and c ollateral,  as those prevailing at the time for com parable  transactions 
    with other parties,  are consistent  with sound  banking  practices,  and are within  applicable  r egulatory and lending 
    limitations.  Such loans  amounted  to  approxi mately  $14,814,000  and  $11,875,000  at  December   31,  2009 and 2008, 
    respectively.  The activity in loans to current   directors,  executive  officers,  and their affil iates during the year 
    ended December 31, 2009, is summarized as follo ws (in thousands): 
 
           Loans outstanding at beginning of year                              $ 11,875 
           New loans                                                              4,285 
           Repayments                                                           (1,346) 
                                                                               -------- 



           Loans outstanding at end of year                                    $ 14,814 
                                                                               ======== 
 
 
NOTE P - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK  
 
    In the normal course of business,  there are  o utstanding  various  commitments  and  contingent  liabilities,  such as 
    guaranties,  commitments to extend credit, etc. , which are not reflected in the accompanying finan cial statements.  The 
    subsidiary bank  had outstanding  letters  of  credit  of $1,012,000 and   $937,000  at  December 31,  2009  and  2008, 
    respectively,  and  had  made  loan  commitment s  of  approximately  $39,967,000  and $36,117,000  at December 31, 2009 
    and 2008, respectively. 
 
    Commitments to extend credit and letters of cre dit include some exposure to credit loss in the eve nt of  nonperformance 
    of the customer.  Commitments  to extend  credi t are  agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation 
    of any condition  established in the contract.  Standby  letters of credit are  conditional  commi tments  issued by the 
    Bank to  guarantee  the  performance  of a cust omer to a third  party.  The credit  policies  and  procedures  for such 
    commitments  are the same as those used for len ding  activities.  Because these  instruments  have  fixed maturity dates 
    and because a number expire without being drawn  upon,  they generally do not present any  signific ant  liquidity  risk. 
    No  significant  losses on  commitments  were  incurred  during the two years  ended  December  31 ,  2009,  nor are any 
    significant losses as a result of these transac tions anticipated. 
 
    The primary  market area served by the Bank is Forrest,  Lamar,  Jones,  Pearl  River,  Jackson,  Hancock,  Stone,  and 
    Harrison  Counties within South  Mississippi.  Management  closely monitors its credit  concentrat ions  and attempts to 
    diversify the portfolio  within its primary  ma rket area. As of December 31, 2009,  management  do es not consider there 
    to be any significant credit concentrations wit hin the loan portfolio.  Although the Bank's loan p ortfolio,  as well as 
    existing commitments,  reflects the diversity o f its primary market area, a substantial portion of  a borrower's ability 
    to repay a loan is dependent upon the economic stability of the area. 
 
    The Company  had five leases for  facilities  d uring  2008.  The first lease  expired  May,  2008 and was not  renewed. 
    Monthly  lease  payments  were $2,458.  The sec ond lease  expired in August,  2008 and was not ren ewed.  Monthly  lease 
    payments  were  $1,293.  The third  lease  expi red  in May,  2008 and was not  renewed.  Monthly  lease  payments  were 
    $6,045.  Permanent  owned space was used to rep lace  these three  expired  leases.  The fourth lea se  requires  monthly 
    payments of $3,013  through June,  2012.  One f ive-year  renewal  option is included in the lease term. The fifth lease 
    requires  monthly  payments of $4,600 and expir ed in May,  2009.  Since May, 2009 the lease has be en on a monthly basis 
    with a 60 day termination notice requirement.  Rental expense for 2009 to related parties amounted  to $0. 
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    Rental expense for premises and equipment for t he years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008,  was  ap proximately  $136,000 
    and $193,000, respectively. 
 
    On October 8, 2007, The First  Bancshares,  Inc . (the  "Company")  and its  subsidiary,  The First , A National  Banking 
    Association  (the "Bank") were  formally  named  as defendants  and served with a First Amended  Co mplaint in litigation 
    styled Nick D. Welch v. Oak Grove Land Company,   Inc.,  Fred  McMurry,  David E. Johnson,  J. Doug las  Seidenburg,  The 
    First, A National  Banking  Association,  The F irst  Bancshares,  Inc., and John Does 1 through 10 . The Plaintiff seeks 
    damages from all the defendants,  including  $2 ,957,385,  annual  dividends for the year 2006 in t he amount of $.30 per 
    share,  punitive  damages and attorneys' fees a nd costs. The Company and the Bank both deny any li ability to Welch, and 
    intend to defend vigorously against this lawsui t. 
 
NOTE Q - FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  
 
    Effective  January 1,  2008,  the  Company  ado pted  ASC Topic  820,  Fair Value  Measurements  an d  Disclosures,  that 
    establishes a framework for measuring fair valu e and expands disclosures about fair value  measure ments.  This guidance 
    has been applied prospectively as of the beginn ing of the period. 
    The  guidance  defines  the fair  value as the price  that  would be  received  to sell an asset o r paid to  transfer a 
    liability in an orderly  transaction  between m arket  participants at the measurement  date. It al so establishes a fair 
    value hierarchy which requires an entity to max imize the use of observable  inputs and minimize th e use of unobservable 
    inputs when measuring fair value. 
    In accordance with the guidance,  the Company g roups its financial  assets and financial  liabilit ies  measured at fair 
    value in three levels,  based on the markets in  which the assets and  liabilities are traded and t he reliability of the 
    assumptions used to determine fair value. These  levels are: 
 
 
 
           Level 1:       Valuations for assets and  liabilities traded in active exchange markets, suc h as the New York Stock 
                          Exchange. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for  market transactions 
                          involving identical asset s or liabilities. 
           Level 2:       Valuations for assets and  liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker  markets.  Valuations are 
                          obtained from third party  pricing  services for identical or comparable  ass ets or liabilities  which 
                          use  observable  inputs  other  than Level 1 prices,  such as quoted  prices   for  similar  assets or 
                          liabilities;  quoted  pri ces in markets that are not active;  or other input s that are  observable or 
                          can be  corroborated  by  observable  market data for  substantially  the fu ll term of the assets and 
                          liabilities. 
           Level 3:       Unobservable  inputs that  are supported by little or no market  activity and  that are  significant to 
                          the fair value of the ass ets or liabilities. 
 
    Following  is  a  description  of  the  valuati on  methodologies  used  for  instruments  measured   at  fair  value  on a 
 
    recurring basis and recognized in the accompany ing balance sheet. 
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    Available-for-Sale Securities  
 
    The  fair  value  of  available-for-sale  secur ities  is  determined  by  various  valuation  meth odologies.  Where  quoted 



    market  prices  are  available  in  an  active  market,   securities  are  classified  within  Lev el  1.  The  Company  has 
    no  securities  classified  within  Level 1. If  quoted  market  prices are not  available,  then f air values are  estimated 
    by using  pricing  models  or quoted  prices  o f  securities  with  similar  characteristics.  Lev el 2  securities  include 
    U.S.  Treasury  securities,   obligations  of  U.S.  government  corporations  and  agencies,  obl igations  of  states  and 
    political  subdivisions,  mortgage-backed  secu rities  and  collateralized  mortgage  obligations.   In certain  cases where 
    Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available, se curities are          classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy. 
 
    The  following  table  presents  the  Company's   assets  that  are  measured  at  fair  value on a   recurring basis and the 
    level  within  the  hierarchy  in which  the fa ir  value  measurements  fall as of  December  31,  2009  and  December  31, 
    2008 (in thousands): 
 
 
 
December 31, 2009  
                                                                       Fair Value Measurements Using 
                                      ------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------- 
                                                        Quoted Prices in                                 Significant 
                                                       Active Markets for       Significant Other        Unobservable 
                                                        Identical Assets        Observable Inputs           Inputs 
                                       Fair Value          (Level 1)                (Level 2)             (Level 3) 
                                     -------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------- 
Available -for-sale securities        $   112,231              $ -                    $ 108,998             $ 3, 233 
 
 
December 31, 2008  
                                                                     Fair Value Measurements Using 
                                     -------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------- 
                                                        Quoted Prices in                                 Significant 
                                                      Active Markets for        Significant Other        Unobservable 
                                                       Identical Assets         Observable Inputs           Inputs 
                                       Fair Value         (Level 1)                 (Level 2)             (Level 3) 
                                     -------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------- 
 
Available -for-sale securities        $    99,679              $ -                    $  99,679                $  - 
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   The  following is  a  reconciliation  of  activi ty for  assets  measured at fair value based on sig nificant 
   unobservable (non-market) information. 
 
 
                                                                                      Bank-Issued 
                                                                                         Trust 
                                                                                       Preferred 
      (Dollars in thousands)                                                            Securities 
                                                                                    ----------------- 
      Balance, December 31, 2008                                                         $     - 
 
         Transfers into Level 3                                                            5,338 
 
         Transfers out of Level 3                                                              - 
 
         Other-than-temporary impairment loss inclu ded in earnings                         (111) 
 
         Unrealized loss included in comprehensive income                                (1,994) 
                                                                                         ------- 
 
      Balance, December 31, 2009                                                         $ 3,233 
                                                                                         ======= 
 
   Following  is a  description  of the  valuation  methodologies  used for assets and  liabilities  m easured  at fair value 
 
   on a non-recurring  basis and recognized in the  accompanying  balance  sheets,  as well as the gen eral classification of 
   such assets and liabilities pursuant to the valu ation hierarchy. 
 
   Impaired Loans  
 
   Loans  for which it is  probable  that the  Comp any  will not  collect  all  principal  and  intere st  due  according  to 
   contractual  terms  are  measured  for  impairme nt.   Allowable  methods  for  estimating  fair  va lue include  using the 
   fair  value  of the  collateral  for  collateral   dependent  loans  or,  where a loan is  determine d not to be collateral 
   dependent, using the discounted cash flow method . 
 
   If the  impaired  loan is  identified  as  colla teral  dependent,  then the fair  value  method of  measuring  the amount 
   of  impairment  is  utilized.  This method  requ ires  obtaining  a current  independent  appraisal of the  collateral and 
   applying   a   discount   factor   to  the   val ue.   If  the   impaired   loan  is   determined   not  to  be collateral 
   dependent,  then the  discounted  cash flow  met hod is used.  This  method  requires  the impaired loan to be recorded at 
   the  present  value of  expected  future  cash f lows  discounted  at the loan's  effective interest  rate.  The  effective 
   interest  rate  of a  loan  is  the  contractual   interest  rate  adjusted  for  any  net  deferred  loan fees  or  costs, 
   premiums  or  discount   existing  at   originat ion   or   acquisition   of  the  loan.   Impaired loans  are  classified 
   within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 
 
   Other Real Estate Owned  
 
   Other  real  estate  owned  consists  of  proper ties  obtained  through  foreclosure.  The  adjustm ent  at  the  time  of 
   foreclosure  is  recorded  through  the  allowan ce  for  loan  losses.  Fair  value  of other  real   estate  owned is based 
   on  current  independent  appraisals.  Due to th e  subjective  nature  of  establishing  the fair  value  when the asset is 
   acquired,  the actual  fair value of the other r eal  estate  owned or  foreclosed  asset  could  di ffer  from the  original 



   estimate.  If it is  determined  the fair value  declines  subsequent  to  foreclosure,  a valuatio n  allowance is recorded 
   through  non-interest   expense.   Operating  co sts  associated  with  the  assets  after  acquisit ion  are  also  recorded 
   as  non-interest  expense.  Gains and  losses on  the  disposition  of other real  estate  owned and   foreclosed  assets are 
   netted and posted to other  non-interest  expens e.  Other  real  estate  owned  measured  at fair v alue on a  non-recurring 
   basis at December  31,  2009,  amounted  to $2.9   million.  Other real estate  owned is  classified   within  Level 2 of the 
   fair value hierarchy. 
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   The  following  table  presents  the fair  value   measurement  of  assets  and  liabilities  measur ed  at fair  value on a 
   nonrecurring  basis and the level  within the fa ir value  hierarchy in which the fair value  measur ements  fall at December 
   31, 2009 and December 31, 2008. 
 
 
 
December 31, 2009  
                                                                           Fair Value Measurements Usi ng 
                                               ---- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------ 
                                                             Quoted Prices in      Significant 
                                                              Active Markets         Other           S inificant 
                                                                    for            Observable        U nobservable 
                                                             Identical Assets        Inputs             Inputs 
                                                Fai r Value       (Level 1)          (Level 2)         (Level 3) 
                                               ---- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------ 
Impaired loans                                   $ 20,609      $        -          $    20,609        $       - 
                                                                                                              - 
Other real estate owned                          $  2,903      $        -          $     2,903        $       - 
 
 
December 31, 2008  
                                                                          Fair Value Measurements Usin g 
                                               ---- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------ 
                                                             Quoted Prices in      Significant 
                                                              Active Markets         Other           S inificant 
                                                                    for            Observable        U nobservable 
                                                             Identical Assets        Inputs             Inputs 
                                                Fai r Value       (Level 1)          (Level 2)         (Level 3) 
                                               ---- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------ 
Impaired loans                                   $  16,792     $      -            $   16,792         $      - 
 
Other real estate owned                          $   1,629     $      -            $    1,629         $      - 
 
 
   The  following  methods and  assumptions  were u sed to estimate  the fair value of each class of fi nancial  instrument  for 
   which it is practicable to estimate that value: 
 
   Cash and Cash Equivalents  - For such short-term instruments, the carrying am ount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. 
 
   Investment  in  securities   available-for-sale   a nd   held-to-maturity   -  The  fair  value  measurement  for  securities  
   available-for-sale was discussed earlier.  The s ame measurement approach was used for securities he ld-to-maturity. 
 
   Loans  - The fair value of loans is  estimated  by  disco unting  the  future  cash flows  using the  current   rates at which 
   similar loans would be made to borrowers with si milar credit ratings and for the same remaining mat urities. 
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   Deposits  - The fair  values of demand  deposits  are, as re quired  by ASC Topic 825,  equal to the  carrying  value of such 
   deposits.  Demand deposits include  noninterest- bearing  demand deposits,  savings accounts, NOW ac counts, and money market 
   demand accounts.  The fair value of variable rat e term deposits,  those repricing  within six month s or less,  approximates 
   the  carrying  value of these  deposits.  Discou nted  cash  flows  have been used to value  fixed  rate term  deposits  and 
   variable  rate term  deposits  repricing  after six months.  The discount  rate used is based on in terest  rates  currently 
   being offered on comparable deposits as to amoun t and term. 
 
   Short-Term  Borrowings  - The carrying value of any federal funds  purchas ed and other  short-term  borrowings  approximates 
   their fair values. 
 
   FHLB and Other  Borrowings  - The fair value of the fixed rate borrowings are estimated using  discounted cash flows,  based 
   on current  incremental  borrowing rates for sim ilar types of borrowing  arrangements.  The carryin g amount of any variable 
   rate borrowing approximates its fair value. 
 
   Subordinated  Debentures   -  The  subordinated  debentures  bear  interest  at a  variable  rate  and  the  carrying  value 
   approximates the fair value. 
 
   Off-Balance Sheet  Instruments  - Fair values of off-balance sheet financial  inst ruments are based on fees charged to enter 
   into  similar  agreements.  However,  commitment s  to  extend  credit do not  represent  a  signifi cant  value  until  such 
   commitments  are funded or closed.  Management h as determined  that these  instruments do not have a  distinguishable  fair 
   value and no fair value has been assigned. 
 
 
 
 
                                                                   As of                         As of  
                                                             December 31, 2009             December 31 , 2008 
                                                             -----------------             ----------- ------ 



 
                                                          Carrying       Estimated      Carrying        Estimated 
                                                           Amount       Fair Value       Amount        Fair Value 
                                                          --------      ----------      --------       ---------- 
                                                                              (In thousands) 
        Financial Instruments: 
            Assets: 
                Cash and cash equivalents                    $ 15,991       $ 15,991        $25,009          $25,009 
                Securities available-for-sale                 112,231        112,231         99,679           99,679 
                Securities held-to-maturity                         3              3             12               12 
                Other securities                                2,384          2,384          2,612            2,612 
                Loans, net                                    314,033        326,271        318,300          332,389 
 
        Liabilities: 
                Noninterest-bearing 
                   Deposits                                  $ 48,527       $ 48,527        $57,594          $57,594 
                Interest-bearing deposits                     335,227        337,238        320,484          325,777 
                Subordinated debentures                        10,310         10,310         10,310           10,310 
                FHLB and other borrowings                      32,037         32,037         46,027           46,027 
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NOTE R - SENIOR PREFERRED STOCK 
 
    On February 6, 2009, under the U.S.  Department  of Treasury's  (Treasury)  Capital  Purchase Progr am (CPP)  established 
    under the Troubled Asset Relief Program (TARP) that was created as part of the Emergency Economic  Stabilization Act of 
    2008 (EESA),  the Company issued to Treasury  5 ,000  non-voting  shares of Fixed Rate  Cumulative  Perpetual  Preferred 
    Stock,  Series A, no par value,  having a liqui dation  amount of $1,000 per share,  and a ten-year   warrant to purchase 
    54,705  shares of common stock at an exercise  price of $13.71 per share,  for  aggregate  proceed s of $5 million.  The 
    total capital  raised  through this issue  qual ifies as Tier 1 regulatory  capital and can be used  in  calculating  all 
    regulatory capital ratios. 
 
    Cumulative  preferred stock dividends are payab le quarterly at a 5% annual rate on the per share l iquidation amount for 
    the first five years and 9% thereafter.  All re demptions would be at the liquidation  amount per s hare plus accrued and 
    unpaid dividends and are subject to prior regul atory approval. 
 
    The Company may not declare or pay dividends on  its common stock or, with certain  exceptions,  re purchase common stock 
    without  first  having paid all accrued  cumula tive  preferred  dividends  that are due. For three  years from the issue 
    date,  the Company  also may not  increase  its  common  stock  dividend  rate above an annual rate  of $.15 per share or 
    repurchase its common shares without  Treasury' s  consent,  unless Treasury has transferred all th e preferred shares to 
    third parties or the preferred stock has been r edeemed. 
 
    The American  Recovery and  Reinvestment  Act ( ARRA) became law on February 17, 2009.  Among its m any  provisions,  the 
    ARRA  imposes  certain new  executive  compensa tion  and  corporate  expenditure  limits on all cu rrent and future TARP 
    recipients,  including the Company,  that are i n addition to those previously  announced by the Tr easury.  These limits 
    are effective until the institution has repaid the Treasury. 
 
NOTE S - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
     Management  has  evaluated  the  effect  of  s ubsequent  events  on  these  financial   statement s  through  the  date 
     the financial statements were issued. 
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NOTE  T - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
 
    The balance sheets, statements of income and ca sh flows for The First Bancshares, Inc. (parent com pany only) follow. 
 
                                                   Condensed Balance Sheets  
 
                                                                        December 31, 
                                                          -------------------------------------- 
                                                                     2009               2008 
                                                          -------------------------------------- 
      Assets: 
          Cash and cash equivalents                              $   285,232       $    561,309 
          Investment in subsidiary bank                           52,768,436         45,249,878 
          Investments in statutory trusts                            310,000            310,000 
          Other securities                                           100,000            100,000 
          Premises and equipment                                     368,623            368,623 
          Other                                                      207,448            290,705 
                                                                 -----------       ------------ 
                                                                 $54,039,739       $ 46,880,515 
                                                                 ===========       ============ 
      Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity: 
          Subordinated debentures                                 10,310,000         10,310,000 



          Other                                                      113,073              2,429 
          Stockholders' equity                                    43,616,666         36,568,086 
                                                                 -----------       ------------ 
                                                                 $54,039,739        $46,880,515 
                                                                 ===========       ============ 
 
                                              Condensed Statements of Income  
 
                                                                                  Years Ended December  31, 
                                                                          ---------------------------- ---------- 
                                                                                     2009               2008 
                                                                          ---------------------------- ---------- 
      Income: 
          Interest and dividends                                                  $   25,354         $    38,196 
          Dividend income                                                                  -            600,000 
          Other                                                                        1,500              1,500 
                                                                                  ----------         - --------- 
                                                                                      26,854            639,696 
 
      Expenses: 
          Interest on borrowed funds                                                 291,110            523,894 
          Other                                                                      360,820            436,863 
                                                                                  ----------         - --------- 
                                                                                     651,930            960,757 
      Loss before income taxes and equity in undist ributed income of 
          Subsidiary                                                               (625,076)          (321,061) 
      Income tax benefit                                                           (158,282)          (241,539) 
                                                                                  ----------         - --------- 
      Loss before equity in undistributed income of  subsidiary                     (466,794)           (79,522) 
      Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary                                 2,210,191          1,928,387 
                                                                                  ----------         - --------- 
 
      Net income                                                                  $1,743,397         $ 1,848,865 
                                                                                  ==========         = ========= 
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                                            Condensed Statements of Cash Flows  
 
                                                                                                   Yea rs Ended December 31, 
                                                                                         ------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                                                    20 09               2008 
                                                                                         ------------- ------------------------- 
      Cash flows from operating activities: 
          Net income                                                                           $  1,74 3,397       $  1,848,865 
          Adjustments to reconcile net income to ne t cash provided by 
              (used in) operating activities: 
                 Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary                                   (2,210 ,191)        (1,928,387) 
                 Other, net                                                                         16 1,957            370,877 
                 Stock option expense                                                                     -              1,866 
                                                                                               ------- -----       ------------ 
                    Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities                           (304 ,837)            293,221 
                                                                                               ------- -----       ------------ 
 
 
      Cash flows from investing activities: 
          Investment in subsidiary bank                                                         (5,000 ,000)                  - 
                                                                                               ------- -----       ------------ 
                    Net cash used in investing acti vities                                       (5,000 ,000)                  - 
                                                                                               ------- -----       ------------ 
 
      Cash flows from financing activities: 
          Dividends paid on common stock                                                                  -          (672,616) 
          Dividends paid on preferred stock                                                       (193 ,750)                  - 
          Exercise of stock options                                                                 22 2,510             12,375 
          Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock  and warrant                                   5,00 0,000                  - 
                                                                                               ------- -----       ------------ 
                Net cash provided by (used in) fina ncing activities                               5,02 8,760          (660,241) 
                                                                                               ------- -----       ------------ 
      Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents                                                   (276 ,077)          (367,020) 
 
      Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yea r                                                56 1,309            928,329 
                                                                                               ------- -----       ------------ 
 
      Cash and cash equivalents at end of year                                                 $    28 5,232         $  561,309 
                                                                                               ======= =====       ============ 
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NOTE U - SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND PER SHARE 
         AMOUNTS (UNAUDITED) 
                                                                               Three Months Ended 
                                                             March 31        June 30        Sept. 30        Dec. 31 
                                                             --------        -------        --------        ------- 
                                                                      (In thousands, except per share amounts) 
 
        2009  
        Total interest income                                $  6,666       $  6,608        $  6,501       $  6,503 
        Total interest expense                                  2,812          2,634           2,493          2,301 
                                                             --------       --------        --------       -------- 
            Net interest income                                 3,854          3,974           4,008          4,202 
        Provision (credit) for loan losses                        628            464            (36)            150 
                                                             --------       --------        --------       -------- 
            Net interest income after provision for  
                loan losses                                     3,226          3,510           4,044          4,052 
        Total non-interest income                                 684            604             734            727 
        Total non-interest expense                              3,658          3,890           3,707          4,069 
        Income tax expense                                         61             43             301            109 
                                                             --------       --------        --------       -------- 
 
        Net income                                                191            181             770            601 
                                                             --------       --------        --------       -------- 
 
        Preferred dividends                                        38             63              63             62 
        Preferred stock accretion                                  14             14              14             14 
                                                             --------       --------        --------       -------- 
        Net income applicable to common stockholder s           $  139         $  104         $   693        $   525 
                                                             ========       ========        ========       ======== 
 
        Per common share: 
            Net income, basic                                  $  .05         $  .03         $   .23        $   .18 
            Net income, diluted                                   .05            .03             .23            .18 
            Cash dividends declared                                 -              -               -              - 
 
        2008  
        Total interest income                                $  8,682       $  8,168        $  7,672       $  7,202 
        Total interest expense                                  3,990          3,816           3,183          3,157 
                                                             --------       --------        --------       -------- 
            Net interest income                                 4,692          4,352           4,489          4,045 
 
        Provision for loan losses                                 366            634             721            484 
                                                             --------       --------        --------       -------- 
            Net interest income after provision for  
                loan losses                                     4,326          3,718           3,768          3,561 
        Total non-interest income                                 762            915             795            690 
        Total non-interest expense                              3,963          4,176           4,085          3,774 
        Income tax expense                                        335            118             143             92 
                                                             --------       --------        --------       -------- 
 
        Net income applicable to common stockholder s         $    790       $    339        $    335       $    385 
                                                             ========       ========        ========       ======== 
 
        Per common share: 
            Net income, basic                                $    .26       $    .11        $    .11       $    .14 
            Net income, diluted                                   .26            .11             .11            .13 
            Cash dividends declared                              .075           .075            .075              - 
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                                                EXHIBIT 21 
 
                                             SUBSID IARIES OF 
                                        THE FIRST B ANCSHARES, INC. 
 
                                The First, A Nation al Banking Association 
                                (A National charter ed banking corporation) 
 
                                  The First Bancsha res Statutory Trust 2 
                                        (Delaware s tatutory trust) 
 
                                  The First Bancsha res Statutory Trust 3 
                                        (Delaware s tatutory trust)  



                                                    EXHIBIT 31 
 
 
 
                                                   CERTIFICATIONS 
 
I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr., certify that: 
 
1.       I have reviewed this annual report on Form  10-K of The First Bancshares, Inc.; 
 
2.       Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material  
         fact or omit to state a material fact nece ssary in order to make the statements made, in ligh t 
         of the circumstances under which such stat ements were made, not misleading with respect to th e 
         period covered by this report; 
 
3.       Based on my knowledge, the financial state ments, and other financial information included in 
         this  report, fairly present in all materi al respects the financial condition, results of 
         operations and cash flows of the registran t as of, and for, the periods presented in this 
         report; 
 
4.       The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and 
         maintaining disclosure controls and proced ures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) an d 
         15d-15(e)) and internal control over finan cial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
         13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant  and have: 
 
         a.       Designed such disclosure controls  and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls  and 
                  procedures to be designed under o ur supervision, to ensure that material information  
                  relating to the registrant, inclu ding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known t o 
                  us by others within those entitie s, particularly during the period in which this 
                  report is being prepared; 
 
         b.       Designed such internal control ov er financial reporting, or caused such internal con trol over 
                  financial reporting to be designe d under our supervision, to provide reasonable 
                  assurance regarding the reliabili ty of financial reporting and the preparation of 
                  financial statements for external  purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
                  accounting principles; 
 
         c.       Evaluated the effectiveness of th e registrant's disclosure controls and procedures a nd 
                  presented in this report our conc lusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure 
                  controls and procedures as of the  end of the period covered by this report based on 
                  such evaluation; and 
 
         d.       Disclosed in this report any chan ge in the registrant's internal control over financ ial 
                  reporting that occurred during th e registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has 
                  materially affected, or is reason ably likely to materially affect, the registrant's 
                  internal control over financial r eporting; and 
 
5.       The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent 
         evaluation of internal control over financ ial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the  
         audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
         functions): 
 
         a.       All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of i nternal 
                  control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the  
                  registrant's ability to record, p rocess, summarize and report financial information;  and 
 
         b.       Any fraud, whether or not materia l, that involves management or other employees who have a 
                  significant role in the registran t's internal control over financial reporting. 
 
         Date: March 25, 2010 
                                                                       /s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. 
                                                                      -------------------------------- ---- 
                                                                       M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. 
                                                                       Chief Executive Officer 

                                                    EXHIBIT 31 
 
                                                   CERTIFICATIONS  
 
I, Dee Dee Lowery, certify that: 
 
1.       I  have reviewed this annual report on For m 10-K of The First Bancshares, Inc.; 
 
2.       Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material  fact or 
         omit to state a material fact necessary in  order to make the statements made, in light of the  
         circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the perio d covered 
         by this report; 
 
3.       Based on my knowledge, the financial state ments, and other financial information included in this 
         report, fairly present in all material res pects the financial condition, results of operation s and cash 
         flows of the registrant as of, and for, th e periods presented in this report; 
 
4.       The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintain ing 
         disclosure controls and procedures (as def ined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))  and 
         internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d -15(f))for 
         the registrant and have: 
 
         a.       Designed such disclosure controls  and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls  and procedures to 



                  be designed under our supervision , to ensure that material information relating to t he 
                  registrant, including its consoli dated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others w ithin those 
                  entities, particularly during the  period in which this report is being prepared; 
 
         b.       Designed such internal control ov er financial reporting, or caused such internal con trol over financial 
                  reporting to be designed under ou r supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rega rding the 
                  reliability of financial reportin g and the preparation of financial statements for e xternal 
                  purposes in accordance with gener ally accepted accounting principles; 
 
         c.       Evaluated the effectiveness of th e registrant's disclosure controls and procedures a nd presented in this 
                  report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proced ures as of 
                  the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
 
         d.       Disclosed in this report any chan ge in the registrant's internal control over financ ial reporting that 
                  occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affe cted, or is 
                  reasonably likely to materially a ffect, the registrant's internal control over finan cial 
                  reporting; and 
 
5.       The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent eval uation of 
         internal control over financial reporting,  to the registrant's auditors and the audit committ ee of the 
         registrant's board of directors (or person s performing the equivalent functions): 
 
         a.       All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of i nternal control over 
                  financial reporting which are rea sonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's  ability to 
                  record, process, summarize and re port financial information; and 
 
         b.       Any fraud, whether or not materia l, that involves management or other employees who have a significant 
                  role in the registrant's internal  control over financial reporting. 
 
         Date: March 25, 2010 
                                                                       /s/ Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                                      -------------------------------- - 
                                                                       Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                                       Chief  Financial Officer 
 
 



                                                EXHIBIT 32 
 
 
 
                                              CERTI FICATIONS  
 
 
I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. Chief Executive Officer , certify that 
 
         this periodic report containing financial statements fully complies with the 
         requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 
         U.S.C. 78m or 78o(d)) and that information  contained in the periodic report fairly 
         presents, in all material respects, the fi nancial condition and results of operations 
         of the issuer. 
 
         Date: March 25, 2010 
 
                                                     /s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. 
                                                   --------------------------------------- 
                                                     M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. 
                                                     Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
I, Dee Dee Lowery, Chief Financial Officer, certify  that 
 
         this periodic report containing financial statements fully complies with the 
         requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 
         U.S.C. 78m or 78o(d)) and that information  contained in the periodic report fairly 
         presents, in all material respects, the fi nancial condition and results of operations 
         of the issuer. 
 
         Date: March 25, 2010 
 
                                                     /s/ Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                   --------------------------------------- 
                                                     Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                     Chief Financial Officer 
 
 



                                               EXHIBIT 99.1 
                                            EESA CE RTIFICATION  
 
I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr., certify, based on my k nowledge, that: 
 
      (i) The compensation committee of The First B ancshares, Inc. has discussed, reviewed, and 
evaluated with senior risk officers at least every six months during the period beginning on the later  
of September 14, 2009, or ninety days after the clo sing date of the agreement between the TARP recipie nt 
and Treasury and ending with the last day of the TA RP recipient's fiscal year containing that date (th e 
applicable period), the senior executive officer (S EO) compensation plans and the employee compensatio n 
plans and the risks these plans pose to The First B ancshares, Inc.; 
 
     (ii) The compensation committee of The First B ancshares, Inc. has identified and limited during t he 
applicable period any features of the SEO compensat ion plans that could lead SEOs to take unnecessary 
and excessive risks that could threaten the value o f , and during that same applicable period has 
identified any features of the employee compensatio n plans that pose risks to The First Bancshares, In c. 
and has limited those features to ensure that The F irst Bancshares, Inc. is not unnecessarily exposed to 
risks; 
 
     (iii) The compensation committee has reviewed,  at least every six months during the applicable 
period, the terms of each employee compensation pla n and identified any features of the plan that coul d 
encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of The First Bancshares, Inc. to enhance the 
compensation of an employee, and has limited any su ch features; 
 
     (iv) The compensation committee of The First B ancshares, Inc. will certify to the reviews of the 
SEO compensation plans and employee compensation pl ans required under (i) and (iii) above; 
 
     (v) The compensation committee of The First Ba ncshares, Inc. will provide a narrative description  
of how it limited during any part of the most recen tly completed fiscal year that included a TARP peri od 
the features in 
 
     (A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SEO s to take unnecessary and excessive risks that coul d 
         threaten the value of The First Bancshares , Inc.; 
     (B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessa rily expose The First Bancshares, Inc. to risks; an d 
 
     (C) Employee compensation plans that could enc ourage the manipulation of reported earnings of The  
         First Bancshares, Inc. to enhance the comp ensation of an employee; 
 
     (vi) The First Bancshares, Inc. has required t hat bonus payments, as defined in the regulations a nd 
guidance established under section 111 of EESA (bon us payments), of the SEOs and twenty next most high ly 
compensated employees be subject to a recovery or " clawback" provision during any part of the most 
recently completed fiscal year that was a TARP peri od if the bonus payments were based on materially 
inaccurate financial statements or any other materi ally inaccurate performance metric criteria; 
 
     (vii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibite d any golden parachute payment, as defined in the 
regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA, to an SEO or any of the next five most  
highly compensated employees during the period begi nning on the later of the closing date of the 
agreement between the TARP recipient and Treasury o r June 15, 2009 and ending with the last day of the  
TARP recipient's fiscal year containing that date; 
 
     (viii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has limited bonus payments to its applicable employees in 
accordance with section 111 of EESA and the regulat ions and guidance established thereunder during the  
period beginning on the later of the closing date o f the agreement between the TARP recipient and 
Treasury or June 15, 2009 and ending with the last day of the TARP recipient's fiscal year containing 
that date; 

     (ix) The board of directors of The First Bancs hares, Inc. has established an excessive or luxury 
expenditures policy, as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA,  
by the later of September 14, 2009, or ninety days after the closing date of the agreement between the  
TARP recipient and Treasury; this policy has been p rovided to Treasury and its primary regulatory 
agency; The First Bancshares, Inc. and its employee s have complied with this policy during the 
applicable period; and any expenses that, pursuant to this policy, required approval of the board of 
directors, a committee of the board of directors, a n SEO, or an executive officer with a similar level  
of responsibility were properly approved; 
 
     (x) The First Bancshares, Inc. will permit a n on-binding shareholder resolution in compliance wit h 
any applicable Federal securities rules and regulat ions on the disclosures provided under the Federal 
securities laws related to SEO compensation paid or  accrued during the period beginning on the later o f 
the closing date of the agreement between the TARP recipient and Treasury or June 15, 2009 and ending 
with the last day of the TARP recipient's fiscal ye ar containing that date; 
 
     (xi) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose the amount, nature, and justification for the 
offering during the period beginning on the later o f the closing date of the agreement between the TAR P 
recipient and Treasury or June 15, 2009 and ending with the last day of the TARP recipient's fiscal ye ar 
containing that date of any perquisites, as defined  in the regulations and guidance established under 
section 111 of EESA, whose total value exceeds $25, 000 for any employee who is subject to the bonus 
payment limitations identified in paragraph (viii);  
 
     (xii) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose  whether The First Bancshares, Inc., the board of 
directors of The First Bancshares, Inc. or the comp ensation committee of The First Bancshares, Inc. ha s 
engaged during the period beginning on the later of  the closing date of the agreement between the TARP  
recipient and Treasury or June 15, 2009 and ending with the last day of the TARP recipient's fiscal ye ar 
containing that date, a compensation consultant; an d the services the compensation consultant or any 
affiliate of the compensation consultant provided d uring this period; 
 
     (xiii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibit ed the payment of any gross-ups, as defined in the 
regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA, to the SEOs and the next twenty most 
highly compensated employees during the period begi nning on the later of the closing date of the 



agreement between the TARP recipient and Treasury o r June 15, 2009 and ending with the last day of the  
TARP recipient's fiscal year containing that date; 
 
     (xiv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has substanti ally complied with all other requirements related t o 
employee compensation that are provided in the agre ement between The First Bancshares, Inc. and 
Treasury, including any amendments; 
 
     (xv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has submitted to Treasury a complete and accurate list of the SEO s 
and the twenty next most highly compensated employe es for the current fiscal year and the most recentl y 
completed fiscal year, with the non-SEOs ranked in descending order of level of annual compensation, a nd 
with the name, title, and employer of each SEO and most highly compensated employee identified; and 
 
     (xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful false or fraudulent statement made in connection wi th 
this certification may be punished by fine, impriso nment, or both. ( See, for example, 18 U.S.C. 1001. ) 
 
 
 
 
                                                     By: /s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. 
                                                        ------------------------------------ 
                                                         M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. 
                                                         Principal Executive Officer 
 
 
                                                         Date:  March 25, 2010 
 

                                               EXHIBIT 99.2 
                                            EESA CE RTIFICATION  
 
 
I, Dee Dee Lowery, certify, based on my knowledge, that: 
 
     (i) The compensation committee of The First Ba ncshares, Inc. has discussed, reviewed, and evaluat ed 
with senior risk officers at least every six months  during the period beginning on the later of 
September 14, 2009, or ninety days after the closin g date of the agreement between the TARP recipient 
and Treasury and ending with the last day of the TA RP recipient's fiscal year containing that date (th e 
applicable period), the senior executive officer (S EO) compensation plans and the employee compensatio n 
plans and the risks these plans pose to The First B ancshares, Inc.; 
 
     (ii) The compensation committee of The First B ancshares, Inc. has identified and limited during t he 
applicable period any features of the SEO compensat ion plans that could lead SEOs to take unnecessary 
and excessive risks that could threaten the value o f , and during that same applicable period has 
identified any features of the employee compensatio n plans that pose risks to The First Bancshares, In c. 
and has limited those features to ensure that The F irst Bancshares, Inc. is not unnecessarily exposed to 
risks; 
 
     (iii) The compensation committee has reviewed,  at least every six months during the applicable 
period, the terms of each employee compensation pla n and identified any features of the plan that coul d 
encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of The First Bancshares, Inc. to enhance the 
compensation of an employee, and has limited any su ch features; 
 
     (iv) The compensation committee of The First B ancshares, Inc. will certify to the reviews of the 
SEO compensation plans and employee compensation pl ans required under (i) and (iii) above; 
 
     (v) The compensation committee of The First Ba ncshares, Inc. will provide a narrative description  
of how it limited during any part of the most recen tly completed fiscal year that included a TARP peri od 
the features in 
 
     (A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SEO s to take unnecessary and excessive risks that coul d 
         threaten the value of The First Bancshares , Inc.; 
     (B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessa rily expose The First Bancshares, Inc. to risks; an d 
 
     (C) Employee compensation plans that could enc ourage the manipulation of reported earnings of The  
         First Bancshares, Inc. to enhance the comp ensation of an employee; 
 
     (vi) The First Bancshares, Inc. has required t hat bonus payments, as defined in the regulations a nd 
guidance established under section 111 of EESA (bon us payments), of the SEOs and twenty next most high ly 
compensated employees be subject to a recovery or " clawback" provision during any part of the most 
recently completed fiscal year that was a TARP peri od if the bonus payments were based on materially 
inaccurate financial statements or any other materi ally inaccurate performance metric criteria; 
 
     (vii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibite d any golden parachute payment, as defined in the 
regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA, to an SEO or any of the next five most  
highly compensated employees during the period begi nning on the later of the closing date of the 
agreement between the TARP recipient and Treasury o r June 15, 2009 and ending with the last day of the  
TARP recipient's fiscal year containing that date; 
 
     (viii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has limited bonus payments to its applicable employees in 
accordance with section 111 of EESA and the regulat ions and guidance established thereunder during the  
period beginning on the later of the closing date o f the agreement between the TARP recipient and 
Treasury or June 15, 2009 and ending with the last day of the TARP recipient's fiscal year containing 
that date; 

     (ix) The board of directors of The First Bancs hares, Inc. has established an excessive or luxury 



expenditures policy, as defined in the regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA,  
by the later of September 14, 2009, or ninety days after the closing date of the agreement between the  
TARP recipient and Treasury; this policy has been p rovided to Treasury and its primary regulatory 
agency; The First Bancshares, Inc. and its employee s have complied with this policy during the 
applicable period; and any expenses that, pursuant to this policy, required approval of the board of 
directors, a committee of the board of directors, a n SEO, or an executive officer with a similar level  
of responsibility were properly approved; 
 
     (x) The First Bancshares, Inc. will permit a n on-binding shareholder resolution in compliance wit h 
any applicable Federal securities rules and regulat ions on the disclosures provided under the Federal 
securities laws related to SEO compensation paid or  accrued during the period beginning on the later o f 
the closing date of the agreement between the TARP recipient and Treasury or June 15, 2009 and ending 
with the last day of the TARP recipient's fiscal ye ar containing that date; 
 
     (xi) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose the amount, nature, and justification for the 
offering during the period beginning on the later o f the closing date of the agreement between the TAR P 
recipient and Treasury or June 15, 2009 and ending with the last day of the TARP recipient's fiscal ye ar 
containing that date of any perquisites, as defined  in the regulations and guidance established under 
section 111 of EESA, whose total value exceeds $25, 000 for any employee who is subject to the bonus 
payment limitations identified in paragraph (viii);  
 
     (xii) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose  whether The First Bancshares, Inc., the board of 
directors of The First Bancshares, Inc. or the comp ensation committee of The First Bancshares, Inc. ha s 
engaged during the period beginning on the later of  the closing date of the agreement between the TARP  
recipient and Treasury or June 15, 2009 and ending with the last day of the TARP recipient's fiscal ye ar 
containing that date, a compensation consultant; an d the services the compensation consultant or any 
affiliate of the compensation consultant provided d uring this period; 
 
     (xiii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibit ed the payment of any gross-ups, as defined in the 
regulations and guidance established under section 111 of EESA, to the SEOs and the next twenty most 
highly compensated employees during the period begi nning on the later of the closing date of the 
agreement between the TARP recipient and Treasury o r June 15, 2009 and ending with the last day of the  
TARP recipient's fiscal year containing that date; 
 
     (xiv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has substanti ally complied with all other requirements related t o 
employee compensation that are provided in the agre ement between The First Bancshares, Inc. and 
Treasury, including any amendments; 
 
     (xv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has submitted to Treasury a complete and accurate list of the SEO s 
and the twenty next most highly compensated employe es for the current fiscal year and the most recentl y 
completed fiscal year, with the non-SEOs ranked in descending order of level of annual compensation, a nd 
with the name, title, and employer of each SEO and most highly compensated employee identified; and 
 
     (xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful false or fraudulent statement made in connection wi th 
this certification may be punished by fine, impriso nment, or both. ( See, for example, 18 U.S.C. 1001. ) 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                     By:  /s/ Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                        ------------------------------------ 
                                                          Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                          Principal Financial Officer 
 
 
                                                          Date:  March 25, 2010 
 


